UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF EFMSECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year endddecember 31, 2010

Commission file numbed00-19297

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @

Nevada 55-0694814
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporatic (I.R.S. Employer Identification No
P.O. Box 98¢
Bluefield, Virginia 24605-0989
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area c(®i&) 326-9000
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(hefAct:

Title of each clas Name of exchange on which registe
Common Stock, $1.00 par valu NASDAQ Global Select

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghe@fct: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a -known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405co8#turities Act

O Yes 4| No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ord)%f the Act.

O Yes 4} No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @9 filed all reports required to be filed by Sectdd or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for ssiohrter period that the registrant was requirefilécsuch reports), and (2) has been su
to such filing requirements for the past 90 d:

4} Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hemnitted electronically and posted on its corpok&feb site, if any, every Interactive D
File required to be submitted and posted pursumRiuie 405 of Regulation $-during the preceding 12 months (or for such shrgreriod the
the registrant was required to submit and post §iled).

O Yes O No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquéitdrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulatio-K is not contained herein, and will not
contained, to the best of the registrarkhowledge, in definitive proxy or information tments incorporated by reference in Part 11l af
Form 1(-K or any amendment to this Form-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer, or a smaller report
company. See the definitions of “large accelerdiled,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingpmpany” in Rule 1212 of the Exchang
Act. (Check one)

Large accelerated file O Accelerated file

Non-accelerated file O (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule -2 of the Exchange Act

O Yes ™ No



State the aggregate market value of the votingnamdvoting common equity held by naiffiliates computed by reference to the price aich
the common equity was last sold, or the averageabilasked price of such common equity, as ofakedusiness day of the registrantios
recentlycompleted second fiscal quart
Approximately $198.96 million based on the clossades price at June 30, 20
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&thearegistrar's classes of common stock, as of the latest pedatéaate
Class- Common Stock, $1.00 Par Value; 17,868,673 sharesamding as of March 1, 201

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the annual mgeif shareholders to be held on April 26, 20X#, iacorporated by reference in Part Il
this Form 1-K.




Iltem 1.
Iltem 1A.
Item 1B.
Iltem 2.
Iltem 3.
Item 4.

Iltem 5.
Iltem 6.
Item 7.
Iltem 7A.
Iltem 8.
Iltem 9.
Iltem 9A.
Item 9B.

Item 10.
Item 11.
Iltem 12.
Item 13
Item 14.

Item 15.

Table of Contents

Part |

Business

Risk Factors

Unresolved Staff Commen
Properties

Legal Proceeding
Reservec

Part 1l

Market for Registrar s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters asddsPurchases of Equity Securit
Selected Financial Da

Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk

Financial Statements and Supplementary [

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants modaing and Financial Disclosu

Controls and Procedur

Other Informatior

Part Ill

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goveoe

Executive Compensatic

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dMahagement and Related Stockholder Mat
Certain Relationships and Related TransactionsDarattor Independenc

Principal Accounting Fees and Servi

Part IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedt
Signature:

Page

12
19
19
19

19
22
24
46
48

98
98

98
10C
10C
101
101

101
104




PART |
ITEM 1. Business
Corporate Overview

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Companig”a financial holding company incorporated in thiate of Nevada and serves as
holding company for First Community Bank, N. A.€tfBank”). The Company also owns GreenPoint InsceaGroup, Inc. (“GreenPoint”3,
full-service insurance agency. The Bank owns Itmest Planning Consultants (“IPC”), an investmehtisory firm.

The Companys banking operations are expected to remain tmeipal business and major source of revenue foCirapany. The Compa
also considers and evaluates options for growth exghnsion of the existing subsidiary banking opena. Although the Company is
corporate entity, legally separate and distinatfiics affiliates, bank holding companies, suchhes@ompany, are required to act as a soul
financial strength for their subsidiary banks. Thacipal source of the Comparsyincome is dividends from the Bank. Dividend pawitaehy
the Bank are determined in relation to earningsetagrowth, and capital position and are subjecettain restrictions by regulatory agencie
described more fully under “Regulation and Supéovis- The Bank” of this item.

Business Overview

Through its subsidiaries, the Company offers coneiakland consumer banking services and productsyedisas wealth management
insurance services. Those products and servicagdim the following:

« demand deposit accounts, savings and money mar&etiats, certificates of deposit, and individuaireenent arrangements
« commercial, consumer, real estate mortgage loadslirres of credi

» various debit card and automated teller machine sarvice:

« corporate and personal trust servi

« investment management servis

« life, health, and property and casualty insurarroelgcts

The Company provides financial services and corsdbetnking operations within the states of Virgirfdest Virginia, North and Sot
Carolina, and Tennessee. The Company serves eseicastomer base consisting of individual consenaeid a wide variety of industri
including, among others, manufacturing, mining,ve®s, construction, retail, healthcare, militanydatransportation. The Company is
dependent upon any single industry or customer. Chmpany had total consolidated assets of $2.dibrbiat December 31, 2010, ¢
conducts its banking operations through fifty-seleations.

Operating Segments

The Companys operations are managed along two reportable éssisegments consisting of community banking asdrémce services. £
Note 19— Segment Information in the Notes to the Constdiddinancial Statements included in ltem 8 hereof.

Competition

There is significant competition among banks in @@mmpanys market areas. In addition, the Company also ctespeith other providers
financial services, such as thrifts, savings anahla@associations, credit unions, consumer financapamies, securities firms, insura
companies, insurance agencies, commercial finanddemsing companies, full service brokerage firamg] discount brokerage firms. Som
the Companys competitors have greater resources and, as sumh,have higher lending limits and may offer otkervices that are r
provided by the Company. See “Management’s Disoausand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaft®©perations -Executive Overvie
— Competition” in Item 7 hereof.

Employees

The Company and its subsidiaries employed 683tifukk equivalent employees at December 31, 2010.agament considers emplo
relations to be excellent.




Regulation and Supervision
General

The supervision and regulation of the Company aadsubsidiaries by the banking agencies is intengi@darily for the protection
depositors, the Deposit Insurance Fund (“DIF")he Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDI@Md the banking system as a whole,
not for the protection of stockholders or creditdrge banking agencies have broad enforcement povegrbank holding companies and ba
including the power to impose substantial fines atier penalties for violations of laws and regolas.

The following description summarizes some of theslégo which the Company and the Bank are subjegfer@nces in the following descript
to applicable statutes and regulations are brigfrsaries of these statutes and regulations, do urpiopt to be complete, and are qualifie
their entirety by reference to such statutes agdlations. A change in statutes, regulations oulagry policies applicable to the Company
its subsidiaries could have a material effect @nlthsiness of the Company.

Dodd-Frank Act

On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refamd Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Aetgs signed into law. The Dodd-
Frank Act will likely result in dramatic changesrass the financial regulatory system, some of witebome effective immediately and sc
of which will not become effective until varioustfue dates. Implementation of the Doeicknk Act will require many new rules to be mad
various federal regulatory agencies over the nexéal years. Uncertainty remains until final ruédamg is complete as to the ultimate im)
of the Dodd-Frank Act, which could have a mategdlerse impact either on the financial servicesusiny as a whole or on the Bask’
business, results of operations, and financial itimmd Provisions in the legislation that affecipdsit insurance assessments, payment of in
on demand deposits, and interchange fees coulédeerthe costs associated with deposits and phatations on certain revenues th
deposits may generate. The Dodd-Frank Act inclydesisions that, among other things, will:

- Centralize responsibility for consumer financiabtection by creating a new agency, the Bureau afsGmer Financial Protecti
(“CFPB"), responsible for implementing, examining, and erifggaccompliance with federal consumer financial laws addition, th
Dodd+rank Act permits states to adopt consumer prateddws and regulations that are stricter thandhegulations promulgated
the CFPB

« Create the Financial Stability Oversight Councdttivill recommend to the Federal Reserve Boardemsingly strict rules for capit
leverage, liquidity, risk management and other iregoients as companies grow in size and comple

« Provide mortgage reform provisions regarding aamst's ability to repay, restricting varial-rate lending by requiring that the abi
to repay variable-rate loans be determined by ugiagmaximum rate that will apply during the fifste years of a variableate loal
term, and making more loans subject to provisiamnsigher cost loans, new disclosures, and cedilier revisions

« Change the assessment base for federal deposiimsufrom the amount of insured deposits to cade@d assets less tangible caf
eliminate the ceiling on the size of the DIF, andréase the floor on the size of the DIF, whichegalty will require an increase in 1
level of assessments for institutions with assetxicess of $10 billior

« Make permanent the $250 thousand limit for feddegdosit insurance and provide unlimited federalodépnsurance until January
2013, for nonintere-bearing demand transaction accounts at all insdepdsitory institutions

« Restrict the preemption of state law by federal Eavd disallow subsidiaries and affiliates of nasilbhanks, such as the Bank, fi
availing themselves of such preempti

« Require the Office of the Comptroller of the Cuerfthe “OCC”)to seek to make its capital requirements for nafitbanks, such
the Bank, countercyclical so that capital requireteeincrease in times of economic expansion andedse in times of econon
contraction,

« Require financial holding companies, such as the@my, to be well capitalized and well managedfakity 21, 2011. Bank holdit
companies and banks must also be both well ca@thiind well managed in order to acquire banksddoautside their home sta

« Mandate certain corporate governance and execotingensation matters be implemented, includingi)advisory vote on execut
compensation by a public compasystockholders; (i) enhancement of independencgiimements for compensation commi
members; (iii) adoption of incentiveased compensation clawback policies for execudffieers; and (iv) adoption of proxy acc
rules allowing stockholders of publicly traded canfes to nominate candidates for election as atdireand have those nomin
included in a company's proxy materiz




« Repeal the federal prohibitions on the paymenthtdrest on demand deposits, thereby permitting sigpg institutions to pay intere
on business transactions accou

« Amend the Electronic Fund Transfer Act to, amonigeotthings, give the Federal Reserve the authtuoitgstablish rules regardi
interchange fees charged for electronic debit &etisns by payment card issuers having assets@i@billion and to enforce a ni
statutory requirement that such fees be reasomalg@roportional to the actual cost of a transadiiothe issuel

Many aspects of the Dodelank Act are subject to rulemaking and will takeet over several years, making it difficult totmipate the overe
financial impact on the Company, its customersher financial industry more generally. Some of thkes that have been proposed an
some cases, adopted to comply with the Dodd-Frattls Anandates are discussed below

The Company

The Company is a financial holding company pursuarthe Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (“GLB Act"and a bank holding company registe
under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amedn(“BHCA”"). Accordingly, the Company is subject to supervisimygulation an
examination by the Board of Governors of the FddReserve System (“Federal Reserve Boartlle BHCA, the GLB Act, and other fede
laws subject financial and bank holding compariesarticular restrictions on the types of actitie which they may engage, and to a rani
supervisory requirements and activities, includiagulatory enforcement actions for violations ofi$aand regulations. The BHCA gener
provides for “umbrella’regulation of financial holding companies, suchtlas Company, by the Federal Reserve Board, andufartiona
regulation of banking activities by bank regulaj@scurities activities by securities regulatorg] msurance activities by insurance regulators.

Regulatory Restrictions on Dividends; Source oéi&gth. It is the policy of the Federal Reserve Board tenk holding companies should
cash dividends on common stock only from incomdlabke over the past year and only if prospecti@en@gs retention is consistent with
organizations expected future needs and financial conditiore pblicy provides that bank holding companies sthawdt maintain a level
cash dividends that undermines the bank holdingoemy's ability to serve as a source of strengtitstbanking subsidiaries.

Under Federal Reserve Board policy, a bank holdiompany is expected to act as a source of finarstiahgth to each of its bank
subsidiaries and commit resources to their suppbe. DoddFrank Act codified this policy as a statutory requient. Under this requireme
the Company is expected to commit resources tostipipe Bank, including at times when the Comparay mot be in a financial position
provide such resources. As discussed below, a baltkng company in certain circumstances coulddsgiired to guarantee the capital pla
an undercapitalized banking subsidiary.

Scope of Permissible Activitiet¥/nder the BHCA, bank holding companies genenallyy not acquire a direct or indirect interest ircontrol o
more than 5% of the voting shares of any compaay i not a bank or bank holding company or engagactivities other than those
banking, managing or controlling banks or furnighservices to or performing services for its suidsids, except that it may engage in, dire
or indirectly, certain activities that the FedeRalserve Board determined to be closely relatecgikibg or managing and controlling bank
to be a proper incident thereto.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the GLB Act elimiadtthe barriers to affiliations among banks, séiesriirms, insurance companies and ¢
financial service providers and permits bank haldicompanies to become financial holding companied thereby affiliate wit
securities firms and insurance companies and enigagfher activities that are financial in natuféie GLB Act defines “financial in natured
include securities underwriting, dealing and manketking; sponsoring mutual funds and investmentpaoies; insurance underwriting
agency; merchant banking activities and activitied the Federal Reserve Board has determined ¢tobely related to banking. No regulat
approval is generally required for a financial hotd company to acquire a company, other than a lmaindavings association, engage
activities that are financial in nature or incidanb activities that are financial in nature, asedmined by the Federal Reserve Board.

Under the GLB Act, a bank holding company may bee@nfinancial holding company by filing a declapatiwith the Federal Reserve Boat
each of its subsidiary banks is well-capitalizediemthe Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Ingmeent Act of 1991 (“FDICIA"promp
corrective action provisions, is well managed and ht least a satisfactory rating under the ComtypiReinvestment Act of 1977 (“CRA”
The Company elected financial holding company statuDecember 2006. Beginning in July 2011, the gamy’s financial holding compal
status will also depend upon it maintaining itstitaas “well capitalized” and “well managedhder applicable Federal Reserve B
regulations. If a financial holding company ceasemeet these requirements, the Federal ReseraelBoay impose corrective capital an
managerial requirements on the financial holdinghpany and place limitations on its ability to condithe broader financial activiti
permissible for financial holding companies. Indiidn, the Federal Reserve Board may require dives of the holding company’
depository institutions if the deficiencies persist




Anti-Tying RestrictionsBank holding companies and their affiliates arehfisited from tying the provision of certain serdcesuch &
extensions of credit, to other services offerecIolding company or its affiliates.

Stock RepurchaseA. bank holding company is required to give the FablReserve Board prior notice of any redemptiomepurchase of i
own equity securities, if the consideration to laédptogether with the consideration paid for aggurchases or redemptions in the prece
year, is equal to 10% or more of the com[’s consolidated net worth. The Federal Reserve Boaydoppose the transaction if it believes
the transaction would constitute an unsafe or umdquactice or would violate any law or regulation.

Capital Adequacy RequirementsThe Federal Reserve Board has promulgated caguadjuacy guidelines for use in its examination
supervision of bank holding companies. If a bankding company$ capital falls below minimum required levels, thidwe bank holdin
company must implement a plan to increase its &hpitd its ability to pay dividends, or making aisifions of new banks or engaging
certain other activities such as issuing brokemgbdits may be restricted or prohibited.

The Federal Reserve Board currently uses two tybesapital adequacy guidelines for holding companig two-tiered rislased capit
guideline and a leverage capital ratio guidelinikee Two-tiered risk-based capital guideline assiggls weightings to all assets and certain off-
balance sheet items of the holding company’s opergtand then establishes a minimum ratio of thidihg companys Tier 1 capital to tt
aggregate dollar amount of riskeighted assets (which amount is usually less thanaggregate dollar amount of such assets wittisk
weighting) and a minimum ratio of the holding compa total capital (Tier 1 capital plus Tier 2 capita$ adjusted) to the aggregate d
amount of such risk-weighted assets. The leveratye guideline establishes a minimum ratio of to&lmg companys Tier 1 capital to its tot
tangible assets (total assets less goodwill artdiogdentifiable intangibles), without risk-weiging.

Under both guidelines, Tier 1 capital is definedinclude: common shareholders’ equity (includingaieed earnings), qualifying non-
cumulative perpetual preferred stock and relateglss, qualifying cumulative perpetual preferredciét and related surplus, trust prefe
securities, and minority interests in the equitgamts of consolidated subsidiaries (limited to @axmum of 25% of Tier 1 capital). Goodv
and most intangible assets are deducted from Teapltal. For purposes of the total risksed capital guidelines, Tier 2 capital (somet
referred to as “supplementary capitai8)defined to include: (subject to limitations),rpetual preferred stock not included in Tier 1 &alj
intermediateterm preferred stock and any related surplus, iceftgbrid capital instruments, perpetual debt arehdatory convertible de
securities, allowances for loan and lease losses,irtermediatéerm subordinated debt instruments (subject totdititins). The maximu
amount of qualifying Tier 2 capital is 100% of qgéghg Tier 1 capital. For purposes of the totapital guideline, total capital equals Tie
capital, plus qualifying Tier 2 capital, minus istments in unconsolidated subsidiaries, reciprbotdings of bank holding company car
securities, and deferred tax assets and other tledsicThe Federal Reserve Boardurrent capital adequacy guidelines require ghbaan|
holding company maintain a Tier 1 risk-based cépitdio of at least 4.00% and a total risksed capital ratio of at least 8.00%.
December 31, 2010, the Company’s ratio of Tier ditehto total risk-weighted assets was 14.07% igsdatio of total capital to riskveightec
assets was 15.33%.

In addition to the rislbased capital guidelines, the Federal Reserve Based a leverage ratio as an additional tool tduate the capiti
adequacy of bank holding companies. The leveratije icaa company Tier 1 capital divided by its average total cdidsted assets. Cert:
highly rated bank holding companies may maintaimiaimum leverage ratio of 3.00%, but other bankdim@l companies are required
maintain a leverage ratio of 4.00% or more, depandin their overall condition. At December 31, @0the Company leverage ratio w.
9.44%.

The federal banking agencies’ risksed and leverage ratios are minimum supervisdiysrgenerally applicable to banking organizatithra
meet certain specified criteria, assuming that thaye the highest regulatory rating. Banking orgatidns not meeting these criteria
expected to operate with capital positions welhabtihe minimum ratios. The federal bank regulatggncies may set capital requirement
a particular banking organization that are higlamntthe minimum ratios when circumstances warféederal Reserve Board guidelines
provide that banking organizations experiencingrimal growth or making acquisitions will be expecte maintain strong capital positic
substantially above the minimum supervisory lewsithout significant reliance on intangible assets.

The current riskbased capital guidelines that apply to the Compard/the Bank are based on the 1988 capital acddia dnternational Bas
Committee on Banking Supervision, a committee oftreé banks and bank supervisors, as implementetidyederal Reserve Board and
OCC. In 2004, the Basel Committee published a oapital accord, which is referred to as “Basel b, teplace Basel I. Basel Il provides 1
approaches for setting capital standards for creskit an internal ratings-based approach taildoehdividual institutions'circumstances anc
standardized approach that bases risk weightingsxtarnal credit assessments to a much greatentetki@n permitted in existing ridkase!
capital guidelines, which became effective in 2@@8large or “core”international banks (total assets of $250 billiemmre or consolidatt
foreign exposures of $10 billion or more). OthelSUbanking organizations can elect to adopt theirements of this rule (if they me
applicable qualification requirements), but theg aot required to apply them. Basel Il emphasirternal assessment of credit, market
operational risk, as well as supervisory assessarahimarket discipline in determining minimum capiequirements.




In December 2010 and January 2011, the Basel Cdeerpublished the final texts of reforms on capatadl liquidity, which is referred to
“Basel lll.” Although Basel Il is intended to be implementeddayticipating countries for large, internationadigtive banks, its provisions i
likely to be considered by United States bankirgutators in developing new regulations applicablether banks in the United States. B
[l will require bank holding companies and theank subsidiaries to maintain substantially moretagpwith a greater emphasis on comtr
equity. The implementation of the Basel Il fifedmework will commence January 1, 2013. On th#t daanking institutions will be requir
to meet the following minimum capital ratios: (6% Common Equity Tier 1 (generally consisting ofranon shares and retained earning
risk-weighted assets; (ii) 4.5% Tier 1 capitaliskfweighted assets; and (iii) 8.0% Total capitatisk-weighted assets.

When fully phased-in on January 1, 2019, and iflemgnted by the U.S. banking agencies, Basel llirequire banks to maintain:

« aminimum ratio of Common Equity Tier 1 to risk-gkted assets of at least 4.5%, plus a 2.5% “capitadervation buffer,”
« aminimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weightadsets of at least 6.0%, plus the capital condervhatffer,
- aminimum ratio of Total capital to risk-weighteskats of at least 8.0%, plus the capital consenvdiffer, and

« a minimum leverage ratio of 3%, calculated as ttgorof Tier 1 capital to balance sheet exposultas pertain offealance she
exposures

Basel Ill also includes the following significgarovisions:

. An additional countercyclical capital buffer to meposed by applicable national banking regulatasaglically at their discretio
with advance notice

. Restrictions on capital distributions and discnegicy bonuses applicable when capital ratios fatiwithe buffer zone

. Deduction from common equity of deferred tax asgesdepend on future profitability to be realiz

. For capital instruments issued on or after Jand&y2013 (other than common equity), a labsorbency requirement that

instrument must be written off or converted to conmnequity if a triggering event occurs, either pargt to applicable law or at 1
direction of the banking regulator. A triggeringeat is an event that would cause the banking égzgtion to become nonviat
without the writ-off or conversion, or without an injection of cagifrom the public secto

Since the Basel Ill framework is not selfecuting, the rules and standards promulgatedruBasel 11l require that the U.S. federal banl
regulators adopt them prior to becoming effectivéhie U.S. Although U.S. federal banking regulatuave expressed support for Basel IlI
timing and scope of its implementation, as welhag potential modifications or adjustments that mesult during the implementation proc
are not yet known.

In addition to Basel Ill, the Dodd-Frank Act recgsror permits the federal banking agencies to aggptlations affecting banking institutions’
capital requirements in a number of respects, dioty potentially more stringent capital requirensefdgr systemically important financ
institutions. The Dodd-Frank Act requires the FatiReserve Board, the OCC and the FDIC to adaptlagions imposing a continuing “floor”
of the Basel I-based capital requirements in cadese the Basel Ibased capital requirements and any changes inatapgulations resultir
from Basel Ill otherwise would permit lower requitents. In December 2010, the Federal Reserve BthardCC and the FDIC issued a j
notice of proposed rulemaking that would implentéig requirement.

Acquisitions by Bank Holding Compan. The BHCA requires every bank holding companglitain the prior approval of the Federal Res
Board before it may acquire all or substantiallycdiithe assets of any bank, or ownership or cémtf@ny voting shares of any bank, if a
such acquisition it would own or control, directly indirectly, more than 5% of the voting sharesw€h bank. In approving bank acquisiti
by bank holding companies, the Federal ReservedBigaequired to consider the financial and managezsources and future prospects o
bank holding company and the banks concerned,aheenience and needs of the communities to be deavel various competitive factors.

Incentive Compensatio. In June 2010, the Federal Reserve Board, the @@ the FDIC issued their final guidance on inve
compensation policies intended to ensure thatrhbentive compensation policies of banking orgaionat do not undermine the safety
soundness of such organizations by encouragingssixeerisk taking. The final guidance,, which asvell employees that have the abilit
materially affect the risk profile of an organizatj is based upon the key principles that a bankirganization$ incentive compensati
arrangements should (i) provide incentives thahaloencourage risk taking beyond the organizasiatuility to effectively identify and mane
risks, (ii) be compatible with effective internadrdrols and risk management, and (iii) be suppoltedtrong corporate governance, inclut
active and effective oversight by the organizatdnoard of directors. The Federal Reserve Boarndatet that all banking organizations ar
evaluate their incentive compensation arrangenardselated risk management, controls, and corpg@iernance processes and immedi
address deficiencies in these arrangements or ggesehat are inconsistent with safety and sousdnes




The Federal Reserve Board will review, as parthef tregular, riskecused examination process, the incentive compiemsarrangements
banking organizations, such as the Company, ttatnat “large, complex banking organization3fiese reviews will be tailored to ei
organization based on the scope and complexitiebtganizatiors activities and the prevalence of incentive corspgan arrangements. T
findings of the supervisory initiatives will be Inded in reports of examination. Deficiencies Wik incorporated into the organizatien’
supervisory ratings, which can affect the orgaimzas ability to make acquisitions and take other agtidEnforcement actions may be te
against a banking organization if its incentive pemsation arrangements, or related risk managecogtitol or governance processes, pc
risk to the organization’s safety and soundnesslamarganization is not taking prompt and effextiweasures to correct the deficiencies.

In February 2011, the Federal Reserve Board, th€ @@ the FDIC approved a joint proposed rulemakingnplement Section 956 of 1
Dodd-Frank Act, which prohibits incentideased compensation arrangements that encouragprapaiate risk taking by covered financ
institutions and are deemed to be excessive, omihg lead to material losses.

The scope and content of the U.S. banking regidapmlicies on executive compensation are continuindevelop and are likely to contir
evolving in the near future. It cannot be deterrdira this time whether compliance with such poficiell adversely affect the Compansy’
ability to hire, retain and motivate its key emesg.

The Bank

The Bank is a national association and is subgesupervision and regulation by the OCC. Sincedigosits of the Bank are insured by
FDIC, the Bank is also subject to supervision amgutation by the FDIC. Because the Federal ResBoard regulates the Company,
because the Bank is a member of the Federal ReSgstem, the Federal Reserve Board also has regukatthority which directly affects t
Bank.

Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates anditters. Transactions between the Bank and its nonbangudggidiaries and/or affiliate
including the Company, are subject to Section 284he Federal Reserve Act. In general, Section B88oses limits on the amount of s
transactions, and also requires certain levelsobifteral for loans to affiliated parties. It alimits the amount of advances to third pa
which are collateralized by the securities or ddtiigns of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Affiliate transactions are also subject to Secfi8B of the Federal Reserve Act which generally isguthat certain transactions betweer
Bank and its affiliates be on terms substantidily same, or at least as favorable to the Baniasetprevailing at the time for compar:
transactions with or involving other nonaffiliatpdrsons. The Federal Reserve Board has issuedd@egWV which codifies prior regulatio
under Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Resectard interpretive guidance with respect to affditransactions.

The DoddFrank Act generally enhances the restrictions ansactions with affiliates under Sections 23A a8B &f the Federal Reserve A
including an expansion of the definition of “coveérgansactions’and an increase in the amount of time for whicHatetal requiremen
regarding covered credit transactions must befiatidnsider transaction limitations are expantt@dugh the strengthening of loan restrict
to insiders and the expansion of the types of &eati@ns subject to the various limits, includingidatives transactions, repurchase agreen
reverse repurchase agreements and securities ¢eadlorrowing transactions. Restrictions are @lsgsed on certain asset sales to and fro
insider to an institution, including requiremeritsitt such sales be on market terms and, in certiaunestances, approved by the instituti
board of directors.

The restrictions on loans to directors, executiffec@rs, principal shareholders and their relateériests contained in the Federal Reserve
and Regulation O apply to all insured instituti@msl their subsidiaries and holding companies. Thesteictions include limits on loans to «
borrower and conditions that must be met befordn sutban can be made. There is also an aggregaitation on all loans to such persc
These loans cannot exceed the instituidotal unimpaired capital and surplus, and theG-Bly determine that a lesser amount is approg

Restrictions on Distribution of Subsidiary Bank idends and Asse. Dividends paid by the Bank have provided the Canyfs operatin
funds and for the foreseeable future it is anti@gahat dividends paid by the Bank to the Compaitlycontinue to be the Compars/priman
source of operating funds.




Capital adequacy requirements of the OCC limitatrount of dividends that may be paid by the Barile Bank cannot pay a dividend if, a
paying the dividend, it would be classified as “arahpitalized.” See “Regulation and Supervision ke TBank —Capital Adequac
Requirements” for information on the capital requients applicable to the Bank. In addition, withihhe OCCS approval, dividends may 1
be paid by the Bank in an amount in any calendar wich exceeds its total net profits for thatrygdus its retained profits for the precec
two years, less any required transfers to capitgllss. National banks also may not pay dividemdexcess of total retained profits, incluc
current yeass earnings after deducting bad debts in excesssefves for loan losses. In some cases, the OCQGintba dividend payment tt
meets these statutory requirements to be an uwesafasound practice. As a result of securities impants and a special dividend from
Bank in 2008, the Bank is limited as to the dividerit can pay. Accordingly, the Bank would neednssion from the OCC prior to payi
dividends through approximately December 31, 2011.

Because the Company is a legal entity separatedesticict from its subsidiaries, its right to paipiate in the distribution of assets of .
subsidiary upon the subsidiary’s liquidation orrgamization will be subject to the prior claimsthg subsidians creditors. In the event
liquidation or other resolution of an insured defmyy institution, the claims of depositors and etlgeneral or subordinated creditors
entitled to a priority of payment over the clainfshmlders of any obligation of the institution tts ishareholders, including any deposi
institution holding company or any shareholderredior thereof.

Examinations. Under the FDICIA, all insured institutions musidergo regular osite examination by their appropriate banking agesmx
such agency may assess the institution for itssaafstonducting the examination. The OCC periotiloaxamines and evaluates national be
such as the Bank. These examinations review areds as capital adequacy, reserves, loan portfaladity and management, consumer
other compliance issues, investments, informatistesns, disaster recovery and contingency planaimymanagement practices. Based
such an evaluation, the OCC may revalue the as$etsbank and require that it establish specifserees to compensate for the differe
between the OCC determined value and the book \lsech assets.

Capital Adequacy Requirement§he OCC has adopted regulations establishingnmim requirements for the capital adequacy of ird
national banks. The OCC may establish higher minimequirements if, for example, a bank has preWoreceived special attention or he
high susceptibility to interest rate risk.

The OCC'’s risk-based capital guidelines generatyuire national banks to have a minimum ratio @ Tl capital to total riskveighted asse
of 4.00% and a ratio of total capital to total riskighted assets of 8.00%. The capital categories tiee same definitions for the Bank as
the Company. See “Regulation and Supervision —Cbmpany — Capital Adequacy Requiremerfts” additional information on the capi
requirements applicable to the Bank. In 2010, tl&CAssued an Individual Minimum Capital Ratio diree (“IMCR”) to the Bank whic
requires it to maintain a total risk-based capitdlo of 11.50% and a Tier 1 ridglased capital ratio of 10.00%. At December 31, 20Hh¢
Bank’s ratio of Tier 1 capital to total risk-weigt assets was 12.92% and its ratio of total cajaitedtal risk-weighted assets was 14.18%.

The OCCS leverage guidelines require national banks totaed Tier 1 capital of no less than 4.00% of agertotal assets, except in the
of certain highly rated banks for which the reqmiemt is 3.00% of average total assets. As patittedOCC5s IMCR, the Bank is required
maintain a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 7.50%. At Debem31, 2010, the Bank’s leverage ratio was 8.66%.

Corrective Measures for Capital DeficiencieFhe federal banking regulators are required ke tgprompt corrective actionivith respect t
capital-deficient institutions. Agency regulatiodsfine, for each capital category, the levels aictvhinstitutions are “well-capitalized,”
“adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “sificantly undercapitalized” and “critically undengigalized.” A “well-capitalized”institutior
has a total risk-based capital ratio of 10.0% ghhbi; a Tier 1 rislbased capital ratio of 6.0% or higher; a leveradm rof 5.0% or higher; ai
is not subject to any written agreement, orderiative requiring it to maintain a specific capievel for any capital measure. Aadequatel
capitalized” institution has a total risk-baseditapatio of 8.0% or higher; a Tier 1 riddased capital ratio of 4.0% or higher; a leveragi® 101
4.0% or higher (3.0% or higher if the bank was dagecomposite 1 in its most recent examination ntepiod is not experiencing significi
growth); and does not meet the criteria for a walpitalized bank. An “undercapitalized” institutiblas a total riskbbased capital ratio that
less than 8.0%; a Tier 1 risk-based capital rafidess than 4.0% or a leverage ratio of less th@364 A “significantly undercapitalized”
institution has a total risk-based capital ratidesfs than 6.0%; a Tier 1 risglased capital ratio of less than 3.0% or a leveratie of less the
3.0%. A “critically undercapitalized” institutioa’tangible equity is equal to or less than 2.0%wefrage quarterly tangible assets. An institt
may be downgraded to, or deemed to be in, a caggtafjory that is lower than indicated by its capiatios if it is determined to be in an un:
or unsound condition or if it receives an unsatisfey examination rating with respect to certaintters. A banks capital category
determined solely for the purpose of applying promgrrective action regulations, and the capitdegary may not constitute an accu
representation of the bank’s overall financial dtod or prospects for other purposes. The Bank wlassified as “well-capitalizedfor
purposes of the FDIC’s prompt corrective actiorutagion as of December 31, 2010.




In addition to requiring undercapitalized instituts to submit a capital restoration plan, agengylegions contain broad restrictions on cel
activities of undercapitalized institutions incladiasset growth, acquisitions, branch establishrapdtexpansion into new lines of busin
With certain exceptions, an insured depositoryitimson is prohibited from making capital distritianhs, including dividends, and is prohibi
from paying management fees to control persorifristitution would be undercapitalized after angh distribution or payment.

As an institution’s capital decreases, the federgililators’enforcement powers become more severe. A significandercapitalized institutic
is subject to mandated capital raising activitiestrictions on interest rates paid and transastioith affiliates, removal of management
other restrictions. The FDIC has limited discretinrdealing with a critically undercapitalized iitstion and is generally required to appoi
receiver or conservator. Similarly, within 90 dayfsa national bank becoming critically undercajited, the OCC must appoint a receive
conservator unless certain findings are made \eipect to the institution’s continued viability.

Banks with riskbased capital and leverage ratios below the redjum@imums may also be subject to certain admaisi actions, includir
the termination of deposit insurance upon noticd bBearing, or a temporary suspension of insuraniteout a hearing in the event
institution has no tangible capital.

Deposit Insurance AssessmerThe Banks deposits are insured up to applicable limits ly DIF of the FDIC and are subject to deg
insurance assessments to maintain the DIF. Cuyréml FDIC utilizes a riskased assessment system to evaluate the risk bffieancia
institution based on three primary sources of imiation: (1) its supervisory rating, (2) its finaalcratios, and (3) its longerm debt issu
rating, if the institution has one. The FD#hitial base assessment schedule can be adjugted down, and premiums for 2010 ranged 1
12 basis points in the lowest risk category to d8idbpoints for banks in the highest risk category.

The Dodd-Frank Act requires the FDIC to increase DF’s reserves against future losses, which will né@esincreased deposit insura
premiums that are to be borne primarily by insidtas with assets of greater than $10 billion. letaber 2010, the FDIC addressed plar
bolster the DIF by increasing the required reseati® for the industry to 1.35 percent (ratio o$eeves to insured deposits) by Septembe
2020, as required by the Dod@idank Act. The FDIC also proposed to raise its stdutarget ratio of reserves to insured deposi® percent, €
basis points above the statutory minimum.

In February 2011, the FDIC adopted new rules timatrad its current deposit insurance assessmentateangd. The new rules implemer
provision in the Dodd~=rank Act that changes the assessment base fositl@murance premiums from one based on domestiosits to or
based on average consolidated total assets mirerages tangible equity. The rules also change tkesament rate schedules for ins
depository institutions so that approximately tlaene amount of revenue would be collected undemthe assessment base as woul
collected under the current rate schedule andahedules previously proposed by the FDIC in Oct@840. In addition, the new rules rey
the riskbased assessment system for large insured deposititutions (generally, institutions with at &a$10 billion in total assets) &
“highly complex”institutions by requiring that the FDIC use a scard method to calculate assessment rates fandllisstitutions. The Bal
will not be deemed a “highly complex” institutioarfthese purposes.

Under the new rules, the FDIC set initial base sssent rates from 5 basis points in the lowestaakgory to 35 basis points for banks ir
higher risk category, which are effective April2011. The Company cannot provide any assuranaetas smount of any proposed increa:s
its deposit insurance premium rate, as such chargedependent upon a variety of factors, somehidlware beyond the Company’s control.

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as amelftted “FDIA”),, the FDIC may terminate deposit insurance upon dirfgn that th
institution has engaged in unsafe and unsound ipeactis in an unsafe or unsound condition to comioperations, or has violated
applicable law, regulation, rule, order or conditimposed by the FDIC.

Safety and Soundness Standardghe FDIA, requires the federal bank regulataygrecies to prescribe standards, by regulationsiimletines
relating to internal controls, information systeamsl internal audit systems, loan documentatiordictmderwriting, interest rate risk exposi
asset growth, asset quality, earnings, stock vialuand compensation, fees and benefits, and siingh operational and managerial stand
as the agencies deem appropriate. Guidelines atidyytéhe federal bank regulatory agencies estalglisteral standards relating to inte
controls and information systems, internal auditesns, loan documentation, credit underwritingenest rate exposure, asset growth
compensation, fees and benefits. In general, tideljoes require, among other things, appropriggtesns and practices to identify and mau
the risk and exposures specified in the guidelifd® guidelines prohibit excessive compensatiorarasinsafe and unsound practice
describe compensation as excessive when the ampaittsare unreasonable or disproportionate to émeices performed by an execu
officer, employee, director or principal stockhaldie addition, the agencies adopted regulations aluthorize, but do not require, an agen:
order an institution that has been given noticeahyagency that it is not satisfying any of sucketsaind soundness standards to sub
compliance plan. If, after being so notified, astitution fails to submit an acceptable compliapten or fails in any material respeci
implement an acceptable compliance plan, the agensst issue an order directing action to correet deficiency and may issue an ol
directing other actions of the types to which adamcapitalized institution is subject under theofppt corrective actionprovisions of FDIA
See “Corrective Measures for Capital Deficienciabdve. If an institution fails to comply with suah order, the agency may seek to ent
such order in judicial proceedings and to imposé nioney penalties.
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Enforcement Power. The FDIC and the other federal banking agencaeetbroad enforcement powers, including the poweetminat
deposit insurance, impose substantial fines andrativil and criminal penalties and appoint a cona®®r or receiver. Failure to comply w
applicable laws, regulations and supervisory agesgscould subject the Company or the Bank, as albfficers, directors and ot
institution-affiliated parties of these organizations, to adstiative sanctions and potentially substantiail choney penalties. The appropri
federal banking agency may appoint the FDIC aseawasor or receiver for a banking institution (betFDIC may appoint itself, under cert
circumstances) if any one or more of a number ofuonstances exist, including, without limitatiohgtfact that the banking institution
undercapitalized and has no reasonable prospdxeaniming adequately capitalized; fails to becormexjadtely capitalized when required tc
so; fails to submit a timely and acceptable capéatoration plan; or materially fails to implemamt accepted capital restoration plan.

Consumer Laws and Regulationi® addition to the laws and regulations discudsein, the Bank is also subject to certain corsuaws an
regulations that are designed to protect consuinetimnsactions with banks. While the list set lioherein is not exhaustive, these laws
regulations include the Truth in Lending Act, threifh in Savings Act, the Electronic Funds Trangfet, the Expedited Funds Availability A
the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, and the Fair HaogsAct, and various state counterparts. These laad regulations mandate cer
disclosure requirements and regulate the mannehiah financial institutions must deal with custas@hen taking deposits or making lo
to such customers. The Bank must comply with theliegble provisions of these consumer protectiomsland regulations as part of tt
ongoing customer relations.

In addition, federal law currently contains exteestustomer privacy protection provisions. Undesthprovisions, a financial institution
provide to its customers, at the inception of thsteamer relationship and annually thereafter, tiséitution’s policies and procedures regarc
the handling of customersonpublic personal financial information. Thesevismns also provide that, except for certain leditexceptions,
financial institution may not provide such persoimdibrmation to unaffiliated third parties unlesgetinstitution discloses to the customer
such information may be so provided and the custasngiven the opportunity to opt out of such distire.

USA PATRIOT Act of 200Ithe Uniting and Strengthening America by Providigpropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obg
Terrorism Act of 2001 (“Patriot Act”) was enacted ©October 2001. The Patriot Act has broadenediegistntimoney laundering legislati
while imposing new compliance and due diligencegattions on banks and other financial institutiomigth a particular focus on detecting i
reporting money laundering transactions involvirgmestic or international customers. The U.S. Treafepartment has issued and
continue to issue regulations clarifying the Pat#iot’s requirements. The Patriot Act requires“fiancial institutions,”as defined, to establi
\certain antimoney laundering compliance and due diligence puogr Recently, the regulatory agencies have irfiedsiheir examinatic
procedures in light of the Patriot Act’'s amtieney laundering and Bank Secrecy Act requiremdrite. Company believes that its controls
procedures were in compliance with the Patriot@scof December 31, 2010.

Participation in the Troubled Asset Relief ProgramCapital Purchase Program

On November 21, 2008, the Company issued and edliktU.S. Department of the Treasury (“Treasu(i)"}1,500 shares of the Compasy’
Series A Preferred Stock and (ii) a warrant (theat¥&nt”) to purchase 176,546 shares of the Compatymon stock, par value $1.00
share (the “Common Stock™jor an aggregate purchase price of $41.50 millmrcash. On June 5, 2009 the Company completecblic
offering of its Common Stock that resulted in tleeluction of the shares of Common Stock underlyley Warrant from 176,546 share:
88,273 shares. On July 8, 2009, the Company repsechfrom the Treasury all of the Series A Prefe8wck that it had issued to the Trea
in November 2008. The Company did not repurchas&\tarrant.

The Warrant has a lykar term and was immediately exercisable upoissisance, with an initial per share exercise pofc$35.26. Pursua
to the Purchase Agreement, Treasury has agreet eaercise voting power with respect to any slir€ommon Stock issued upon exer
of the Warrant. In accordance with the terms effturchase Agreement, the Company registered tmek{and the shares of Common S
underlying the Warrant with the Securities and Exade Commission (the “SEC"yhe Warrant is not subject to any contractual ietstns or
transfer. As required by the American Recovery &ainvestment Act of 2009, the Secretary of thea3uey is required to liquidate 1
Warrant following the repurchase of the Series &f€red Stock by the Company, which occurred ig 20009.
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Available Information

Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aeifthe “Exchange Act”)the Company is required to file annual, quarterig aurrer
reports, proxy statements and other informatiom e SEC. Any document the Company files with $fC may be read and copied at
SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N\Eashington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at)(8®HL 0330 for further informatic
about the public reference room. The SEC maintaimgebsite at http://www.sec.gov that contains reppgroxy and information stateme!
and other information regarding issuers that fiszeonically with the SEC.

The Company makes available, free of charge, owetssite at www.fcbinc.com its Annual Report onrRdt0K, Quarterly Reports on Fol
10-Q and Current Reports on FornK8and all amendments thereto, as soon as reasopediticable after the Company files such rej
with, or furnishes them to, the SEC. Investorseareouraged to access these reports and the ofbenation about the Compars/business ¢
its website. Information found on the Company’s sitbis not part of this Annual Report on FormK.OFhe Company will also provide cop
of its Annual Report on Form 10-K, free of chargppon written request of its Investor Relations Dapant at the Company’main addres
P.O. Box 989, Bluefield, VA 24605.

Also posted on the Company’s website, and availabfgint upon request of any shareholder to then@any’s Investor Relations Departme
are the charters of the standing committees ddatsrd of Directors, the Standards of Conduct gawngrthe Companyg directors, officers, ai
employees, and the Company’s Insider Trading & [D=are Policy.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K may include “forddooking statementsWhich are made in good faith by the Company purst@the
“safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securitiggation Reform Act of 1995. These forwaldeking statements include, among ott
statements with respect to the Comparlyeliefs, plans, objectives, goals, guidelinepeetations, anticipations, estimates and intentiba:
are subject to significant risks and uncertaintied are subject to change based on various fact@asy of which are beyond the Company’
control. The words “may,” “could,” “should,” “woultl “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,”ifitend,” “plan” and similar expressio
are intended to identify forward-looking statememtse following factors, among others, could catieeCompanys financial performance
differ materially from that expressed in such fora#poking statements: the strength of the UnitedeStaconomy in general and the stre
of the local economies in which the Company cornslogterations; the effects of, and changes in, tnadaetary and fiscal policies and la
including interest rate policies of the Federalétes Board; inflation, interest rate, market anchetary fluctuations; the timely developmen
competitive new products and services of the Com@and the acceptance of these products and sedyjcesw and existing customers;
willingness of customers to substitute competitpreiducts and services for the Compangtoducts and services and vice versa; the ingf
changes in financial services laws and regulat{orduding laws concerning taxes, banking, seasitind insurance); technological char
the effect of acquisitions, including, without liiion, the failure to achieve the expected revegnasvth and/or expense savings from ¢
acquisitions; the growth and profitability of theoi@panys noninterest or fee income being less than expecteanticipated regulatory
judicial proceedings; changes in consumer spendimsaving habits; and the success of the Compamaraging the risks involved in 1
foregoing.

The Company cautions that the foregoing list of am@nt factors is not all-inclusive. If one or mavkthe factors affecting these forward-
looking statements proves incorrect, then the Caowygaactual results, performance, or achievementsdcdiifer materially from thos
expressed in, or implied by, forward-looking stagens contained in this Annual Report on FormKLOFherefore, the Company cautions
not to place undue reliance on these forward-lapkiatements.

The Company does not intend to update these forlpaldng statements, whether written or oral, tflee change. All forwardeoking
statements attributable to the Company are expregssllified by these cautionary statements.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors.

The current economic environment poses significastiallenges for the Company and could adversely effés financial condition ant
results of operations.

There has been significant disruption and volgtiiit the financial and capital markets since 200fe financial markets and the finan
services industry in particular suffered unpreceéel@misruption, causing a number of institutionsaib or require government interventior
avoid failure. These conditions were largely theuteof the erosion of the U.S. and global credérkets, including a significant and ra
deterioration in the mortgage lending and relatad estate markets. Dramatic declines in the hgusiarkets over the past several years,
faling home prices and increasing foreclosures andmployment, have resulted in significant wdtavns of asset values by finan
institutions. As a consequence, the Company expegilosses in 2009 resulting primarily from subggd impairment charges on investrr
securities. Continued declines in real estateamlhhome sales volumes, and financial stress aowers as a result of the uncertain econ
environment could have an adverse effect on thepg@oyis borrowers or its customers, which could askly affect the Company’financia
condition and results of operations. Deteriorationocal economic conditions, particularly withihet Companys geographic regions &
markets, could drive losses beyond that which dvidied for in its allowance for loan losses. Therpany may also face the following risk:
connection with these events:
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- Economic conditions that negatively affect houginiges and the job market have resulted, and matiraee to result, in deteriorati
in credit quality of the Company’loan portfolios, and such deterioration in cregliality has had, and could continue to hay
negative impact on the Comp¢'s business

- Market developments may affect consumer confidéenels and may cause adverse changes in paymeetrzatcausing increase:
delinquencies and default rates on loans and ctieelit facilities.

« The processes the Company uses to estimate allewfandoan losses and reserves may no longer sblelbecause they rely
complex judgments that may no longer be capabsecofirate estimatiol

- The Companys ability to assess the creditworthiness of itdamers may be impaired if the models and approaitheses to selec
manage, and underwrite its customers become lesictive of future charc-offs.

« The Company expects to face increased regulatiats @fidustry, and compliance with such regulatioay increase its costs, limit
ability to pursue business opportunities, and iaseecompliance challengt

As the above conditions or similar ones continuexigt or worsen, the Company could experienceioiny or increased adverse effects o
financial condition and results of operations.

The Company and its subsidiary business are subjecinterest rate risk and variations in interesates may negatively affect its financ
performance.

The Companys earnings and cash flows are largely dependemt itgonet interest income. Net interest incomehis difference betwe:
interest income earned on interestring assets, such as loans and securitiesngerést expense paid on interest bearing liatslitseich €
deposits and borrowed funds. Interest rates arkhhigensitive to many factors that are beyond tlen@anys control, including genel
economic conditions and policies of various govezntal and regulatory agencies and, in particuls, Rederal Reserve Board. Change
monetary policy, including changes in interestsatmuld influence not only the interest the Conypaateives on loans and securities anc
amount of interest it pays on deposits and borrggjilbbut such changes could also affect (i) the Gayp ability to originate loans and obt
deposits, and (ii) the fair value of the Companfihancial assets and liabilities. If the interesties paid on deposits and other borrow
increase at a faster rate than the interest r&esivied on loans and other investments, the Compamst interest income, and there
earnings, could be adversely affected. Earningfdcalso be adversely affected if the interest ragegived on loans and other investment:
more quickly than the interest rates paid on dep@sid other borrowings.

The Bank’s allowance for loan losses may not be qdate to cover actual losses.

Like all financial institutions, the Bank maintaias allowance for loan losses to provide for prédabsses. The Bang'allowance for loe
losses may not be adequate to cover actual loaedpsind future provisions for loan losses coulterialy and adversely affect the Bask’
operating results. The determination of the appadprevel of the allowance for loan losses inhdyeimvolves a high degree of subjecti
and requires the Bank to make significant estimafesurrent credit risks and future trends, alwdfich may undergo material changes.
Bank’s allowance for loan losses is determined bglyzing historical loan losses, current trendslétinquencies and chargéfs, plans fa
problem loan resolution, changes in the size amdposition of the loan portfolio, and industry infeaition. Also included in management’
estimates for loan losses are considerations wipect to the impact of economic events, the outcohwhich are uncertain. The amoun
future losses is susceptible to changes in econapirating and other conditions, including charigeisterest rates, that may be beyonc
Bank’s control, and these losses may exceed currembadss. Federal regulatory agencies, as an intparalof their examination proce
review the Bank’s loans and allowance for loanédss#\lthough the Company believes that the Baallowance for loan losses is adequa
provide for probable losses, there are no assusathes future increases in the allowance for laesés will not be needed or that regule
will not require the Bank to increase its allowangher of these occurrences could materially athekrsely affect the Compamsyéarnings ar
profitability.

The Company has experienced increases in the lef/alsn-performing assets and loan charge-offeaent periods. The Company’s total non-
performing assets amounted to $29.65 million atebdwer 31, 2010, $23.50 million at December 31, 2608 $14.09 million at December
2008. The Company had $12.55 million of net loaarghoffs for the year ended December 31, 2010, comperek9.31 million and $5.¢
million in net loan charge-offs for the years end®detember 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The @oagip provision for loan losses w
$14.76 million for the year ended December 31, 2G%.80 million for the year ended December 30%2@&nd $9.23 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2008. At December 31, 2010athes of the Company’s allowance for loan losgesdnaccrual loans and to total lo:
outstanding were 136.41% and 1.91%, respectivetidithonal increases in the Company’s non-performatsgets or loan chargdfs may
require it to increase its allowance for loan lessehich would have an adverse effect upon the @myip future results of operations.
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The declining real estate market could impact ther@pany’s business.

The Companys business activities are conducted in Virginia,sYWéirginia, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tenses and the surround
regions. Over the past several years, the reateestarket in these regions experienced declineb failing home prices and increa
foreclosures. As the Company’s net chaoffs-increased during this period and in recognitid the continued deterioration in the real e
market and the potential for further increasesan-performing assets, the Company increased its goovier loan losses over historical lev
during 2008, 2009, and 2010. A continued downturrthis regional real estate market could hurt tleenfanys business because of
geographic concentration within this regional aaed because the vast majority of the Compsuhyans are secured by real estate. If ther
further decline in real estate values, the colidtéor the Company’s loans will provide less setyurAs a result, the Comparsyability tc
recover on defaulted loans by selling the undegyial estate will be diminished, and it will be radikely to suffer losses on defaulted loans.

The Companys level of credit risk is increasing due to its fo& on commercial and construction lending, and tleencentration on sma
businesses and middle market customers with sigaifit vulnerability to economic conditions.

As of December 31, 2010, the Companiargest outstanding commercial business loanlamggst outstanding commercial real estate
amounted to $6.18 million and $9.85 million, regpexdy. At such date, the Compaisycommercial business loans amounted to $4
million, or 32.27% of the Company’s total loan golib, and the Compang’ commercial real estate loans amounted to $14%Bifion, or
10.52% of the Compang’total loan portfolio. Commercial business and cwmrtial real estate loans generally are considdaskier thar
singlefamily residential loans because they have largdairizes to a single borrower or group of relateddyeers. Commercial business |
commercial real estate loans involve risks becabseborrowers’ability to repay the loans typically depends priityaon the successf
operation of the businesses or the properties sertire loans. Most of the Compasy¢ommercial business loans are made to small éssio
middle market customers who may have a signifisgaiterability to economic conditions. Moreover, @fon of these loans have been ir
or acquired by the Company in recent years anthdnewers may not have experienced a complete éssior economic cycle.

In addition to commercial real estate and commefmiginess loans, the Company holds a portfoliemfstruction loans. At December
2010, the Company’s construction loans amounte®6tb.04 million, or 4.40% of the Compasytotal loan portfolio. Construction loe
generally have a higher risk of loss than sirfglaily residential mortgage loans due primarilythie critical nature of the initial estimates «
propertys value upon completion of construction comparedh® estimated costs, including interest, of camsion as well as oth
assumptions. If the estimates upon which constindtans are made prove to be inaccurate, the Quynpay be confronted with projects tl
upon completion, have values which are below the lmmounts. The nature of the allowance for loasds requires that the Company mus
assumptions regarding, among other factors, indalidoans and the economy. While the Company isavare of any specific, matel
impediments impacting any of its builder/developerrowers at this time, there continues to be natide reports of significant proble
which have adversely affected many property deveo@and builders as well as the institutions treatehprovided those loans. If signific
numbers of the builder/developers to which the Camyphas extended construction loans experienceyfie of difficulties that are beil
reported, it could have adverse consequences tpéurture results of operations.

The Bank may suffer losses in its loan portfolio gf@te its underwriting practices.

The Bank seeks to mitigate the risks inherent é@Bhnks loan portfolio by adhering to specific underwnritipractices. These practices incl
analysis of a borrowes’prior credit history, financial statements, taturns and cash flow projections, valuation of ateltal based on repc
of independent appraisers and verification of ligassets. Although the Bank believes that its umding criteria are appropriate for 1
various kinds of loans it makes, the Bank may ifosses on loans that meet its underwriting céteaind these losses may exceed the arr
set aside as reserves in the Bank’s allowance#or losses.

Changes in the fair value of the Company’s secuwggtimay reduce its stockholders’ equity and net im&o

At December 31, 2010, $480.06 million of the Compsusecurities were classified as availabledate. At such date, the aggregate unree
losses on the Company’s available-for-sale seesritiere $28.45 million. The Company increases oredeses stockholdersquity by th
amount of the change in the unrealized gain or (thes difference between the estimated fair valu the amortized cost) of the Company’
available-forsale securities portfolio, net of the related tandfit, under the category of accumulated otherprehensive income/los
Therefore, a decline in the estimated fair valuthtsf portfolio will result in a decline in repodestockholdersequity, as well as book value |
common share and tangible book value per commoresiifis decrease will occur even though the seesrare not sold. In the case of (
securities, if these securities are never sold tede are no credit impairments, the decrease hellrecovered at the maturity of
securities. In the case of equity securities wihiahie no stated maturity, the declines in fair gahay or may not be recovered over time.
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The Company conducts periodic reviews and evalnstif its entire securities portfolio to determiféhe decline in the fair value of a
security below its cost basis is other-thamporary. Factors which the Company considerets ianalysis of debt securities include, but art
limited to, intent to sell the security, evidenagidable to determine if it is more likely than rtbat the Company will have to sell the secur
before recovery of the amortized cost, and probalgéit losses. Probable credit losses are evalusased upon, but are not limited to:
present value of future cash flows, the severity daration of the decline in fair value of the sgtyubelow its amortized cost, the financ
condition and neaterm prospects of the issuer, whether the declppears to be related to issuer conditions or gémeaaket or industr
conditions, the payment structure of the secufdifure of the security to make scheduled intemsprincipal payments, and changes tc
rating of the security by rating agencies. The Canypgenerally views changes in fair value for dedturities caused by changes in inte
rates as temporary, which is consistent with then@any’s experience. If the Company deems suchroetti be other-thatemporary, th
security is written down to a new cost basis arergsulting loss is charged to earnings as a coermaf noninterest income. For the e
ended December 31, 2010, the Company reported-tithestemporary impairment (“OTTI"¢harges of $134 thousand on its debt secu
portfolio.

Factors that the Company considers in its anabfséjuity securities include, but are not limitedintent to sell the security before recover
the cost, the severity and duration of the dedlinfir value of the security below its cost, th@ahcial condition and neaerm prospects of tl
issuer, and whether the decline appears to beecetatissuer conditions or general market or imgustnditions.

The Company continues to monitor the fair valué®otntire securities portfolio as part of its omgpOTTI evaluation process. No assur:
can be given that the Company will not need togecte OTTI charges related to securities in tharkit

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refoand Consumer Protection Act of 2010 may have a miatleeffect on the Company
operations.

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into levDiodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Btiote Act of 2010, or the Dodd-
Frank Act, which imposes significant regulatory aainpliance changes. The key provisions of thedehnk Act that are anticipated
affect the Company’s operations include:

« changes to regulatory capital requirements;

- creation of new government regulatory agenciesudiog the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau;
« limitation on federal preemption;

« changes in insured depository institution regutaiand assessments; and

« mortgage loan origination and risk retenti

Many of the requirements of the Doéidank Act will be implemented over time and most Wé subject to the rulemaking process at vai
regulatory agencies. Given the uncertainty assediatith the manner in which the provisions of thedBHrank Act will be implemented |
the various regulatory agencies and through reiguist the full extent of the impact such requiretaenill have on the Comparg/operation
is unclear. The changes resulting from the DBdakk Act may impact the profitability of our busss activities, require changes to certa
our business practices, impose upon us more strirnggpital, liquidity and leverage requirementsotiterwise adversely affect our busin
These changes may also require us to invest gignifimanagement attention and resources to evaunatenake any changes necessa
comply with new statutory and regulatory requiretsefrailure to comply with the new requirementsaith any future changes in laws
regulations may negatively impact our results adragions and financial condition.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject toemsive regulation which could adversely affect them

The Company and its subsidiariegerations are subject to extensive regulationsupervision by federal and state governmental aitids
and are subject to various laws and judicial andiattrative decisions imposing requirements arsfrietions on part or all of the Company’
operations. Banking regulations governing the Camgfgaoperations are primarily intended to proteepasitors’ funds, federal depo:
insurance funds and the banking system as a whotesecurity holders. Congress and federal regilagencies continually review bank
laws, regulations and policies for possible chan@ésnges to statutes, regulations or regulatoligips, including changes in interpretatior
implementation of statutes, regulations or polictsuld affect the Company in substantial and udiptable ways. Such changes could sul
the Company to additional costs, limit the typedio&ncial services and products the Company mé#gr @nd/or increase the ability of non-
banks to offer competing financial services andipos, among other things. Failure to comply wétivg, regulations or policies could resu
sanctions by regulatory agencies, civil money p@wsbnd/or reputation damage, which could haveaterial adverse effect on the Company’
business, financial condition and results of openat While the Company has policies and proceddessgned to prevent any such violati
there can be no assurance that such violationsailbccur. These laws, rules and regulationsngragher laws, rules or regulations that |
be adopted in the future, could make complianceendifficult or expensive, restrict the Compasgbility to originate, broker or sell loa
further limit or restrict the amount of commissipmsterest or other charges earned on loans otighar sold by the Bank and otherv
adversely affect the Company’s business, finaramabition or prospects.
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The financial services industry is likely to facelieased regulation and supervision as a resulieofecent financial crisis. Such additic
regulation and supervision may increase the Conigargsts and limit its ability to pursue businespartunities. The affects of such rece
enacted, and proposed, legislation and regulatargrams on the Company cannot reliably be detemin@ehis time.

The Bank’s ability to pay dividends is subject to regulatdmnitations which, to the extent the Company reges such dividends in tt
future, may affect the Compar’s ability to pay its obligations and pay dividends

The Company is a separate legal entity from thekBard its subsidiaries and does not have signifioperations of its own. The Compi
currently depends on the Bank’s cash and liquidityvell as dividends from the Bank to pay the Camjsoperating expenses and divide
to its stockholders. No assurance can be madedrtitthe future the Bank will have the capacity to/ pae necessary dividends and that
Company will not require dividends from the Banksttisfy the Compang’obligations. The availability of dividends frahre Bank is limite
by various statutes and regulations. In addititie, ©CC issued a minimum capital ratio directivetite Bank that requires it to maint
heightened regulatory capital ratios which coulgatt the Banls ability to pay a dividend to the Company. It ésgible, depending upon
financial condition of the Bank and other factdtgt the OCC, the Ban&’primary regulator, could assert that paymentigfidnds or othe
payments by the Bank are an unsafe or unsoundiggatt the event the Bank is unable to pay divittesufficient to satisfy the Company’
obligations or is otherwise unable to pay dividetalthe Company, the Company may not be able tdcgeits obligations as they become «
including payments required to be made to the FCBpital Trust, a business trust subsidiary of tlm@any, or pay dividends on -
Company’s Common Stock. Consequently, the inabtlityeceive dividends from the Bank could adversafgct the Company’ financia
condition, results of operations, cash flows anmspects. As a result of securities impairmentsOif9? the Bank does not have retained pt
from which it can pay dividends. Accordingly, therik would need permission from the OCC prior toipgydividends to the Compa
through approximately December 31, 2011.

The Company faces strong competition from other dircial institutions, financial service companies dnother organizations offerin
services similar to those offered by the Companyl @s subsidiaries, which could hurt the Compé’s business.

The Companys business operations are centered primarily igikf&, West Virginia, North Carolina, South Caraljrand Tennessee. Incree
competition within this region may result in reddcdean originations and deposits. Ultimately, ther@any may not be able to comg
successfully against current and future competittany competitors offer the types of loans andiieg services that the Bank offers. TF
competitors include other savings associationsomal banks, regional banks and other communitjkbahhe Company also faces competi
from many other types of financial institutionscliding finance companies, brokerage firms, insceacompanies, credit unions, mortg
banks and other financial intermediaries. In paftéc, the Banks competitors include other state and national $aarkd major financi
companies whose greater resources may afford themarketplace advantage by enabling them to maimtaimerous banking locations ¢
mount extensive promotional and advertising campmig

Additionally, banks and other financial institutmwith larger capitalization and financial intermegées not subject to bank regulat
restrictions have larger lending limits and arad¢hg able to serve the credit needs of larger tdiefhese institutions, particularly to the ex
they are more diversified than the Company, mayable to offer the same loan products and servibas the Company offers at m
competitive rates and prices. If the Company ishis#o attract and retain banking clients, the Canypmay be unable to continue the Bank’
loan and deposit growth and the Company’s busirigss)cial condition and prospects may be negatiaéflected.

Potential Acquisitions May Disrupt the Compa’s Business and Dilute Stockholder Value
The Company may seek merger or acquisition parttteats are culturally similar and have experiencednagement and possess e

significant market presence or have potential fgprioved profitability through financial managemestpnomies of scale or expanded serv
Acquiring other banks, businesses, or branchedvasoarious risks commonly associated with actjoiss, including, among other things:
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- Potential exposure to unknown or contingent ligibsi of the target company.

« Exposure to potential asset quality issues ofdhget company

- Difficulty, expense, and delays of integrating tperations and personnel of the target comp

« Potential disruption to the Comp¢' s business

« Potential diversion of the Compé's manageme’s time and attentiol

« The possible loss of key employees and custometsedhrget compan'

- Difficulty in estimating the value of the targetrapany.

- Potential changes in banking or tax laws or reguiatthat may affect the target company.

« Unexpected costs and delays.

« Risks that the acquired target company does nébimerconsistent with the Company’s growth and gadfility expectations.

« Risks associated with entering new markets or prodreas where the Company has limited experience.

« Risks that growth will strain the Company’s infrasture, staff, internal controls and managemehtchvmay require additional
personnel, time and expenditur

« Potential short-term decreases in profitability.

The Company regularly evaluates merger and acguisipportunities and conducts due diligence aitivirelated to possible transactions '
other financial institutions and financial serviemsnpanies. As a result, merger or acquisitionugisions and, in some cases, negotiations
take place and future mergers or acquisitions winglthe payment of cash or the issuance of delejoity securities may occur at any ti
Acquisitions typically involve the payment of a prieim over book and market values, and, therefamesinitial dilution of the Company’
tangible book value and net income per common shmag occur in connection with any future transactiburthermore, failure to realize
expected revenue increases, cost savings, incremgesgraphic or product presence, and/or othgjepted benefits from an acquisition cc
have a material adverse effect on the Companyanfiral condition and results of operations.

The Company may engage in FDIC-assisted transacsiowhich could present additional risks to its bosss.

The Company may have opportunities to acquire iseta and liabilities of failed banks in FD#Ssisted transactions, which present the
of acquisitions discussed above, as well as sosks 8pecific to these transactions. Because Fi3KIsted acquisitions provide for limi
diligence and negotiation of terms, these transastmay require additional resources and timeydiob relating to servicing acquired prob
loans and costs related to integration of persomanel operating systems, the establishment of pseseto service acquired assets. !
transactions may also require the Company to madsitional capital, which may be dilutive to exigtistockholders. If the Company is un:
to manage these risks, FDH3sisted acquisitions could have a material adveffeet on its business, financial condition anduits o
operations.

Attractive acquisition opportunities may not be alable to us in the future

The Company expects that other banking and finhooiapanies, many of which have significantly gesaesources, will compete with it
acquire financial services businesses. This comipettould increase prices for potential acquisisithat the Company believes are attrac
Also, acquisitions are subject to various regulaepprovals. If the Company fails to receive thprapriate regulatory approvals, it will not
able to consummate an acquisition that it belieésés its best interests. Among other things, tleenpany’s regulators consider the Company’
capital, liquidity, profitability, regulatory comigince and levels of goodwill and intangibles whemsidering acquisition and expans
proposals. Any acquisition could be dilutive to @@mpany’s earnings and stockholders’ equity paresbf the Company’s Common Stock.

The Company’s goodwill may be determined to be iimga

As of December 31, 2010, the carrying amount ofGbenpanys goodwill was $84.91 million. The Company testedywill for impairment o
an annual basis, or more frequently if necessangt€d market prices in active markets are the dddence of fair value and are to be use
the basis for measuring impairment, when availabteer acceptable valuation methods include pressne measurements based on mult
of earnings or revenues, or similar performance smess. If the Company determines that the carrgimgpunt of its goodwill exceeds
implied fair value, the Company would be requiredirite-down the value of the goodwill on its balance sh&hts, in turn, would result in
charge against earnings and, thus, a reductiohenCompany’s stockholdergquity and certain related capital measures. Du2idgo, th
Company recognized a charge of $1.04 million tdewdown the value of goodwill at its insurance agyesubsidiary.

The Company may lose members of its management taadhhave difficulty attracting skilled personnel.

The Companys success depends, in large part, on its abiliptttact and retain key people. Competition forltkst people can be intense
the Company may not be able to hire such people mtain them. The unexpected loss of servicdepipersonnel of the Company could
a material adverse impact on its business becausieeio skills, knowledge of the Compamsymarket, years of industry experience anc
difficulty of promptly finding qualified replacemeémpersonnel. In addition, recent regulatory proposad guidance relating to compense
may negatively impact the Company’s ability to netand attract skilled personnel.
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Increases in FDIC deposit insurance premiums cowddversely affect the Compa’s earnings.

Market developments have significantly depleted@iie of the FDIC and reduced the ratio of reseneeimsured deposits. As a result of re:
economic conditions and the enactment of the Diedohk Act, the FDIC revised its assessment ratéshataised deposit premiums for cer
insured depository institutions. If these increaaes insufficient for the DIF to meet its fundingquirements, further special assessmer
increases in deposit insurance premiums may beresjuThe Company is generally unable to conth@ amount of premiums that it
required to pay for FDIC insurance. If there arditdnal bank or financial institution failures,e&lDIC may increase the deposit insuri
assessment rates. Any future assessments, insreasequired prepayments in FDIC insurance prersiomy materially adversely affect
Company’s earnings and could have a material agwadffsct on the value of its common stock.

The Company may seek to raise additional capitathe future, and such capital may not be availalie acceptable terms or at all.

The Company may seek to raise additional capitathin future to provide it with sufficient capitabsources and liquidity to meet
commitments, business needs, and growth objectipagjcularly if its asset quality or earnings wee deteriorate significantly. T
Companys ability to raise additional capital, will depend, among other things, conditions in the capitakkets at that time, which ¢
outside of its control, and its financial perforrsan Economic conditions and the loss of confideincénancial institutions may increase
Company’s cost of funding and limit access to dertastomary sources of capital, including inbamk borrowings, repurchase agreement:
borrowings from the discount window of the Fedétakerve Bank. Any occurrence that may limit the @any’s access to the capital mari
may adversely affect the Compasycapital costs and its ability to raise capitadl,ain turn, its liquidity. Accordingly, the Comparmannao
provide any assurance that additional capital béllavailable on acceptable terms or at all. Anilitglio raise additional capital on accepte
terms could have a materially adverse effect orCbeapany’s businesses, financial condition andltesd operations.

Liquidity risk could impair the Compan’s ability to fund its operations and jeopardizesifinancial condition.

Liquidity is essential to the Comparsybusiness. An inability to raise funds throughad#s, borrowings, equity and debt offerings antukt
sources could have a substantial negative effeth@Company’s liquidity. The Comparsyaccess to funding sources in amounts adeqt
finance its activities, or on terms attractive e Company, could be impaired by factors that affee Company specifically or the finan:
services industry in general. Factors that couldirdentally impact the Comparg’access to liquidity sources include a reductioiis credi
ratings, if any, an increase in costs of capitdlrancial capital markets, a decrease in the le¥@s business activity due to a market dowr
or adverse regulatory action against the Company, d@ecrease in depositor or investor confidencie. ithe Companys access to liquidi
sources could also be impaired by factors thatatespecific to it, such as a severe disruptiotheffinancial markets or negative views
expectations about the prospects for the finasaalices industry as a whole.

The Company'’s controls and procedures may fail @ @ircumvented.

Management regularly reviews and updates the Coympanternal controls over financial reporting, désaire controls and procedures,
corporate governance policies and procedures. Amsyes of controls, however well designed and operats based in part on cert
assumptions and can provide only reasonable, rsatlatie, assurances that the objectives of thersyate met. Any failure or circumvention
the Companys controls and procedures or failure to comply wéfulations related to controls and procedureddcbave a material adve
effect on the Company’s business, results of omeratand financial condition.

The failure of other financial institutions could dversely affect the Company.

The Companys ability to engage in routine funding transactionsild be adversely affected by future failuredim@ncial institutions and tt
actions and commercial soundness of other financistitutions. Financial institutions are intereld as a result of trading, cleari
counterparty and other relationships. The Compaas/ éxposure to different industries and counteigsagnd routinely execute transacti
with counterparties in the financial services indgsncluding brokers and dealers, commercial lsainmkvestment banks, investment compe
and other institutional clients. In certain of teesansactions, the Company is required to podateshl to secure the obligations to
counterparties. In the event of a bankruptcy oolirency proceeding involving one of such counteiipay the Company may experience de
in recovering the assets posted as collateral or imeur a loss to the extent that the counterparéag holding collateral in excess of
obligation to such counterparty.

In addition, many of these transactions exposeCii@pany to credit risk in the event of a defaultthy Companys counterparty or client.
addition, the credit risk may be exacerbated whercollateral held by the Company cannot be rediards liquidated at prices not sufficien
recover the full amount of the loan or derivativgp@sure due to the Company. Any losses resultiogr fthe Company routine fundin
transactions may materially and adversely affecfiitancial condition and results of operations.
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The Company is subject to environmental liabilitisk associated with lending activities.

A significant portion of the Comparg’loan portfolio is secured by real property. Dgrthe ordinary course of business, the Company
foreclose on and take title to properties secuciedain loans. In doing so, there is a risk theandous or toxic substances could be four
these properties. If hazardous or toxic substaace$ound, the Company may be liable for remealiatiosts, as well as for personal injury
property damage. Environmental laws may requieeGbmpany to incur substantial expenses and magriallyt reduce the affected propegy’
value or limit the Compang’ ability to use or sell the affected propertythdligh the Company has policies and procedurestimnm ai
environmental review before initiating any forealos action on real property, these reviews may betsufficient to detect all potent
environmental hazards. The remediation costs agtrer financial liabilities associated with arveanmental hazard could have a mats
adverse effect on the Company’s financial condiiod results of operations.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
The Company has no unresolved staff comments e diling date of this 2010 Annual Report on FatfiK.
ITEM 2. Properties.

The Company generally owns its offices, relatedlifeas, and unimproved real property. The print¢ipfices of the Company are locatec
One Community Place, Bluefield, Virginia, where tBempany owns and occupies approximately 36,00@rsqgfeet of office space. As
December 31, 2010, the Company operated 57 banffitges located throughout the five states of \filgj West Virginia, North and Sot
Carolina, and Tennessee. The Company owns 43 béitking offices while others are leased or aratlet on leased land. The Company
operates 10 insurance offices throughout North BeroWest Virginia and Virginia, including its haguarters in High Point, North Caroli
The Company owns one of its insurance offices aadds the remaining locations. There are no matgagliens against any property of
Company. A complete listing of all branches and A$ités can be found on the Internet at www.fcbresmaom. Information on such web:
is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings.
The Company is currently a defendant in variousllegtions and asserted claims involving lendingd esilection activities and other matter
the normal course of business. Although the Compartylegal counsel are unable to assess the uitimatome of each of these matters
certainty, they are of the belief that the resolutof these actions should not have a material radvaffect on the financial position or
results of operations of the Company.
ITEM 4. Reserved.

PART Il
ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Common Stock Market Prices and Dividends
The number of common stockholders of record on Graayr22, 2011, was 2,794 and outstanding sharektbtl7,868,673. The numbel
common stockholders is measured by the numbercofdaolders. The Comparssftommon stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Seleoke
under the symbol “FCBC”.
Cash dividends on common stock totaled $0.40 paresfor 2010 and $0.30 per share in 2009. Totatldids paid on common stock for
years ended December 31, 2010, and December 39, #fi@led $7.12 million and $4.62 million, respeely. Total cash dividends paid
preferred stock for 2009 totaled $1.12 million. &=t of the restrictions on cash dividends arefgeh in “Managemens Discussion ar

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gytiems - Liquidity and Capital Resources” in Iterh&reof and Note 14 Regulatory Capiti
Requirements and Restrictions of the Notes to Aateged Financial Statements included in Item 8bér
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The following table sets forth the high and lowct@rices and dividends paid per share on the Cagipacommon stock during the peris

indicated.
2010 2009
High Low High Low
Sales Price Per Shar
First quarte $ 13.32 $ 10.9¢ 35.1: $ 7.9C
Second quarte 17.3i 12.5: 17.5¢ 10.27
Third quartel 16.0¢ 12.0Z 14.2¢ 12.0C
Fourth quarte 15.8¢ 12.5¢ 13.0¢ 10.5(
2010 2009
Cash Dividends Per Share
First quarte 0.1C $ -
Second quarte 0.1C 0.2C
Third quartel 0.1C 0.1C
Fourth quarter 0.1C -
Total 0.4C & 0.3(C

Stock Repurchase Plans

The following table provides information with regpedo purchases made by or on behalf of the Commargny “affiliated purchaser’ag
defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the Exchangedhthe Company’s common stock during the fourtargger of 2010.

Total Number Maximum

Total of Shares Number of
Number of Average Purchased as  Shares That May
Shares Price Paid  Part of a Publicly Yet be Purchasec
Purchased per Share Announced Plan Under the Plan (1
October -31, 201C - $ - 851,77¢
November -30, 201C - - 874,59:
December -31, 201C - - 883,51«

Total -9 -

(1) The Companyg stock repurchase plan, as amended, authorizeguttthase and retention of up to 1,100,000 shdres.plan has r
expiration date and currently is in effect . Noatstination has been made to terminate the plan oeéase making purchases. The Com

held 216,487 shares in treasury at December 31.201
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Total Return Analysis

The following chart was compiled by SNL Securiti€s, and compares cumulative total shareholder mnedfithe Companyg common stock fi
the fiveyear period ended December 31, 2010, with the catimel total return of the S&P 500 Index, the NASDAQmposite index, and t
Asset Size & Regional Peer Group. The Asset SizRegional Peer Group consists of 52 bank holding paoties that are traded on
NASDAQ, OTC Bulletin Board, and pink sheets withaloassets between $1 billion and $5 billion anel lacated in the Southeast Regio
the United States. The cumulative returns inclidevestment of dividends by the Company.

Total Return Performance
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123105 1273 1/06 1431/07 1231708 12731109 123110
Period Ending
Index 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0° 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0¢ 12/31/1(
First Community Bancshares, Ir 100.0( 131.0: 109.1: 123.5¢ 43.7¢ 55.8¢
S&P 500 100.0( 115.7¢ 122.1¢ 76.9¢ 97.3: 111.9¢
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 110.3¢ 122.1¢ 73.32 106.57 125.9:
Asset & Regional Peer Group 100.0( 112.6¢ 82.2¢ 74.0¢ 51.7¢ 55.7¢

** The Asset Size & Regional Peer Group consisttheffollowing institutions: 1st United BancorpcinAmeris Bancorp, BancTrust Finan
Group, Inc., Bank of the Ozarks, Inc., BNC Banc@prke & Herbert Bank & Trust Company, Cadence Raial Corporation, Capital Ba
Corporation, Capital City Bank Group, Inc., Cardif@nancial Corporation, Carter Bank & Trust, Ceftate Banks, Inc., Centra Finan
Holdings, Inc., City Holding Company, Colony BankgpInc., Commonwealth Bankshares, Inc., EastengidMa Bankshares, Inc., Fidel
Southern Corporation, First Bancorp, First M&F Gangtion, First National Bank of Shelby, First SetuGroup, Inc., FNB United Corj
Great Florida Bank, Green Bankshares, Inc., Hamoads Bankshares, Inc., Home BancShares, Inc.dldbidrg Financial Corporatic
NewBridge Bancorp, PAB Bankshares, Inc., Palmetad3hares, Inc., Peoples Bancorp of North Carolima, Pinnacle Financial Partne
Inc., Premier Financial Bancorp, Inc., Renasantp@ation, Savannah Bancorp, Inc., SCBT Financiatp@ation, Seacoast Bank
Corporation of Florida, Simmons First National Cangttion, Southeastern Bank Financial Corporatiomjti®ern BancShares (N.C.), It
Southern Community Financial Corporation, State B&inancial Corporation, StellarOne Corporation,m#uit Financial Group, Inc
Tennessee Commerce Bancorp, Inc., TIB FinanciabCdrowneBank, Union First Market Bankshares Caafion, Virginia Commerc
Bancorp, Inc., Wilson Bank Holding Company, and Madvalley Financial Corporation.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The following consolidated selected financial datderived from the Comparg/audited financial statements as of and for the fiears ende
December 31, 2010. The following consolidated feiahdata should be read in conjunction with Mamaget’s Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations dred @onsolidated Financial Statements and relatéssrincluded in this Annual Report
Form 10-K. All of the Companyg’ acquisitions during the five years ended DecerBlbeP010 were accounted for using the purchasaat
Accordingly, the operating results of the acquicednpanies are included with the Compansesults of operations since their respectives
of acquisition.

At or for the year ended December 31
Five-Year Selected Financial Datz 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Dz
Balance Sheet Summary (at end of perioc

Securities $ 484,70. $ 493551 $ 529,39 $ 676,19' $ 528,38¢
Loans held for sal 4,69¢ 11,57¢ 1,02« 811 781
Loans, net of unearned incor 1,386,201 1,393,93. 1,298,15! 1,225,50: 1,284,86:
Allowance for loan losse 26,48: 24,27 17,78: 12,83: 14,54¢
Total asset 2,244,23 2,273,28. 2,132,18 2,149,83 2,033,69:i
Deposits 1,620,95! 1,645,96! 1,503,75! 1,393,44. 1,394,77.
Borrowings 332,08 352,55¢ 381,79: 517,84: 406,55t
Total liabilities 1,974,36! 2,021,011 1,912,97. 1,932,741 1,820,96!
Stockholders' equit 269,87¢ 252,26 219,21! 217,09¢ 212,73l
Summary of Earnings

Total interest incom $ 103,58: $ 107,93: $ 110,76¢ $ 127,59: $ 120,02t
Total interest expens 29,72¢ 38,68: 44,93( 59,27¢ 48,38
Net interest incom 73,851 69,25: 65,83¢ 68,31" 71,64¢
Provision for loan losse 14,75 15,80: 9,22¢ 717 2,70¢
Net interest income after provision for loan los 59,10( 53,45 56,60¢ 67,59¢ 68,93¢
Nor-interest incom 40,69: 25,18¢ 32,291 24,83 21,32
Investment securities impairme 18t 78,86: 29,92: - -
Non-interest expens 69,94: 66,62« 60,51¢ 50,46: 49,83
Income (loss) before income tax 29,66" (66,85() (2,539 41,96¢ 40,42¢
Income tax expense (benel 7,81¢ (28,15 (3,48%) 12,33¢ 11,47"
Net income (loss 21,847 (38,69¢) 1,95¢ 29,63: 28,94¢
Dividends on preferred stot - 2,16( 25¢E - -
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol 21,841 (40,85¢) 1,69¢ 29,63: 28,94¢
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At or for the year ended December 31

Five-Year Selected Financial Dat-continued 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Per Share Data

Basic earnings (loss) per common sk $ 12 % (2.7 % 0.1t $ 264 $ 2.5¢
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ 12 $ 2.75) $ 0.1t $ 26z % 2.57
Cash dividends per common sh $ 04C $ 0.3C $ 1.1z $ 1.0¢ $ 1.04
Book value per common share at y-end $ 1511 % 142 $ 153¢ $ 1961 $ 18.97
Selected Ratios

Return on average ass 0.97% -1.85% 0.0&8% 1.3% 1.4€%
Return on average equi 8.11% -16.7% 0.8€% 13.54% 14.32%
Average equity to average ass 11.91% 10.9% 9.8% 10.3(% 10.21%
Dividend payou 32.52% NM NM 40.91% 40.31%
Risk based capital to risk adjusted as 15.3% 13.81% 12.9%% 12.3% 12.6%
Leverage ratic 9.44% 8.51% 9.7(% 8.0¢% 8.5(%

NM — Not meaningful
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ITEM 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations
Executive Overview

First Community Bancshares, Inc. is a financialdimy company that, through its bank subsidiaryyvjgtes commercial banking services
has positioned itself as a regional community bané a financial services alternative to larger Isawkich often provide less emphasis
personal relationships, and smaller community bavikish lack the capital and resources to efficies#rve customer needs. The Compan
focused its growth efforts on building financialrpeerships and more enduring and complete reldtipsswith businesses and individt
through a very personal and local approach to lmgnkind financial services. The Company and its aifmers are guided by a strategic |
which includes growth through acquisitions and tigto office expansion in new market areas includingtegically identified metro markets
Virginia, West Virginia, North Carolina, South Cérma, and Tennessee. While the Compangiission remains that of a community b
management believes that entry into new marketsaodelerate the Comparsygrowth rate by diversifying the demographicstsfdustome
base and customer prospects and by generally Binge#s sales and service network.

Economy

The local economies in which the Company operatesiverse and span a figtate region. The economies of West Virginia andtBees
Virginia have significant exposure to extractiveustries, such as coal, timber and natural gas;hwbdécome more active and lucrative w
oil prices rise. The local economies in the cenp@ition of North Carolina have suffered in recgaars due to foreign competition in b
furniture and textiles, as well as consolidationhia financial services industry. Despite theseadéibns, the economies in this region cont
to benefit from national companies operating in Tiead, Central Piedmont, and central South Casokimeas. The Eastern Virginia Ic
economies have, in recent years, benefited fromdaggorate and government activities and relocatidine economy in Eastern Tenne
continues to benefit from the stability of highéueation, healthcare services and tourism.

Despite the stable and positive aspects of ouonegieconomies, the Compasynarkets have experienced significant declinagsidentic
development and construction, not inconsistent witional trends. These declines have led to cotitrain residential land development .
construction, which have historically been impottaomponents of the Company’s lending activitiebe Teconomies of the Compasy’
Southwest Virginia and West Virginia markets hagmained stable compared to the national economyaadhployment levels are gener
lower than the national average at December 310.201

Competition

As the Company competes for increased market siratgrowth in both loans and deposits, it contirteesncounter strong competition fr
many sources. Many of the markets targeted byQbmpany are also being entered by other banks ambgeand distant markets. 1
expansion of banks, credit unions, and other depesitory financial companies over recent yeassifhi@nsified competitive pressures on
deposit generation and retention. Competitive foriogpact the Company through pressure on inteiekisy product fees, and loan struc
and terms; however, the Company has countered fressures with its relationship style of bankiogmpetitive pricing and a disciplin
approach to loan underwriting.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statementgerpared in accordance with U. S. generally aeckptcounting principles (“GAAP’anc
conform to general practices within the bankingustdy. The Compang’ financial position and results of operations affected b
managemens application of accounting policies, including gmeents made to arrive at the carrying value oftasmad liabilities and amou
reported for revenues, expenses and related diselsDifferent assumptions in the application leése policies could result in mate
changes in the Company’s consolidated financiaitiposand consolidated results of operations.

Estimates, assumptions, and judgments are necessacipally when assets and liabilities are regdito be recorded at estimated fair ve
when a decline in the value of an asset carrietherfinancial statements at fair value warrantsngmairment writedown or valuation reser
to be established, or when an asset or liabiligdseto be recorded based upon the probability cfiroence of a future event. Carrying as
and liabilities at fair value inherently resultsrivore financial statement volatility. The fair vatuand the information used to record valu:
adjustments for certain assets and liabilitiestesed either on quoted market prices or are prdvigethird party sources, when availa
When third party information is not available, vation adjustments are estimated by management pisntarough the use of financ
modeling techniques and appraisal estimates.
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The Company’s accounting policies are fundamerdalinderstanding ManagementDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord
Results of Operation. The following is a summafyhe Company’s more subjective and complex “caitiaccounting policies.In addition
the disclosures presented in the Notes to the Qidased Financial Statements and in Managensebiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations provide infdioraon how significant assets and liabilities aatued in the financial statements and
those values are determined. Based on the valuéiomiques used and the sensitivity of financtatesnent amounts to the meth¢
assumptions, and estimates underlying those amaumaisagement has identified investment valuatieterthination of the allowance for Ic
losses, accounting for acquisitions and intangliskeets, and accounting for income taxes as theiaticg areas that require the most subje
or complex judgments.

Investment Securitie

Management performs an extensive review of thestmrent securities portfolio quarterly to determihe cause of declines in the fair valu
each security within each segment of the portfdlite Company uses inputs provided by an indeperttgdtparty to determine the fair val
of its investment securities portfolio. Inputs yided by the third party are reviewed and corrotemteby management. Evaluations of
causes of the unrealized losses are performed terndime whether the impairment is temporary or wthantemporary in natur
Considerations such as the Company'’s intent aniityalh hold the securities, recoverability of tievested amounts over the Company’
intended holding period, severity in pricing deelircredit rating, and receipt of amounts contrdlstidue, among other factors, are applie
determining whether a security is other-than-teraplyrimpaired. If a decline in value is determintdbe other-thatemporary, the value
the security is reduced and a corresponding chtargarnings is recognized.

Allowance for Loan Losse

The allowance for loan losses is maintained atvallmanagement deems sufficient to absorb probabkes inherent in the portfolio, an
based on managemesntevaluation of the risks in the loan portfolio attthnges in the nature and volume of loan activitye Compan
consistently applies a review process to periotji@laluate loans for changes in credit risk. Tgriscess serves as the primary means by \
the Company evaluates the adequacy of the allowfandean losses.

The Company determines the allowance for loan fobyemaking specific allocations to impaired loéimat exhibit inherent weaknesses
various credit risk factors, and general allocatitm commercial, residential real estate, and aoesuloans are developed giving weight to
ratings, historical loss trends and managensgntigment concerning those trends and other netdaators. These factors may include, bu
not limited to, actual versus estimated lossesoneg and national economic conditions, businegsnsst and portfolio concentrations, indu
competition and consolidation, and the impact ofeynpment regulations. The foregoing analysis i$quered by management to evaluate
portfolio and calculate an estimated valuation wa#loce through a quantitative and qualitative anglyisat applies risk factors to the
identified risk areas.

This risk management evaluation is applied at lo¢hportfolio level and the individual loan level ftcommercial loans and credit relations
while the level of consumer and residential mortgégan allowance is determined primarily on a tqaitfolio level based on a review
historical loss percentages and other qualitatagtors including concentrations, industry specffictors and economic conditions. °
commercial portfolio requires more specific anadysi individually significant loans and the borraee underlying cash flow, busine
conditions, capacity for debt repayment and theiatédn of secondary sources of payment, such datel. This analysis may result
specifically identified weaknesses and correspandipecific impairment allowances. While allocatioase made to specific loans
classifications within the various categories @frls, the allowance for loan losses is availablalldoan losses.

The use of various estimates and judgments in tmeganys ongoing evaluation of the required level of abbowe can significantly impact 1
Companys results of operations and financial condition aray result in either greater provisions againstiegs to increase the allowance
reduced provisions based upon manageraanttrent view of the portfolio and economic coiudis and the application of revised estimates
assumptions. Differences between actual loan kggsreence and estimates are reflected through tdguds, either increasing or decreasing
loan loss provision based upon current measureangetia.

Acquisitions and Intangible Ass¢

The Company may, from time to time, engage in lrssncombinations with other companies. Purchaseuatiog requires the recording
underlying assets and liabilities of the entity @iogd at their fair market value. Any excess of phuechase price of the business over thi
assets acquired and any identified intangiblegésnded as goodwill. In instances where the prfae acquired business is less than th
assets acquired, a gain on purchase is recordédvdlaes are assigned based on quoted pricesirfilas assets, if readily available,
appraisal by qualified independent parties forvaht asset and liability categories. Financial &saed liabilities are typically valued us
discount models which apply current discount rédestreams of cash flow. All of these valuation negls require the use of assumptions w
can result in alternate valuations and varying lleeé goodwill and amounts of bargain purchase gaid, in some cases, amortization exp
or accretion income.
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Management must also make estimates of usefularogaic lives of certain acquired assets and litadli These lives are used in establis
amortization and accretion of some intangible assetd liabilities, such as the intangible assodiatéth core deposits acquired in
acquisition of a commercial bank.

Goodwill is recorded as the excess of the purchase, if any, over the fair value of the revaluest assets. Goodwill is tested annually ir
month of October for possible impairment by compguthe fair value of each segment to its book vah&uding goodwill (step 1). If the fe
value of the segment is greater than its book valaegoodwill impairment exists. However, if theolovalue of the segment is greater tha
determined fair value, goodwill impairment may é&xdsad further testing is required to determine dh®unt, if any, of the actual impairm
loss (step 2). The step 1 test utilizes a comlonatif two methods to determine the fair value @& thporting units. For both segment
discounted cash flow model is created projectirghdioows from operations of the business segmbeatrasults of which are weighted 70%.
the banking segment a market multiple model usligdce to net income and price to tangible bodke/é&nputs for closed transactions anc
certain common sized institutions and the resutsageighted 30%. For the insurance segment theeharlltiple model primarily utilizes pri
to sales for closed transactions and certain sinmldustry public companies and the results areghted 30%. The end results for k
segments are then compared to the respective badaks/to consider if impairment is evident. To deiee the overall reasonableness of
segment computations, the combined computed féilevia then compared to the overall market capgé#ibn of the consolidated Compan'
determine the level of implied control premium.

The discounted cash flow analysis uses estimatéseifiorm of growth and attrition rates, anticightates of return, and discount rates. T
estimates have a direct bearing on the resulthefimpairment testing and serve as the basis faragemens conclusions as to poten
impairment.

The results of the step 1 analysis performed abligrt31, 2010, determined that no impairment wadeav for the banking segment. For
insurance segment the step 1 analysis indicateinpairment. A step 2 analysis was performed for itftirance segment resulting in
impairment to goodwill of $1.04 million. An adjusémt to the weighting of the results, deterioratiorthe market multiples used, furtl
decline in the banking and retail insurance indusaluations, or further decline in our common &tpdce could provide evidence in the ful
of potential impairment.

Income Taxe

The establishment of provisions for federal antesitacome taxes is a complex area of accountinghwaiso involves the use of judgments
estimates in applying relevant tax statutes. Then@mny operates in multiple state tax jurisdictiansl this requires the appropriate alloce
of income and expense to each state based onetyafiapportionment or allocation bases. The Comps also subject to audit by federal
state tax authorities. Results of these audits pragluce indicated liabilities which differ from @pany estimates and provisions.
Company continually evaluates its exposure to jptessax assessments arising from audits and redraéstimate of possible exposure b
on current facts and circumstances.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognibedhe tax effects of differing carrying values a$sets and liabilities for tax and finan
statement purposes that will reverse in futurequri Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reftb@t currently enacted income tax r
applicable to the period in which the deferred @asets or liabilities are expected to be realizesettled. As changes in tax laws or rate:
enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities ajestatl through the provision for income taxes. Whemertainty exists concerning
recoverability of a deferred tax asset, the cagwalue of the asset may be reduced by a valuatiowance. The amount of any valuai
allowance established is based upon an estimateeadeferred tax asset that is more likely thantadie recovered. Increases or decreas
the valuation allowance result in increases oreses to the provision for income taxes.

Recent Acquisitions and Branching Activity

In July 2009, the Company acquired TriStone ComiyuBank (“TriStone”), based in WinstoBalem, North Carolina. TriStone had two
service locations in WinstoSalem, North Carolina. At acquisition, TriStone Hathl assets of $166.82 million, total loans 08323 millior
and total deposits of $142.27 million. Each outdiag common share of TriStone was exchanged f@2Shares of the CompasyCommo
Stock and the overall acquisition cost was $10.18am. The acquisition of TriStone significantlugmented the Comparg/market presen
and human resources in the Winston-Salem, Nortbl@armarket.
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In November 2008, the Company acquired Coddle CrEalancial Corp. (“Coddle Creek™)headquartered in Mooresville, Nc
Carolina. Coddle Creek had three full service bhamffices located in Mooresville, Cornelius, andintersville, North Carolina. ;
acquisition, Coddle Creek had total assets of &b&illion, total loans of $136.99 million and tbteposits of $137.06 million. Under 1
terms of the merger agreement, shares of CoddlekQr@mmon stock were exchanged for .9046 sharéseoCompanys common stock a
$19.60 in cash. The total deal value, includingaasheut of outstanding stock options, was $32.29 milli@oncurrent with the Coddle Cre
acquisition, Mooresville Savings Bank, Inc., SSie tvholly-owned subsidiary of Coddle Creek, was merged imoBank. As a result of t
acquisition and preliminary purchase price allamati$14.41 million in goodwill was recorded whigpresents the excess of the purchase
over the fair market value of the net assets aeduand identified intangibles.

GreenPoint Insurance Group (“GreenPoint”), a whollyned subsidiary of the Company, has acquired sssmance agencies and sold
since its acquisition by the Company in Septemi#372 GreenPoint has issued aggregate cash cortgidecd $190 thousand and $¢
thousand in 2010 and 2009, respectively, in conmeatith those acquisitions. Terms for acquisitigm®r to 2010 call for issuing further ce
consideration of $2.86 million if certain operatitaggets are met. If those targets are met, theeval the consideration ultimately paid will
added to the costs of the acquisitions. Acquisgtipnior to 2010 added $692 thousand, $803 thousamd,$2.04 million of goodwill ar
intangibles to the Comparg/balance sheet in 2010, 2009, and 2008, resphrctine2010, GreenPoint acquired one insurance @ge@as!
consideration of $190 thousand was provided atlh&ing date of the transaction. Acquisition tewwa8 for further cash consideration of $
thousand if certain operating targets are met.fahlesalue of these payments were booked at adprisind added $477 thousand of gooc
and intangibles to the Company’s balance sheehd@010.

Results Of Operations
2010 Compared To 2009

Net income available to common shareholders foil0204s $21.85 million, an increase of $62.70 millfoom a net loss available to comn
shareholders of $40.86 million in 2009. Basic aildteld earnings per common share for 2010 were3k@mpared with basic and dilu
losses per common share of $2.75 in 2009. The 2@0%ss to common shareholders was impacted byagrampairment charges and los
on the sale of securities amounting to $90.54 amilliThe Companyg' return on average assets was 0.97% in 2010, cethpa a negati\
1.83% in 2009. Return on equity was 8.11% in 2@btppared to a negative 16.73% in 2009.

Net Interest Income

The primary source of the Compasyearnings is net interest income, the differerstevéen income on earning assets and the cost dt
supporting those assets. Significant categoriesanhing assets are loans and securities while deparsd borrowings represent the m
portion of interest bearing liabilities. Net intstencome was $73.86 million for 2010, comparechvii69.25 million for 2009, an increase
$4.61 million, or 6.65%. Tax equivalent net interi@some totaled $77.22 million for 2010, an ineaf $4.67 million, or 6.44%, from $72
million reported for 2009. The increase in tax @glent net interest income was due primarily tordases in time deposits and borrowing ¢
as a result of repricing opportunities throughostistained low rate environment.

For purposes of the following discussion, comparieb net interest income is performed on a taxjant basis, which provides a comr
basis for comparing yields on earning assets exdropt federal income taxes to those assets whiehfaly taxable (see the table tit
Average Balance Sheets and Net Interest IncomeyAisal

Average earning assets increased $40.59 milliohevehierage interest bearing liabilities increas&f.$1 million during 2010 as compare(
the prior year. The changes include the full yegpact of the July 2009 TriStone acquisition. Theld/ion average earning assets decreas
basis points to 5.40% for 2010 from 5.73% for 208Bortterm market interest rates remained low througi2®1i0, as the Federal Rese
Board held the “rangedf zero to 25 basis points as its target for feldiznads. The prevailing low interest rate enviromnheas the large
driver in the overall decrease in the Company’&y@m average earning assets.

Total cost of average interest bearing liabilitdscreased 53 basis points to 1.67% during 2010. Jdmpanys time deposit portfoli
experienced downward repricing during 2010, as nudriie higherate certificates were renewed at lower ratesobrenewed. The net res
was an increase of 20 basis points in the netdstamate spread, or the difference between intémestne on earning assets and expen:
interest bearing liabilities, for 2010 compared2{)9. The net interest rate spread for 2010 wa’d%3.¢ompared with 3.53% for 2009. -
Companys net interest margin, or net interest income &raye earning assets, of 3.90% for 2010 repreaeritecrease of 16 basis points fi
3.74% in 2009.

Loan interest income increased $2.12 million dur#@i0 as compared with 2009 as average volumeadseds while the yield on loe

decreased 15 basis points during the same periodnd 2010, the yield on available-feale securities decreased 81 basis points to ¢
while the average balance decreased by $44.58mils compared with 2009.
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Average interest bearing balances that the Compaaigtains with third party banks increased $19.7fian during 2010 to $81.99 millio
while the yield decreased 3 basis points to 0.24%nd the same period. Interdstaring balances with third party banks are coredrlargel’
of excess liquidity bearing overnight market rates.

The average balances of interbstring deposits increased $30.37 million, or 2.16#le the average rate paid during 2010 decre&9duhsi
points when compared to the prior year. The averagepaid on interest bearing demand depositeased 17 basis points, while the ave
rate paid on savings, which includes money market savings accounts, decreased 12 basis point81ih ompared with 2009. In 20
average time deposits decreased $103.07 milliotevthe average rate paid decreased 75 basis foi2t42% as compared with 2009.
decrease can be attributed to customers movingore tiguid investment accounts and the menewal of certificates at lower interest re
The level of average non-interest bearing demapdsits increased $6.48 million to $206.40 millior2010 compared with the prior year.

The average balance of retail repurchase agreenvehitsh consist of collateralized retail depositsl @ommercial treasury accounts, decre
$4.24 million in 2010, while the average rate paidthose funds decreased 36 basis points to 1.0#tbgdthe same period. There were
federal funds purchased on average during 2010.aUeeage balance of wholesale repurchase agreememtined unchanged at $5(
million between 2010 and 2009, while the rate desed 10 basis points due to structure within tHmseowings. The average balance
Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB"advances and other borrowings decreased $10.2milbr 4.99%, while the rate paid on th
borrowings decreased 12 basis points in 2010 cosdpaith 2009. Other borrowings include the Comparigust preferred issuance of $1£
million, which is indexed to 3-month LIBOR.

Average Balance Sheets and Net Interest Income Anyais

2010 2009 2008
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Rate @ Balance Interest @) Rate @ Balance Interest ) Rate @)

(Dollars in Thousands
Earning Assets
Loans held for investmen® $ 1,400,06 $ 84,90¢ 6.06% $ 1,333,111 $ 82,78t 6.21% $ 1,199,077 $ 80,30¢ 6.7(%
Available-for-sale securitie 492,70! 21,31! 4.3™% 537,27¢ 27,63¢ 5.1%% 576,86¢ 33,43¢ 5.8(%
Held-to-maturity securitie! 6,29¢ 532 8.4€% 7,82¢ 642 8.21% 10,30: 84¢ 8.24%
Interest bearing deposits with banks 81,987 194 0.22% 62,24 165 0.27% 15,48¢ 30€ 1.9¢%

Total earning asse 1,981,05! 106,94¢ 5.4(% 1,940,46! 111,23: 5.7% 1,801,73 114,89¢ 6.3t%
Other assets 282,00! 288,45( 244,45!

Total $ 2,263,05! $ 2,228,911 $ 2,046,18
Interes-bearing liabilities
Demand deposil $ 252,47 $ 98C 0.3% $ 205997 $ 443 0.22% $ 174,80¢ $ 29z 0.17%
Savings deposil 421,18 2,751 0.65% 334,21° 2,58¢ 0.71% 312,36: 4,697 1.5(%
Time deposits 760,28¢ 16,15¢ 2.12% 863,35’ 24,76¢ 2.81% 671,72¢ 24,807 3.6%

Total interest bearing depos 1,433,94. 19,88 1.3% 1,403,57 27,79¢ 1.9¢% 1,158,90 29,79: 2.51%
Borrowings:
Federal funds purchas: - - - - - - 15,94 362 2.27%
Retail repurchase agreeme 97,53: 992 1.02% 101,77¢ 1,37¢ 1.3¢% 143,15¢ 3,02¢ 2.12%
Wholesale repurchase agreeme 50,00( 1,872 3.7&% 50,00( 1,927 3.82% 50,00( 1,63( 3.2€%
FHLB borrowings and other debt 194,46: 6,974 3.5% 204,67¢ 7,58¢ 3.71% 244,80: 10,117 4.1%%
Total borrowings 341,99: 9,83¢ 2.88% 356,45: 10,88¢ 3.05% 453,90: 15,13¢ 3.3%%

Total interest bearing liabilitie 1,775,93: 29,72t 1.67% 1,760,02: 38,68 2.2(% 1,612,80: 44,93( 2.7%%
Noninteres-bearing demand depos 206,39¢ 199,91° 211,79:
Other liabilities 11,28( 24,83: 19,85(
Stockholders' equity 269,44t 244,13 201,74.

Total $ 2,263,05! $  2,22891 $ 2,046,18
Net interest income $ 77,22. $ 72,54¢ $ 69,96¢
Net interest rate spreddl 3.7:% 3.52% 3.5%
Net interest margiff) 3.9(% 3.7% 3.86%

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 35% ("FT.I

(2) Non-accrual loans are included in average balancesamdglisg but with no related interest income dutimg period of no-accrual.
(3) Represents the difference between the tax equitgield on earning assets and cost of ful

(4) Represents tax equivalent net interest income @ivlny average interest earning as:
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Rate and Volume Analysis of Interest

The following table summarizes the changes in taxvalent interest earned and paid detailing thewarts attributable to (i) changes in volt
(change in the average volume times the prior gemrerage rate), (ii) changes in rate (changdseimverage rate times the prior ysaverag
volume), and (iii) changes in rate/volume (changthe average column times the change in averagg ra

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2010 Compared to 20( December 31, 2009 Compared to 20(
Dollar Increase/(Decrease) due t Dollar Increase/(Decrease) due t
Rate/ Rate/

(In Thousands) Volume Rate Volume Total Volume Rate Volume Total
Interest Earned O1

Loans (FTE] $ 4,15¢ % (2,000 $ 37 $ 2,121 $ 898( $ (5,87) $ (625 % 2,48(

Securities availab-for-sale (FTE] (2,29)) (4,357) 31¢€ (6,325) (2,29¢) (3,807) 303 (5,800)

Securities hel-to-maturity (FTE) (12€) 20 (4) (110 (204) ?3) 1 (20€)

Interest-bearing deposits with other banks 53 (19) (5) 29 92€ (26E) (802) (147)
Total interest-earning assets 1,79¢ (6,35]) 272 (4,28%) 7,40¢ (9,95]) (1,127) (3,667)
Interest Paid Or

Demand deposi 10z 35C 85 537 53 87 11 151

Savings deposil 67C (401) (10€) 162 32¢ (2,280 (159) (2,105

Time depositt (2,95¢) (6,475) 824 (8,609 7,071 (5,50¢) (1,605) (42)

Fed funds purchase - - - - (363) - 1 (362)

Retail repurchase agreeme (57) (336€) 10 (389) (877) (1,102 32¢€ (1,659

Wholesale repurchase agreeme - (50) ©) (50) - 29C 2 29z

FHLB borrowings and other long-term debt (37¢ (24€) 10 (61F) (1,657%) (1,02¢) 157 (2,52¢)
Total interest-bearing liabilities (2,627) (7,15%) 822 (8,957%) 4,55¢ (9,547) (1,267) (6,24¢)
Change in net interest income,tax equivalent $ 4,416 $ 807 $ (55) $ 467: $ 2,851 $ (409 $ 13¢ 3 2,581

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is determined by rganzent as the amount to be added to the allowamdedn losses after net chargis have
been deducted to bring the allowance to a levetinHih managemert’best estimate, is necessary to absorb probasdedavithin the existit
loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses f@1D was $14.76 million, a decrease of $1.04 milklompared with 2009. The elevated |
loss provision is primarily attributable to highstofactors as net chargéfs increased during 2010. Qualitative risk fastoemained hig
reflective of the higher risk of inherent loan lesglue to rising unemployment, recessionary pressand devaluations of various categori
collateral. Net chargeffs for 2010 and 2009 were $12.55 million and $93llion, respectively. Expressed as a percentdgeverage loan
net charge-offs increased to 0.90% for 2010 fron®%h in 2009. See “Allowance for Loan Losses” ostitém for additional information.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income consists of all revenues whiehret included in interest and fee income relatedarning assets. Noninterest income
2010, exclusive of the impact of OTTI charges, gain the sale of securities, and acquisition gawas, $32.42 million, compared with $32
million in 2009. See “Financial Position — Availabfior-Sale Securitiesth Item 7 hereof for information on the changes ls$es relating
the Company’s securities.

Wealth management income, which includes feesrfmt services and commission and fee income gestetat IPC, decreased $319 thous
in 2010 to $3.83 million compared with 2009, a iesfi a decrease in trust service revenues. Sechegges on deposit accounts decre
$764 thousand in 2010 to $13.13 million comparetth D09, as a result of lower overall consumer dpenleading to lower levels of cert
activity charges. Other service charges, commisséom fees reflected an increase of $359 thousa2dl0 compared with 2009, due mainl
increased debit card interchange income, as thep@oy’s customers increasingly chose card-based @atydelivery systems.
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Insurance commissions earned in 2010 were $6.71Bmitompared with $6.99 million in 2009. Incoma the insurance subsidiary is deri
primarily from commissions earned on the sale dicjes.

Other operating income for 2010 was $3.66 millian,increase of $1.04 million from 2009. The largemhponents of the increase in o
operating income for 2010 were increased reverua fecondary market mortgage operations of $79rstmal, a litigation settlement of $:
thousand, and a gain on the sale of real est&@48 thousand.

During 2010, the Company recognized net securgans of $8.27 million, an increase of $19.95 millifrom losses recognized in 2009
December 2009, net security losses of $11.67 miileluded four pooled trust preferred securitielsl by the Company that resulted in a
of $14.82 million.

Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense was $69.94 million fot@Gan increase of $3.32 million over 2009. Satasrd benefits increased $3.14 millio
2010 compared to 2009. At December 31, 2010, thregaoy had total fulttme equivalent employees of 683 compared to 64Beaember 3.
2009. Full-time equivalent employees are calculaisohg the number of hours worked. GreenPoint auealfor 59 fulltime equivaler
employees at year-end 2010 compared with 57 ateme@d2009. Total full-time equivalent employeeshat Bank and IPC increased by 37 full-
time equivalent employees during 2010. Health iasoe costs increased $1.39 million, or 87.70%, 4bit{k) employer matching co
decreased $250 thousand, or 18.24%. The Companmyleferred $296 thousand less in direct loan aatipm costs than in 2009 primarily ¢

to lower origination volumes.

Occupancy expenses increased $549 thousand inta0fi®.44 million, compared with 2009, due to thé fear effect of the acquisition
TriStone and bank building repairs.

FDIC premiums and assessments totaled $2.86 milhodecrease of $1.41 million from 2009. Includadthe 2009 amount is a spe
assessment levied on all banks that approximat88 $tusand for the Company.

Other operating expenses increased $1.84 millic20it0 to $20.34 million, compared with 2009. Thamary cause for the increase in o
operating expenses was a $2.32 million increadesses on sale of foreclosed properties, which $888 million in 2010 compared to $i
thousand in 2009. Also contributing to the changether operating expenses were increases in legegl, and interchange expenses of ¢
thousand, $190 thousand, and $272 thousand, resggcoffset by decreases in consulting fees o68Imillion. As of December 31, 2010,
Company recognized a goodwill impairment of $1.0Hion at the insurance agency segment.

The Company uses an efficiency ratio that is a @&#P financial measure of operating expense cordrad efficiency of operatior
Management believes this ratio better focuses tatteon the core operating performance of the Campmaver time than does a GAARse!
ratio, and is highly useful in comparing periodgeriod operating performance of the Compangbre business operations. It is use
management as part of its assessment of its peafarenin managing noninterest expenses. Howevsrjrthasure is supplemental and is r
substitute for an analysis of performance base@AAP measures. The reader is cautioned that theesfty ratio used by the Company r
not be comparable to efficiency ratios reportedther financial institutions.

In general, the efficiency ratio used by the Conypannoninterest expenses as a percentage of tegedt income plus noninterest inco
Noninterest expenses used in the calculation egcludortization of intangibles and r-recurring expenses. Income for the ratio is inae
for the favorable effect of tagxempt income (see Average Balance Sheets anchiéeest Income Analysis), and excludes securitissgan:
losses, which vary widely from period to period waitit appreciably affecting operating expenses, negafring gains and losses, and O
charges. The measure is different from the GA¥Bed efficiency ratio, which also is presentedhis report, which is calculated us
noninterest expense and income amounts as showheoface of the Consolidated Statements of IncoBoth types of efficiency rat
calculations are set forth and are reconciled éntéble below.
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The (nonGAAP) efficiency ratios for continuing operationar 2010, 2009, and 2008 were 59.09%, 59.10%, ane4%a, respectively. Tl
following table details the components used inwakion of the efficiency ratios.

2010 2009 2008

(Dollars in Thousands
GAAP-based efficiency ratio

Noninterest expenst $ 69,94: $ 66,62: $ 60,51¢
Net interest income plus noninterest incc $ 11436¢ $ 15,57F $ 68,20¢
GAAP-based efficiency rati 61.16% 427.7% 88.72%
Non-GAAP efficiency ratio
Noninterest expens— GAAP-basec $ 69,94: $ 66,62: $ 60,51¢
Less no-GAAP adjustments
Foreclosed property expen (3,079 (763) (382)
Amortization of intangible: (1,0372) (1,02¢) (689)
Prepayment penalties on FHLB advan - (88) (1,647)
Merger expense - (1,72¢) -
FDIC special assessmel - (98¢) -
Goodwill impairment (1,039 - -
Other non-core, non-recurring expense items (4) (22E) (51)
Adjusted no-interest expense 64,78¢ 61,80¢ 57,74%
Net interest income plus noninterest inc— GAAP-basec 114,36! 15,57¢ 68,20¢
Plus no-GAAP adjustment
Tax equivalenc! 3,36¢ 3,29 4,13:
Less no-GAAP adjustments
Security (gains) losse (8,273 11,67 (2,899
Otherthar-temporary security impairmen 18t 78,86: 29,92:
Acquisition gains - (4,497 -
Other nok-core, nor-recurring income item - (340 -
Adjusted net interest income plus noninterest ine 109,64 104,57! 100, 36¢
Non-GAAP efficiency ratic 59.0% 59.1(% 57.5%%

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense is comprised of federal ané statrent and deferred income taxes ontpreearnings of the Company. Income taxes
percentage of preax income may vary significantly from statutoryasmdue to items of income and expense which arkeiéed, by law, fror
the calculation of taxable income. These itemscaramonly referred to as permanent differences. Mbst significant permanent differen
for the Company include income on state and muali@pcurities which are exempt from federal incdene certain dividend payments wh
are deductible by the Company, and the increastsinash surrender values of life insurance psici

Consolidated income taxes for 2010 were $7.82 aniltompared with an income tax benefit of $28.18ioni in 2009. For the year enc
2010, the effective tax expense rate was 26.35% eflective tax rate for 2009 was not meaningfud thuthe pre-tax loss.

2009 Compared To 2008

The net loss available to common shareholders@682vas $40.86 million, a decrease of $42.56 milfimm net income available to comn
shareholders of $1.70 million in 2008. Basic ardtdd loss per common share for 2009 was $2.75peoed with basic and diluted earni
per common share of $0.15 in 2008. The significkedline in earnings in 2009 reflects fgaa- impairment charges and losses on the si
securities amounting to $90.54 million. The Compamgturn on average assets was a negative 1.82%0® and 0.08% in 2008. Return
equity was a negative 16.73% in 2009 and 0.86%0082

The Company acquired TriStone Community Bank, 68 million bank, in July 2009. As a result of thequisition, a gain of $4.49 milli

was recorded, which represents the excess fairehadtue of the net assets acquired and indentifiechgibles over the purchase price.
net operations of TriStone were not significanth® Company’s 2009 results of operations.
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Net Interest Income

Net interest income was $69.25 million for 2009mpared with $65.84 million for 2008. Tax equivalemwt interest income totaled $72
million for 2009, an increase of $2.58 million frahe $69.97 million reported for 2008.

For purposes of the following discussion, comparieb net interest income is performed on a tax \ejant basis, which provides a comr
basis for comparing yields on earning assets exdropt federal income taxes to those assets whiehfulty taxable (see the table tit
Average Balance Sheets and Net Interest IncomeyAisal

Average earning assets increased $138.73 milliotevelverage interest bearing liabilities increa$éd7.22 million during 2009 as compa
to the prior year in each case over the companadld. The increases primarily reflect the acdioiss of TriStone and Coddle Creek. -
yield on average earning assets decreased 65pmsts to 5.73% for 2009 from 6.38% for 2008. S-term market interest rates remained
throughout 2009, as the Federal Reserve Boardtheldrange”of zero to 25 basis points as its target for feldfenads. The prevailing lo
interest rate environment was the largest drivéhéoverall decrease in the Company’s yield omage earning assets.

Total cost of average interest bearing liabilit@screased 59 basis points to 2.20% during 2009. Admpanys time deposit portfol
experienced downward repricing during 2009, as nadrtiie higherrate certificates were renewed at lower ratesporenewed. The net res
was a decrease of 6 basis points in the net inteaés spread, or the difference between interegime on earning assets and expen:
interest bearing liabilities, for 2009 compared2@08. The net interest rate spread for 2009 wa3%8.6ompared with 3.59% for 2008. ~
Companys net interest margin, or net interest income &rage earning assets, of 3.74% for 2009 repreaaesrease of 14 basis points f
3.88% in 2008.

Loan interest income increased $2.48 million dur2@§9 as compared with 2008 as volume increaseile Wie yield on loans decreasec
basis points during the same period. During 2008 yield on available-fosale securities decreased 66 basis points to 5vlldi%é the averac
balance decreased by $39.59 million as compardd2Gi08.

Average interest bearing balances with banks ise@&46.75 million during 2009 to $62.24 milliorhile the yield decreased 171 basis p¢
to 0.27% during the same period. These balancesistoprimarily of overnight investments, and thelgias compared with 2008 on th
balances is primarily affected by changes in thgetafederal funds rate. The Company determineditias prudent to maintain a high leve
liquidity as a measure of safety during the recessly economic conditions experienced in 2009,@ddrly through the first two quarters
2009, as a result of market volatility.

The average total cost of interest bearing depalgitseased 59 basis points in 2009 compared wiil8.Z0he average rate paid on inte
bearing demand deposits increased 5 basis poihite the average rate paid on savings, which iredushoney market and savings accol
decreased 73 basis points in 2009 compared witB.2002009, average time deposits increased $191iB®n while the average rate pi
decreased 82 basis points to 2.87% as compared2@@B. The increase in time deposits reflects theykar impact of the acquisition
Coddle Creek and the partial year impact of theusitipn of TriStone. The level of average nioterest bearing demand deposits decre
$11.87 million to $199.92 million in 2009 companetih the prior year, but was offset by a $31.19lioml increase in interest bearing dem
deposits.

Average federal funds purchased decreased $15.8idnmin 2009 compared with 2008 to a zero balare®,the Company experien
historically high levels of liquidity. Average rétaepurchase agreements decreased $41.38 milli@@09, while the average rate paid on t
funds decreased, as they are closely tied to tiyettdederal funds rate and 3-month LIBOR. Aver&geleral Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”
advances and other borrowings decreased $40.1@millhile the rate paid on those borrowings de@da®? basis points in 2009 comps
with 2008. The Company prepaid a $25.00 million BHadvance in June 2009. Other borrowings include Gompanys trust preferre
issuance of $15.46 million, which is indexed to 8nth LIBOR.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses for 2009 was $15.80an, an increase of $6.58 million compared wB08. The increase in loan loss provi
is primarily attributable to rising loss factorsraet chargesffs escalated during 2009. Qualitative risk fastaere also higher, reflective of
higher risk of inherent loan losses due to risimgraployment, recessionary pressures, and devahsatib various categories of collate
including real estate and marketable securities.cNargeeffs for 2009 and 2008 were $9.31 million and $5#i8ion, respectively. Express
as a percentage of average loans, net chargenofisaised to 0.70% for 2009 from 0.45% in 2008.
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Noninterest Income

Noninterest income for 2009, exclusive of the $8&@llion OTTI charges, $11.67 million loss on tkale of securities, and $4.49 millior
gain resulting from the TriStone acquisition, wa2 87 million, compared with $30.40 million in 200Bee “Financial Position — Available-
for-Sale Securities” in Item 7 hereof for infornmation the changes and losses relating to the Coyfgpsecurities.

Wealth management income, which includes feegist services and commission and fee income gextest IPC, increased $47 thousan
2009 compared with 2008, a result of the increasesvenues at IPC. Service charges on deposiuateaecreased $175 thousand as a
of lower overall consumer spending leading to loleeels of certain activity charges. Other sengbarges, commissions and fees reflecte
increase of $467 thousand in 2009 compared witt8280e mainly to increased debit card interchangerne and ATM service fees, as
Company’s customers increasingly chose card-baageh@nt delivery systems.

Insurance commissions earned in 2009 were $6.9®mitompared with $4.99 million in 2008. Incoma the insurance subsidiary is deri
primarily from commissions earned on the sale dfcggs. The increase is due largely to a sizeablgusition of an insurance agency
GreenPoint located in Warrenton, Virginia, that wampleted in December 2008.

Other operating income for 2009 was $2.62 milliandecrease of $371 thousand from 2008. The lag®sponents of that difference
decreases in revenue from FHLB stock dividendssauodndary market mortgage operations of $432 tmoliaad $207 thousand, respectiv
net of a $340 thousand gain on the disposition®feenPoint office.

During 2009, the Company recognized net securitieses of $11.67 million, a decrease of $13.57ienilfrom gains recognized in 2008.
December 2009, the Company sold four pooled tmefepred securities that resulted in a loss of & illion.

Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense was $66.62 million fA2&n increase of $6.11 million over 2008. Sata&ird benefits increased $1.51 million
December 31, 2009, the Company had total full-tegaivalent employees of 646 compared to 638 at idbee 31, 2008. Fullime equivaler
employees are calculated using the number of heorked. GreenPoint accounted for 57 full-time eaglént employees at yeand 200
compared with 50 at year-end 2008. Total full-tiezgiivalent employees at the Bank and IPC remaiekdively stable increasing by 19 full-
time equivalent employees from the acquisition aS%ne. Health insurance costs decreased $733dndy or 31.59%, and 401(k) emplc
matching costs increased $139 thousand, or 11.36%Company also deferred $231 thousand lesseéctdan origination costs than in 2C

Occupancy expenses increased $787 thousand incBfPared with 2008, due to the full year effechefv branches, the full year impac
the acquisition of Coddle Creek, and the partiaryaffect of the acquisition of TriStone.

During 2009, the Company prepaid a $25.00 millitLB advance. The expense associated with that pregat was $88 thousand.

FDIC premiums and assessments totaled $4.26 milionincrease of $4.06 million from 2008. Includedthe 2009 amount is a spe:
assessment levied that approximated $988 thou3&edCompany also incurred expenses related torische merger of $1.73 million.

Other operating expenses decreased $760 thousa2@0fh compared with 2008. Contributing to the cleamgre decreases in adverti
expenses, consulting fees, and legal fees of #6@%tand, $350 thousand, and $238 thousand, resggcbffset by increases in service fee
$433 thousand.

The Company uses an efficiency ratio that is a @&#P financial measure of operating expense cordrad efficiency of operatior
Management believes this ratio better focuses tatteon the core operating performance of the Compaver time than does a GAARse!
ratio, and is highly useful in comparing periodgeriod operating performance of the Compangbre business operations. It is use
management as part of its assessment of its peafarenin managing noninterest expenses. Howevsrrthasure is supplemental and is
substitute for an analysis of performance base@AAP measures. The reader is cautioned that tha@esfEy ratio used by the Company r
not be comparable to efficiency ratios reportedther financial institutions.

In general, the efficiency ratio used by the Conypannoninterest expenses as a percentage of tegesh income plus noninterest inco
Noninterest expenses used in the calculation egcludortization of intangibles and r-recurring expenses. Income for the ratio is inae
for the favorable effect of tagxempt income (see Average Balance Sheets anchtéeest Income Analysis), and excludes securitissgan
losses, which vary widely from period to period waitit appreciably affecting operating expenses, negafring gains and losses, and O
charges. The measure is different from the GA¥Bed efficiency ratio, which also is presentedhis report, which is calculated us
noninterest expense and income amounts as showtheoface of the Consolidated Statements of IncoBwh types of efficiency rat
calculations are set forth and are reconciled éntéible below.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense is comprised of federal ané statrent and deferred income taxes ontpreearnings of the Company. Income taxes
percentage of preax income may vary significantly from statutoryasmdue to items of income and expense which arleiéed, by law, fror
the calculation of taxable income. These itemscaramonly referred to as permanent differences. mbst significant permanent differen
for the Company include income on state and muali@pcurities which are exempt from federal incdene certain dividend payments wh
are deductible by the Company, and the increastinash surrender values of life insurance psici

Consolidated income taxes for 2009 were a ben&f28.15 million compared with a benefit of $3.44liwn in 2008. The effective tax rat
for 2009 and 2008 were not meaningful due to at@xdoss and level of pre-tax income, respectively

Financial Position
Available-for-Sale Securities

Available-forsale securities were $480.06 million at December2810, compared with $486.06 million at Decembkr 2009, a decrease
$5.99 million. The market value of securities aablé-forsale as a percentage of amortized cost was 96.48%&34% at December 31, 2
and 2009, respectively. At December 31, 2010, trezage life and duration of the portfolio were geiars and 5.7, respectively. Average
and duration at December 31, 2009, were 6.0 yeatel®, respectively.

Available-for-sale and held-towaturity securities are reviewed quarterly for jiolesOTTI. This review includes an analysis of flaets an
circumstances of each individual investment suctih@adength of time the fair value has been belogt,diming and amount of contractual ¢
flows, the expectation for that security’s performo@, the creditworthiness of the issuer and the g2my’s intent to hold the security
recovery or maturity. If a decline in value is deténed to be other-thatemporary, the value of the security is reduced amtrrespondir
charge to earnings is recognized. In the instarice debt security which is determined to be othantemporarily impaired, the Compe
determines the amount of the impairment due toitetd the amount due to other factors. The amafiriimpairment related to credit
recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Incangethe remainder of the impairment is recognimemther comprehensive income.

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2889Company recognized credifated OTTI charges in earnings of $134 thousam

$77.59 million, respectively, related to beneficialerest debt securities. In addition, the Compasgognized impairment charges of
thousand and $1.27 million on certain equity hajdiduring 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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The following table provides details regarding thyge and credit ratings within the securities pitls as of December 31, 2010.

Unrealized
Gains/(Losses OTTI (2)
Par Fair Amortized Recognizec in
Value Value Cost in AOCI (1) AOCI (1)
(Amounts in Thousand
Available for sale
U.S. Government agency securit $ 10,00¢ $ 9,83 $ 10,00C $ (168 $ -
Agency mortgag-backed securitie 205,86° 215,01: 209,28: 5,732 -
Non-Agency mortgag-backed securitie
21,49( 11,27" 19,18 (7,909 (7,904
Total 21,49( 11,277 19,18 (7,909 (7,909
States and political subdivisio
AAA 13,02: 12,347 13,00¢ (657) -
AA 124,44 122,46° 124,44¢ (1,979 -
A 28,94 29,49¢ 28,88¢ 612 -
BBB 6,11¢€ 6,17¢ 6,06¢ 10€ -
Not rated 6,26F 5,652 5,74¢ (93) -
Total 178,79 176,13t 178,14¢ (2,017 -
Single-issue bank trust preferred securit
A 7,13( 5,62¢ 6,95: (1,329 -
BBB 15,30( 11,98¢ 14,96¢ (2,980 -
BB 34,12¢ 23,63: 33,67¢ (10,047) -
Total 56,55t 41,24 55,59« (14,35() -
Pooled trust preferred securiti
C 8,072 264 23 241 -
Total 8,072 264 23 241 -
Corporate FDIC insure
AAA 25,00( 25,66( 25,28: 37¢ -
Total 25,00( 25,66( 25,28 37¢ -
Equity securitie: - 63€ 49k 141 -
Total $ 505,77 $ 480,06: $ 498,00 $ (17,94) $ (7,904)
Held to maturity
States and political subdivisio
AA $ 3,37C % 3,397 $ 3,346 $ 51 % -
A 654 64¢€ 631 15 -
BBB 66C 661 66C 1 -
Total $ 4,68, $ 4,70¢  $ 4637 $ 67 $ >

(1) Accumulated other comprehensive income
(2) Other-than-temporary impairment

Municipal ratings reflect the rating of the undénty issuers and do not take into account any imagan the security. From September 20(
December 2010, the Company sold $9.65 million ohitipal securities as part of its monitoring praze¥he Company continued those ef
during the first two months of 2011. Generallye gecurities sold did not exhibit any meaningfeldir quality deterioration, rather were at
of losing market value.

35




The following table details amortized cost and feilue of available-for-sale securities as of Delwen81, 2010, 2009, and 2008.

December 31

2010 2009 2008
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value

(Amounts in Thousand
U.S. Government agency securit $ 10,00¢ $ 9,83 $ 25,42. % 25,27¢  $ 53,42F $ 54,81¢
States and political subdivisio 178,14¢ 176,13t 133,18! 135,60: 163,04: 159,41¢
Trust preferred securitie

Single-issue 55,59¢ 41,24+ 55,62+ 41,11( 55,49: 33,54.

Pooled 23 264 1,64¢ 1,64¢ 93,26¢ 32,51
Total trust preferred securit 55,611 41,50¢ 57,27: 42,75¢ 148,76( 66,05
Corporate FDIC insure 25,28 25,66( - - - -
Mortgage-backed securities

Agency 209,28: 215,01: 260,22( 264,21¢ 212,31! 216,96:

Non-Agency prime residenti - - 5,74: 5,17( 7,42 5,76¢

Non-Agency Alt-A residential 19,18: 11,27" 20,96¢ 11,30: 10,75( 10,75(
Total mortgag-backed securitie 228,46. 226,29( 286,93: 280,68 230,48t 233,47¢
Equity securities 49t 63€ 1,717 1,73: 7,97¢ 6,95¢

Total $ 498,00 $ 480,06: $ 504,52¢ $ 486,05° $ 603,69: $ 520,72:

At December 31, 2010, the Company held separatanses of trust preferred securities from one isailnéch had book and market value:
$28.73 million and $19.56 million, respectively.

Held-to-Maturity Securities

Investment securities classified as heldvtaturity are comprised primarily of high grade stabhd municipal bonds. The portfolio totaled $
million at December 31, 2010, compared with $7.48ian at December 31, 2009. This decrease is céfle of continuing maturities and ce
within the portfolio. The market value of held4teaturity investment securities was 101.44% and6@8%. of book value at December 31, 2
and 2009, respectively.

The following table details amortized cost and failue of held-to-maturity securities at Decemhkr2010, 2009, and 2008.

December 31

2010 2009 2008
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
(Amounts in Thousand
States and political subdivisio $ 4,637 $ 4,70¢ $ 7,45¢  $ 757¢ $ 8,67C $ 8,80z
Total $ 4637 $ 4,70 $ 7,45¢  $ 757¢ $ 8,67( $ 8,80:

Loans Held for Sale

At December 31, 2010, the Company held $4.69 milldd mortgage loans for sale to the secondary nmailkee gross notional amount
outstanding commitments to originate mortgage Idangustomers at December 31, 2010, was $7.57omitin 48 loans. The Company s
these mortgages on a best efforts basis and geserahinterest income through origination fees, serviaielgase premiums, and yield spr
gains.

Loans Held for Investment
Total loans held for investment decreased $7.78amito $1.39 billion at December 31, 2010. Therage loan to deposit ratio increase

85.35% for 2010, compared with 83.14% for 2009. rage loans held for investment for 2010 of $1.40oli increased $66.95 million wh
compared with the average loans held for investrfoar2009 of $1.33 hillion.
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The held for investment loan portfolio continuedb®well diversified among loan types and indusggments. The following table presents
various loan categories and changes in compositigear-end 2006 through 2010.

Loan Portfolio Summary

December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Amounts in Thousand
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 42,69 $ 47.46¢ $ 58,26¢ $ 72,808 $ 64,28
Land developmer 16,65( 22,83: 20,67: 30,017 36,97:
Other land loan 24,46¢ 32,56¢ 28,59( 27,497 23,06¢
Commercial and industri; 94,12: 95,11°¢ 83,63: 93,85( 104,30¢
Multi -family residentia 67,82« 65,60: 46,75 37,69: 40,44¢
Non-farm, nor-residential 351,90: 343,97! 315,54° 313,84! 345,51°
Agricultural 1,34z 1,251 1,40z 2,41( 2,33¢
Farmland 36,95 41,03« 45,337 34,57¢ 35,10:
Total commercial loan 635,95¢ 649,84! 600,19’ 612,69( 652,03
Real estate loar
Home equity line: 111,62( 111,59 90,55¢ 67,62¢ 59,86:
Single family residential mortgac 549,15 545,77( 512,01 430,71¢ 446,51
Owner-occupied constructio 18,34¢ 22,02¢ 23,08¢ 32,99: 34,24:
Total real estate loar 679,12¢ 679,39! 625,65¢ 531,33° 540,61!
Consumer loan 63,47¢ 60,09( 66,25¢ 75,45 88,67
Other 7,64¢ 4,601 6,04¢ 6,027 3,54¢
Total loans 1,386,20! 1,393,93: 1,298,15! 1,225,50! 1,284,87!
Less unearned income - - 1 3 13
1,386,201 1,393,93. 1,298,15! 1,225,50: 1,284,86.
Less allowance for loan losses 26,48: 24,27 17,78: 12,83: 14,54¢
Net loans $ 1,359,72. $ 1,369,65- $ 1,280,371 $ 1,212,660 $ 1,270,31

The Company maintained no foreign loans in thegoisrpresented. The Company’s loans are made plynrathe fivestate region in which
operates. The Company had no concentrations ofltmone borrower representing 10% or more of antihg loans at December 31, 2(
At December 31, 2010, the Company had 11.23% aftantling loans concentrated in the lessors ofeatia buildings segment.

At December 31, 2010, commercial loans comprise88% of the total loan portfolio. Commercial loanslude loans to small to misize
industrial, commercial, and service companies thelude, but are not limited to, coal mining comjesn natural gas producers, automc
dealers, and retail and wholesale merchants. Cooiaheeal estate projects represent a varietyeofas's of the commercial real estate ma
including single family and apartment lessors, caruial real estate lessors, residential land deesto and hotel/motel operatc
Underwriting standards require that comprehensidyews and independent evaluations be performedredits exceeding predefined
limits on commercial loans. Updates to these loaviews are done periodically or on an annual bdsigending on the size of the I
relationship.

At December 31, 2010, retail oriented real estzd@$ comprised 48.99% of the total loan portfdiesidential real estate loans include loal

individuals within the Company’s market footprimr fthe acquisition or construction of owrmreupied homes, as well as, home equity |
and lines of credit. Underwriting standards regtiivat borrowers meet certain credit, income afidteval standards to qualify.
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The following table details the maturities and rsg@sitivity of the Company’s loan portfolio at [ecber 31, 2010.

Remaining Maturities

Over One
One Year to Over Five
and Less Five Years Years Total
(Amounts in Thousand
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 9,02 $ 33,67¢ % - $ 42,69
Land developmer 12,55( 4,05( 50 16,65(
Other land loan 10,32( 13,58¢ 564 24,46¢
Commercial and industri; 36,821 51,65: 5,64¢ 94,12
Multi-family residentia 22,05¢ 39,28: 6,48 67,82«
Non-farm, nor-residential 60,74¢ 252,75( 38,40¢ 351,90:
Agricultural 53¢ 77¢€ 27 1,34
Farmland 6,334 22,457 8,16: 36,95¢
Total commercial loan 158,39! 418,22: 59,34( 635,95¢
Consumer real estate log
Home equity line: 6,02: 25,25: 80,34t 111,62(
Single family residential mortgac 37,26: 138,48: 373,41: 549,15
Owner-occupied constructio 9,83 6,52 1,98 18,34¢
Total consumer real estate lo: 53,12 170,26: 455,74 679,12¢
Consumer loan 20,72¢ 40,08¢ 2,66t 63,47
Other 7,64¢€ - - 7,64¢

$ 239,88t $ 628,57. $ 517,74¢ $ 1,386,20

Rate Sensitivity
Predetermined ra $ 107,84¢ $ 457,49 $ 195,57F $ 760,91¢
Floating or adjustable ra 132,03 158,63: 334,61° 625,28’

$ 239,88t $ 616,12 $ 530,19: $ 1,386,201

The balance in ownersecupied construction with remaining maturitiesogér five years is derived from loans that a had time closing thi
has not converted to principal and interest payment

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is increased by @satg earnings in the form of provisions and byovecies of prior loan chargeffs, anc
decreased by loan chargffs. The provisions are calculated to bring thievednce to a level, which, according to a systemptocess ¢
measurement, is reflective of the amount that mememt deems adequate to absorb probable losse#tioAddinformation regarding tl
determination of the allowance for loan losses banfound in Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of thethis t
Consolidated Financial Statements included in I8hereof.

The allowance for loan losses was $26.48 millioatember 31, 2010, compared with $24.28 millioDatember 31, 2009, an increas
$2.21 million. The increase in the allowance wasngrily influenced by the effect of net charg#-activity during the year, which total
$12.55 million as of December 31, 2010, as compar&®.31 million as of December 31, 2009.

The allowance for loan loss methodology utilize®sliing five year average loss history that is atial for current qualitative or environme
factors that management deem likely to cause esdraedit losses as of the evaluation date tedffbm the historical loss experience. Tt
factors may include, but are not limited to, actuamisus estimated losses, regional and nationalogeiz conditions, including unemploym
trends, business segment and portfolio concentrgtimdustry competition, interest rate trends, #m impact of government regulatic
Management considers the allowance adequate basedits analysis of the portfolio as of December A110; however, no assurance ca
made that additions to the allowance for loan lesgé not be required in future periods.

38




The following table details loan charge-offs andoneeries by loan type for the five years ended Dewr 31, 2006, through 2010.

(Dollars in Thousands
Allowance for loan losses at beginning of petr
Acquisition balance
Charge-offs:
Constructior— commercial
Land developmer
Other land loan
Commercial and industrii
Multi-family residentia
Non-farm, nor-residential
Agricultural
Farmland
Home equity line:
Single family residential mortga¢
Ownel-occupied constructio
Consumer loan
Other
Total charge-offs
Recoveries
Constructior— commercial
Land developmer
Other land loan
Commercial and industrii
Multi -family residentia
Non-farm, nor-residential
Agricultural
Farmland
Home equity line:
Single family residential mortgac
Ownel-occupied constructio
Consumer loan
Other
Total recoveries
Net charg-offs
Provision charged to operations
Allowance for loan losses at end of period

Ratio of net charc-offs to average loans outstandi
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to total lo
outstandin¢

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$ 24270 $ 17,78 $ 1283t $ 14,54 14,73¢
- - 1,16¢ - -
1,34z 172 605 75 51
73€ 92t 1,43( - -
632 44z 44 - -
2,90( 3,26¢ 93¢ 741 89E
697 - 51 53 -
1,66¢ 1,07¢ 55E 98¢ 602
6 7 60 - -
- 50 - 97 25
1,08¢ 395 332 11€ -
3,25¢ 1,89¢ 1,29z 84¢€ 1,57¢
4 101 12€ - -
514 1,04: 952 842 1,211
75€ 98¢ 984 541 18(
13,60: 10,35 7,371 4,29t 4,54:
17 21 5 3 1
9 - - - -
11 - - - -
83 45¢ 572 447 461
12 - - 9 -
144 10€ 762 23¢ 384
32 4 1 - -
31 - - 31 36
12 1 - 40 -
91 11¢ 121 527 27E
6 2 - - -
162 34¢€ 24z 35€ 45C
43¢ - 22C 21€ 43
1,05 1,04¢ 1,92t 1,86 1,65(
12,55: 9,30¢ 5,44¢ 2,43: 2,89:
14,75; 15,80 9,22¢ 717 2,70¢
$  2648. $ 2427, $__ 17,78 $ 12,83 14,54
0.9(% 0.7C% 0.45% 0.15% 0.22%
1.91% 1.72% 1.37% 1.05% 1.15%
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The following tables detail the allocation of théowance for loan losses and the percent of loansaich category to total loans for the
years ended December 31, 2010. The Company madifidoan loss reserve methodology during 20081¢oease the number of individi
loan categories being analyzed, which resultsfierdint loan segmentation for 2007 and 2006.

(Dollars in Thousands
Constructior— commercial
Land developmer
Other land loan
Commercial and industrii
Multi-family residentia
Non-farm, nor-residential
Agricultural
Farmland
Home equity line:
Single family residential mortga¢
Ownel-occupied constructio
Consumer loan
Unallocated

Total

(Dollars in Thousands

Commercial, financial and agricultui
Real estat— constructior

Real estat— mortgage

Installment loans to individuals

Total

December 31

2010 2009 2008
$ 1,472 5% $ 1,191 5% $ 867 5%
1,77 7% 2,17¢ 9% 1,29¢ 7%
747 3% 64¢€ 3% 71 0%
4,511 17% 5,09¢ 21% 2,51¢ 15%
1,081 4% 44¢ 2% 117 1%
2,84¢ 12% 3,931 17% 3,15¢ 18%
19 0% 42 0% 31 0%
70 0% 75 0% 49 0%
2,13¢ 8% 1,19¢ 5% 74¢ 4%
9,86¢ 37% 6,957 2% 6,01¢ 35%
19¢ 1% 18¢€ 1% 431 3%
1,76¢ 6% 1,99( 8% 2,02¢ 12%
- 34z 45C
$ 26,48: 10(% $ 24,27 10(% $ 17,78: 10(%
December 31
2007 2006
$ 7,11¢ 39% $ 8,152 41%
40¢ 13% 37¢ 12%
3,617 41% 3,74¢ 39%
1,697 7% 2,27° 8%
$ 12,83: 10% $ 14,54¢ 10(%
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Risk Elements

Non-performing assets include loans on remerual status, newly restructured loans, loandractually past due 90 days or more and
accruing interest, and other real estate owned EOR. The levels of nomperforming assets for the last five years endingdbger 31, 201
are presented in the following table.

December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

(Dollars in Thousands
Non-accrual loan: $ 19,41 % 17,527 $ 12,76:  $ 2,92: % 3,81
Restructured loar 5,32t 1,39( - - -
Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruiteges - - - - -
Total nor-performing loan: 24,73¢ 18,917 12,76 2,92: 3,81
Other real estate ownu 4,91( 4,57¢ 1,32¢ 54E 25€
Total non-performing assets $ 29,64¢ $ 23,498 $ 14,08¢ $ 3,46¢ % 4,071
Restructured loans performing in accordance

modified terms $ 3911 $ 2,06: $ 113 $ 24§ 272
Non-performing loans as a percentage of total Ic 1.7¢% 1.36% 0.98% 0.22% 0.3(%
Non-performing assets as a percentage of total loadhs

other real estate ownt 2.1% 1.6&% 1.08% 0.28% 0.32%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage o-

performing loan: 107.(% 128.2% 139.2% 439.(% 381.6%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of non-

performing assel 89.2% 103.% 126.2% 370.(% 357.%

Total nonperforming assets were $29.65 million at Decemlegr2®10, compared with $23.50 million at Decembkr 209, an increase
$6.15 million. Nonperforming assets increased during 2010 as thedbecanomy and borrowers continued to suffer throtegessional
conditions. Included in noperforming assets are $5.33 million of unseasooad Festructurings at December 31, 2010. Duringd2@e
Company was more active in restructuring loan tefonsreditworthy customers. Approximately $828ubkand of the 2010 provision for Ic
losses was related to lowering the interest ratdodorowers under restructured terms. Nmtrual loans increased by $1.89 million to $1
million at December 31, 2010, compared with $17%Bion at December 31, 2009. A majority of the riease in noraccrual loans can
attributed to a $2.59 million increase in the comeia and industrial segment and a $1.48 millioor@ase in the mulfiamily residentie
segment. These increases were offset by a $1.1émilecrease in the commercial construction segraad a $1.35 million decrease in
land development segment.

Ongoing activity within the classification and cgoeies of norperforming loans includes collections on delinquescforeclosures, lo
restructurings, and movements into or out of the-performing classification as a result of changingtomer business conditions. There \
no loans 90 days past due and still accruing aeber 31, 2010 and 2009. OREO was $4.91 millioDetember 31, 2010, an increas
$332 thousand from December 31, 2009, and is chatehe lesser of estimated net realizable vatusost. OREO increased from Decen
31, 2009, as noperforming loans were converted to foreclosed esthte. The principal components of OREO at Decer@hbe 2010, a1
owner-occupied commercial real estate, residential re@te, and acquisition and development loans &3btillion, $1.30 million, and $8¢
thousand, respectively. OREO located in Winsgatem and Mooresville, North Carolina; Richmondrgifiia; and Tennessee accounts
27.71%, 25.24%, and 20.30%, respectively, of toiBEO. The present foreclosure process in North [Pargrohibits more timely resoluti
of real estate secured loans within that stateDé¢ember 31, 2010, OREO consisted of 34 propentitsan average value of $225 thous
and an average age of 8 months.

Certain loans included in the nawcerual category have been written down to themedéid realizable value or have been assigned &
reserves within the allowance for loan losses bagpeth management’s estimate of loss upon ultimeselution.
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The Company has considered all loans determinéeé impaired in the evaluation of the adequacy efaltowance for loan losses at Decen
31, 2010. The following table presents additionetiad of nonperforming and restructured loans for the five geamded December 31, 20
Additional information regarding non-performing t@acan be found in Note 5 Allowance for Loan Losses of the Notes to Consaéc
Financial Statements included in Item 8 hereof.

December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Amounts in Thousand
Non-accruing loan: $ 19,41: $ 17,527 $ 12,76 $ 292: $ 3,81
Restructured loar 5,32¢ 1,39( - - -

Loans past due over 90 days and still accruingest - - - - -
Restructured loans performing in accordance with

modified terms 3,911 2,06z 115 24~ 27z
Gross interest income which would have been rect

under original terms of non-accruing and restruedur

loans 1,341 69¢ 45¢ 301 397
Actual interest income during the peri 757 39t 89 17¢ 28¢€

Although total delinquent loans increased during®dhe Company has not experienced the significadit quality deterioration experient
by many of its peers. Non-performing loans, congatief nonaccrual loans and unseasoned loan restructurimgssured 1.78% and 1.36%
total loans as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, cdgpl. By way of comparison, the Compasyederal Reserve Board peer group of
holding companies with total assets between $1$hdillion at September 30, 2010, had rparforming loans measured at 3.71% of -
loans.

The primary composition of non-accrual loans is:78% single family residential mortgage; 24.06% 4fem, nonfesidential commercic
20.22% commercial and industrial; and 12.69% nfaltitily residential. Approximately $3.76 million, dr9.35%, of noraccrual loans
attributed to the TriStone loan portfolio that veasjuired during the third quarter of 2009.

The Companys provision for loan losses and the allowance danllosses remained elevated during 2010 due tewdh&ness in the real est
market and the recessionary economic conditiongréxpced during the year. As a result of the ineeeia chargeffs and weakness in t
broader economy, the Company deemed it approfdat&intain increased key qualitative factors #jtist upward the historical loss rate
its allowance model. Those increases have resintigtreases in the allowance as a percentagdaifle@ans.

As of December 31, 2010, there were no outstanctimgmitments to lend additional dollars to borrowedated to restructured loans.

The Company maintains an active and robust proladesdit identification system. When a credit is itlféed as exhibiting characteristics
weakening, the Company will assess the credit &emtial impairment. Examples of weakening includdinquency and deterioration of
borrowers capacity to repay as determined by our ongoiaditreview function. As part of the impairmentiew, the Company evaluates
current collateral value. It is the Compasmystandard practice to obtain updated third padijateral valuations to assist managemel
measuring potential impairment of a credit andahmunt of the impairment to be recorded, if any.

Internal collateral valuations are generally perfed within two to four weeks of the original idditation of potential impairment and rece
of the third party valuation. The internal valuatis performed by comparing the original appraieaturrent local real estate market condit
and experience and considers liquidation costs. rEiselt of the internal valuation is compared te thutstanding loan balance, anc
warranted, a specific impairment reserve will bialeléshed at the completion of the internal evatrat

A third party evaluation is typically received wiittthirty to fortyfive days of the completion of the internal evaioiat Once received, the th
party evaluation is reviewed by Special Assetsfsafi/or Credit Appraisal staff for reasonablenédsce the evaluation is reviewed

accepted, discounts to fair market value are agfizesed upon such factors as the bahistorical liquidation experience of like colledk ant
an estimated net realizable value is establishkdt @stimated net realizable value is then comp@arélte outstanding loan balance to deter:
the amount of specific impairment reserve. The ifigeimpairment reserve, if necessary, is adjustedeflect the results of the upda
evaluation. A specific impairment reserve is gethemaintained on impaired loans during the timei@e while awaiting receipt of the thi
party evaluation as well as on impaired loans tleatinue to make some form of payment and liquatats not imminent. Impaired loans

meeting the aforementioned criteria and that dohawe a specific impairment reserve typically hbeen previously written down throug
partial charge-off to their net realizable value.
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The Companys Special Assets staff assumes the management andonng of all loans determined to be impairedhil®% awaiting th
completion of the third party appraisal, the Compagenerally begins to complete the tasks necedsagain control of the collateral a
prepare for liquidation, including, but not limitéd engagement of counsel, inspection of collateaatl continued communication with
borrower, if appropriate. Special Assets staff aksgularly reviews the relationship to identify apgtential adverse developments during
time.

Generally, the only difference between current ajged value, adjusted for liquidation costs, arel ¢hrrying amount of the loan less
specific reserve is any downward adjustment toappraised value that the CompanyBpecial Assets staff determines appropriate. é
differences generally consist of costs to sellghaperty, as well as a deflator for the devaluabbproperty when banks are the sellers, an
deem these fair value adjustments.

Based on prior experience, the Bank does not giyesturn loans to performing status after thenlwéhave been partially charged
Generally, credits identified as impaired move flyichrough the process towards ultimate resolutibthe problem credit.

Deposits

Total deposits were $1.62 billion at December 31X a decrease of $25.01 million from $1.65 hillat December 31, 2009. Namteres
bearing demand deposits decreased by $3.09 milifoite interest bearing demand deposits increas@d5%3million during 2010. Savin
deposits, which consist of money market accountssavings accounts, increased $45.17 million wimike deposits decreased $97.59 mil
during 2010.

Average total deposits increased to $1.64 billiamirdy 2010 as compared to $1.60 billion during 2089erage interest bearing dem
deposits increased $46.47 million during 2010 t6227 million. Average noimterest bearing demand deposits increased $6.4#®mio
$206.40 million and savings deposits increasedBaillion to $421.18 million during 2010. Averagime deposits decreased $103.07 mi
in 2010. In 2010, the average rate paid on intdrearing deposits was 1.39%, down 59 basis p&ions 1.98% in 2009. Throughout 2010,
Company decreased its higher-rate certificatesepbdit and money market accounts.

Borrowings

The Companys borrowings consist primarily of overnight fedefahds purchased from the FHLB and other sourcesyrities sold und
agreements to repurchase, and term FHLB borrowifigis. category of liabilities represents wholessdarces of funding and liquidity for t
Company.

Shortterm borrowings decreased on average $4.24 mifbor2010 compared with the prior year as a resutlezreasing funding needs
strong deposit inflows. There were no federal fupdechased at December 31, 2010 and 2009. Rep#ramaeements were $140.89 mil
and $153.63 million at December 31, 2010 and 2088pectively. Retail repurchase agreements are teotdistomers as an alternative
available deposit products and commercial treaaacpunts. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, wholesglerchase agreements totaled $5
million. The weighted average rate of those lo@gn, wholesale repurchase agreements was 3.718eember 31, 2010 and 20
respectively. The underlying securities includedetail repurchase agreements remain under the @wyigpcontrol during the effective peri
of the agreements.

Short-term borrowings include overnight federaldsrand repurchase agreements. Balances and weigiheedge rates paid on shtetsr
borrowings used in daily operations are summaraeftbllows:

2010 2009 2008
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in Thousands
At yearend $ 90,89 0.71% $ 103,63 1.22% $ 115,91 1.4%%
Average during the ye: 97,53: 1.02% 101,77 1.35% 159,10: 2.1%
Maximum montl-end balanc: 108,64 106,40° 232,11(

At December 31, 2010, FHLB borrowings included $0@5million in convertible and callable advancebeWweighted average interest rat
all FHLB advances was 2.39% and 2.41% at Decembef@10 and 2009, respectively. $50.00 million loé advances are hedged by
interest rate swap to achieve a fixed rate of 4.34fer considering the effect of the interest rateap, the weighted average interest rate
FHLB advances was 3.63% at December 31, 2010. e&eBber 31, 2010, the FHLB advances had matubiéegeen six and eleven years.
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Also included in other indebtedness is $15.46 onillof junior subordinated debentures issued byCthmpany in October 2003 through F(
Capital Trust, an unconsolidated trust subsidiangh an interest rate of thrementh LIBOR plus 2.95%. The debentures mature itox
2033 and are currently callable at the option ef@@mpany.

Stockholders’ Equity

Total stockholdersequity increased $17.61 million, or 6.98%, from $25 million at December 31, 2009, to $269.88 wiillat December 3
2010. The increase in stockholdeesjuity was primarily the result of net income @145 million for the year ended December 31, 2
which was partially offset by $7.12 million of ddends paid to common shareholders, and decre&smsury stock of $3.15 million due to
Company contributing treasury stock as its matcleimgtribution to the 401(k) plan during 2010.

Risk-Based Capital

Risk-based capital guidelines and the leverage ragasure capital adequacy of banking institutidisDecember 31, 2010, the Company’
Tier | risk-based capital ratio was 14.07% compawéti 12.56% in 2009. The Company'’s total risk-lthsapital-toasset ratio was 15.33%
December 31, 2010, compared with 13.81% at Decer@beR009. Both of these ratios are well above dhent minimum level of 8'
prescribed for bank holding companies by the Fédeeserve Board. The leverage ratio is the measeme of total tangible equity to to
assets. The Comparsyleverage ratio at December 31, 2010, was 9.44%use3.51% at December 31, 2009, both of whichweléabove th
minimum levels prescribed by the Federal Resenardio

The OCC has issued an Individual Minimum CapitafidRéirective to the Bank which requires it to ntain a total riskbased capital ratio
11.50%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 10.0@%d a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 7.50%. The Bandtal risk-based capital, Tier 1 riddase:
capital, and Tier 1 leverage ratios were 14.18%92%, and 8.66%, respectively, at December 31, 288@ Note 14 Regulatory Capiti
Requirements and Restrictions in the Notes to ateded Financial Statements in Item 8 hereof.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity represents the Compaisyability to respond to demands for funds and isarily derived from maturing investment securij
overnight investments, periodic repayment of loaingipal, and the Company’ability to generate new deposits. The Company his th
ability to attract short-term sources of funds dnaw on credit lines that have been establishdéidacial institutions to meet cash needs.

Total liquidity of $586.41 million at December 32010, is comprised of the following: unencumberadhcon hand and deposits with o
financial institutions of $111.12 million; unpledfj@vailable-for-sale securities of $177.39 millidveld-tomaturity securities due within o
year of $1.07 million; FHLB credit availability §202.28 million; and federal funds lines availagibf $94.55 million.

Liquidity management is both a daily and lolegm function of business management. Excess liguid generally used to pay do
borrowings. On a longer-term basis, the Companyntaais a strategy of investing in securities, magtgpacked obligations and loans v
varying maturities. The Company uses these fundsnéet ongoing commitments, to pay maturing cegtis of deposit and savir
withdrawals, fund loan commitments and maintairogfplio of securities.

The Company also maintains policies and procedwegarding liquidity contingency planning. The pedares call for liquidity monitorir
through trending and ratio analysis, as well asdasting budgeted and stressed scenarios. Thedumas provide guidance for potential ac
to be taken when certain liquidity thresholds ast.m

Since the Company is a holding company and doesaratuct significant operations, its primary sosroéliquidity are dividends upstrean
from the Bank and borrowings from outside sour&ssiking regulations limit the amount of dividenfiatt may be paid by the Bank. See |
14 —Regulatory Capital Requirements and RestrictionthefNotes to Consolidated Financial Statementsided in Item 8 hereof regardi
such dividends. At December 31, 2010, the Compaaliquid assets, including cash and investmentrgtéss, totaling $21.37 million.

At December 31, 2010, approved loan commitmentstantling amounted to $209.98 million and certifisabf deposit scheduled to matur
one year or less totaled $463.53 million. Managédrhefieves that the Company has adequate resotrdaad outstanding commitments
could either adjust rates on certificates of depiosorder to retain or attract deposits in chaggimterest rate environments or replace
deposits with advances from the FHLB or other fumdssiders if it proved to be cost effective tosm
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The following table presents contractual cash aliimns as of December 31, 2010.

Total Payments Due by Perioc

Less than One to Three to More than
Total One year Three Years Five Years Five Years
(Amounts in Thousand
Deposits without a stated maturity $ 894,11¢ $ 894,11¢ $ - $ - $ -
Overnight security repurchase agreem: 77,65« 77,65¢ - - -
Certificates of deposit (2)(¢ 752,45; 473,41( 139,91 137,81¢ 1,311
Term security repurchase agreeme 74,90¢ 8,78¢ 10,54( 4,01z 51,57
FHLB advances (2) (¢ 201,51¢ 4,21( 8,36( 8,36( 180,58
Trust preferred indebtedne 27,88: 807 1,17 1,15: 24, 74¢
Leases 4,78( 964 1,527 71€ 1,57¢
Other commitment 903 903 - - -
Total $ 203421 $ 1,460,85 $ 161,51 $ 152,06( $ 259,79:

(1) Excludes interes

(2) Includes interest on both fixed and variable rdtégations. The interest associated with variablie obligations is based upon inte
rates in effect at December 31, 2010. The inteiedte paid on variable rate obligations is affddtg changes in market interest re
which materially affect the contractual obligat@mounts to be pai

(3) Excludes carrying value adjustments such as un&@adrpremiums or discount

The following table presents detailed informatiegarding the Company'’s off-balance sheet arrangenagmbecember 31, 2010.

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Less than One to Three to More than
Total One Year @  Three Years Five Years Five Years
(Amounts in Thousand
Commitments to extend cret
Constructior— commercial $ 2491 $ 19,56: $ 85C $ 2987 $ 1,51¢
Land developmer 3,98¢ 16 3 3,96 -
Commercial and industri 31,29¢ 23,03¢ 7,38¢ 841 31
Multi -family residentia 342 17C 10 162 -
Non-farm, nor-residential 10,97: 6,33¢ 1,52¢ 2,52¢ 59C
Agricultural 42¢ 373 55 - -
Farmland 1,57¢ 1,30¢ 171 96 -
Home equity line: 78,86: 4,39( 5,95z 16,58¢ 51,93(
Single family residential mortgac 2,45¢ 642 1,13(C 33t 34¢
Owner-occupied constructio 5,34¢ 3,72 6 85 1,53¢
Consumer loans 49,80: 49,65¢ 97 35 13
Total unused commitmen $ 209,98: $ 109,21: $ 17,18¢ $ 2762, $ 55,96
Financial letters of cred $ 356 $ 34 $ - $ - $ 1C
Performance letters of cret 3,68¢ 3,30¢ 31 28C 64
Total letters of credit $ 4.04: $ 3,651 $ 31 $ 28C $ 74

(1) Lines of credit with no stated maturity date arduded in commitments for less than one y

The Company has a pay fixed and receive varialiant rate swap that effectively fixes $50.00 iotillof FHLB borrowings at 4.34% fol
period of five years, which ended January 6, 20he derivative transaction is effective and perfioigras originally expected.
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Wealth Management Services

As part of its community banking services, the Camp offers trust management and estate administratérvices through its Trust ¢
Financial Services Division (“Trust Division"he Trust Division reported a total market valueasfets under management of $426 mi
and $411 million at December 31, 2010 and 200®eets/ely. The Trust Division manages inter vivassts and trusts under will, develops
administers employee benefit plans and individeitement plans and manages and settles estatiesiadfly fees for these services are che
on a schedule related to the size, nature and exitypbf the account.

The Company also offers investment advisory sesviteough the Bank’s whollgwned subsidiary, IPC, which reported assets
management of $433 million and $414 million at Daber 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Revenuesistgmsmarily of commissions ¢
assets under management and investment advisay fee

Insurance Services

The Company offers insurance services throughuitsigiary GreenPoint. Revenues are primarily derifrem commissions paid on polic
sold. Commission revenue was $6.73 million for 2@tthpared to $6.99 million for 2009. See Note 18egment Information of the Notes
the Consolidated Financial Statements includeem|8 hereof.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The Companys profitability is dependent to a large extent ujtemet interest income, which is the differeneteen its interest income
interestearning assets, such as loans and securitiestsaamierest expense on interest bearing liabilittesh as deposits and borrowings.
Company, like other financial institutions, is sedtj to interest rate risk to the degree that iteréstearning assets reprice differently thai
interest bearing liabilities. The Company managgesrix of assets and liabilities with the goalsliofiting its exposure to interest rate ri
ensuring adequate liquidity, and coordinating @srses and uses of funds while maintaining an dabéplevel of net interest income given
current interest rate environment.

The Companys primary component of operational revenue, ner@st income, is subject to variation as a resutthanges in interest re
environments in conjunction with unbalanced repdcopportunities on earning assets and interestrigebabilities. Interest rate risk has f(
primary components including repricing risk, bassk, yield curve risk and option risk. Repricinigkr occurs when earning assets and pe
liabilities reprice at differing times as intereates change. Basis risk occurs when the underhgtgs on the assets and liabilities the instit
holds change at different levels or in varying @egr Yield curve risk is the risk of adverse conseges as a result of unequal changes i
spread between two or more rates for different nitegs for the same instrument. Lastly, option riskhe result of “embedded optiongfter
called put or call options, given or sold to hoklef financial instruments.

In order to mitigate the effect of changes in teeeyal level of interest rates, the Company maneg@tcing opportunities and thus, its inte
rate sensitivity. The Company seeks to controlinterest rate risk (“IRR”)exposure to insulate net interest income and netiregs fron
fluctuations in the general level of interest rafEs measure its exposure to IRR, quarterly sinat of net interest income are perfort
using financial models that project net interesbime through a range of possible interest raterenwients including rising, declining, m
likely and flat rate scenarios. The results of éhsisnulations indicate the existence and sevefitiRB in each of those rate environments b
upon the current balance sheet position, assungptento changes in the volume and mix of interastieg assets and intergsying
liabilities, managemerg’ estimate of yields to be attained in those furate environments, and rates that will be paidvarious depos
instruments and borrowings. Specific strategiesrfanagement of IRR have included shortening thertimed maturity of new fixed rate loa
increasing the volume of adjustable rate loansettuce the repricing term of the Bank’s interestning assets, and monitoring the 1
structure of liabilities to maintain a balanced mafxmaturity and repricing to mitigate the poteh&aposure. The simulation model used by
Company captures all earning assets, interestrigelabilities and all offbalance sheet financial instruments and combinesahious facto
affecting rate sensitivity into an earnings outlo®ased upon the latest simulation, the Companiewes that it is in a relatively neut
position with respect to sensitivity to intereserask.

The Company has established policy limits for tatee of interest rate risk based on the incomelation compared with forecasted results

addition, the policy addresses exposure limitshtanges in the economic value of equity accordingréalefined policy guidelines. The m
recent simulation indicates that current exposoiiaterest rate risk is within the Company’s deirpmlicy limits.
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The following table summarizes the impact of imnag¢gliand sustained rate shocks in the intereseratieonment on net interest income
the economic value of equity as of December 310201d 2009. The model simulates plus 300 and niif0sasis point changes from the t
case rate simulation. This table, which illustratee prospective effects of hypothetical interestie rchanges, is based upon nume
assumptions including relative and estimated leweélkey interest rates over a twelmnth time period. This modeling technique, alttu
useful, does not take into account all stratedias management might undertake in response todesuahd sustained rate shock as dep
Also, as market conditions vary from those assumete sensitivity analysis, actual results wik@ldiffer due to prepayment and refinan
levels likely deviating from those assumed, theyiray impact of interest rate change caps or flaoradjustable rate assets, the potential ¢
of changing debt service levels on customers wdfbistable rate loans, depositor early withdrawald product preference changes, and «
internal and external variables. As of December2®1,0, the Federal Open Market Committee maintamtatget range for federal funds «
to 25 basis points, rendering a complete downwhatls of 200 basis points as not realistic and neammgful. In the downward rate sho
presented, benchmark interest rates are droppédiaitrs near 0%.

Rate Sensitivity Analysis
December 31, 2010 Simulatiol

(Dollars in Thousands Change in Change in
Increase (Decrease) il Net Interest Percent Market Value Percent
Interest Rates (Basis Points Income Change of Equity Change
30C $ 932 12 % (10,639 (3.6
20C 121 0.2 (1,530 (0.5
10C 32¢ 0.4 4,73¢ 1.€
(100) (10%) (0.7 (21,509 (7.9
December 31, 2009 Simulatiol
(Dollars in Thousands Change in Change in
Increase (Decrease) il Net Interest Percent Market Value Percent
Interest Rates (Basis Points Income Change of Equity Change
20C $ (2,40%) 1e $ (18,639 (6.9
10C (86€) (1.2 (7,715 (2.9
(200) 2,117 2.8 16,08’ 5.¢
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in Thousands)

Assets

Cash and due from ban

Federal funds sol

Interest-bearing balances with banks
Total cash and cash equivale

Securities available for sa

Securities held to maturi

Loans held for sal

Loans held for investment, net of unearned inc
Less allowance for loan loss

Net loans held for investme

Premises and equipment, |

Other real estate ownt

Interest receivabl

Goodwill

Other intangible asse

Other asset

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits:

Non-interest bearin

Interest bearin

Total deposit:
Interest, taxes and other liabiliti
Securities sold under agreements to repurc
FHLB borrowings and other indebtednt
Total liabilities

Stockholders' Equity

Preferred stock, par value undesignated; 1,000s8@€es authorized; no shares outstanding at Dece3tk

2010 or December 31, 20!

Common stock, $1 par value; shares authorized08(000; shares issued: 18,082,822 at 201(
18,082,822 at 2009; shares outstanding: 17,8668236810 and 17,765,164 at 2C

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Treasury stock, at co

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

December 31

2010 2009
28,81¢ $ 36,26
81,52¢ 61,37¢
1,847 3,70(
112,18 101,34
480,06 486,05
4,63 7,45¢
4,69¢ 11,57¢
1,386,201 1,393,93
26,48: 24,27
1,359,72. 1,369,65.
56,241 56,94
4,91( 4,57¢
7,67¢ 8,61(
84,91 84,64
5,72t 6,41¢
123,46: 136,00
2,244,231 $  2,273,28
205,15. $ 208,24
1,415,80. 1,437,71
1,620,95! 1,645,96!
21,31¢ 22,49¢
140,89« 153,63
191,19: 198,92
1,974,361 2,021,01
18,08: 18,08:
189,23¢ 190,96°
81,48¢ 66,76(
(6,740) (9,897)
(12,190) (13,65:)
269,87 252,26

$ 224423 $ 2,273,228




FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share and Per Sha@ap
Interest Income
Interest and fees on loa
Interest on securiti-taxable
Interest on securiti-nontaxable
Interest on federal funds sold and deposits in bank
Total interest income
Interest Expense
Interest on deposi
Interest on sha-term borrowings
Interest on long-term debt
Total interest expens
Net Interest Income
Provision for loan losse
Net interest income after provision for loan los
Noninterest Income
Wealth management incor
Service charges on deposit accol
Other service charges, commissions and
Insurance commissior
Total impairment losses on securit
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensicerne
Net impairment losses recognized in earni
Net gains (losses) on sale of securi
Gain on acquisitiol
Other operating income
Total noninterest incom
Noninterest Expense
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy expense of bank premi
Furniture and equipment exper
Amortization of intangible asse
Prepayment penalties on FHLB advan
FDIC premiums and assessme
Merger related expens
Goodwill impairment
Other operating expen:
Total noninterest expen:
Income (loss) before income tax
Income tax expense (benel
Net income (loss
Dividends on preferred stot
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol

Basic earnings (loss) per common share
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share

Dividends declared per common sh

Weighted average basic shares outstanding
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
$ 8474 $  8270¢ $ 80,22
12,70¢ 19,09: 22,71
5,94¢ 5,97¢ 7,521

194 16E 30€

103,58: 107,93 110,76!
19,88" 27,79¢ 29,79:
2,88: 3,291 5,25,

6,95¢ 7,58¢ 9,88¢
29,72t 38,68: 44,93
73,85, 69,25: 65,83t
14,75" 15,80: 9,22¢
59,10( 53,45: 56,60¢
3,82¢ 4,147 4,10(
13,12¢ 13,89: 14,06
5,072 4,71¢ 4,24¢

6,721 6,98¢ 4,98¢

(185) (88,43%) (29,929

- 9,57¢ -

(185) (78,86%) (29,929

8,27¢ (11,679 1,89¢

- 4,49: -

3,66: 2,624 2,99t
40,50¢ (53,677 2,377
34,52¢ 31,38¢ 29,87¢
6,43¢ 5,88¢ 5,10-

3,71¢ 3,74¢ 3,74(

1,03: 1,02¢ 68¢

- 88 1,647

2,85¢ 4,26 202

- 1,72¢ -

1,03¢ - -
20,33" 18,50( 19,26(
69,04: 66,62 60,51¢
29,66¢ (66,85() (1,539
7,81¢ (28,159 (3,487)
21,84’ (38,696 1,95¢

- 2,16( 25¢E

$ 2184 $ (40,850 $ 1,69¢
$ 1.2: $ (.75 $ 0.1¢
$ 12: $ .75 $ 0.1¢
$ 0.4C $ 0.3 $ 1.1z
17,802,00 14,868,54 11,058,07
17,822,94 _ 14,868,54 11,134,02




FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

(Amounts in Thousands) 2010 2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss $ 21,847 % (38,69¢) $ 1,95¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rehcprovided by operating activitie
Provision for loan losse 14,75 15,80: 9,22¢
Depreciation and amortization of premises andggent 4,091 4,02¢ 3,88¢
Intangible amortizatiol 1,03: 1,02¢ 68¢
Goodwill impairment 1,03¢ - -
Net investment amortization and accret 1,112 1,23¢ (161)
(Gains) losses on the sale of investments and assat: (8,149 11,59¢ (1,839
Net gain on acquisitior - (4,497 -
Mortgage loans originated for s¢ (49,762) (35,249 (32,709
Proceeds from sale of mortgage lo 57,47¢ 27,46« 32,67:
Gain on sale of loar (83%) (83 (187)
Equity-based compensation expel 58 158 26(
Deferred income tax expense (bene 13,00¢ (18,86¢) (13,329
Decrease in interest receival 93t 2,071 3,071
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic 9 2 (85)
Prepayment penal - 88 1,647
Contribution of treasury stock to 401(k) p! 1,04« 1,41¢ 1,20¢
FDIC prepaymen - (10,88Y) -
Net impairment losses recognized in earni 18t 78,86: 29,920
Net changes in other assets and liabili (2,317 (20,33¢) (2,657
Net cash provided by operating activit 55,52: 15,13 33,59(
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales of securities available fa 170,75: 167,07: 128,88t
Proceeds from maturities and calls of securitieslable for sale 90,63: 77,17¢ 87,14
Proceeds from maturities and calls of held to nigtsecurities 2,82¢ 1,23¢ 3,417
Purchase of securities available for ¢ (248,10) (218,96)) (171,44¢)
Net (increase) decrease in loans made to custc (5,437) 18,90: 58,47
Net redemption of FHLB stoc 1,45¢ 351 4,01z
Cash (used in) provided by divestitures and actijois, net (667) 21,74¢ (4,667)
Purchase of premises and equipn (3,749 (4,380 (6,040
Proceeds from sale of equipmi 163 327 21
Net cash provided by investing activiti 7,884 63,47¢ 99,80¢
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in demand and savingsitke 72,58¢ 71,43¢ (52,079
Net (decrease) increase in time depc (97,59) (71,93) 24,78¢
Net decrease in FHLB and other borrrowi (7,73)) (25,130 (76,039
FHLB debt prepayment fer -

(88) (1,647)

Net decrease in federal funds purche - (18,500
Net decrease in securities sold under agreemeaptochas: (22,740 (12,280 (41,519
Redemption of preferred sto - (41,500 -
Net proceeds from the issuance of common s - 61,66¢ -
Net proceeds from the issuance of preferred < - - 41,40¢
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti 29 21 464
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic 9 2 85
Acquisition of treasury stoc - (167) (4,222
Preferred dividends pa - (1,11¢) -
Common dividends pai (7,12]) (4,619) (12,457)
Net cash used in financing activiti (52,559 (23,709 (139,706
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 10,84¢ 54,90: (6,307)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 101,34. 46,43¢ 52,74¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 112,18¢ $ 101,34. $ 46,43¢
Supplemental informatio— Noncash item
Transfers of loans to other real est $ 6,79: $ 6,49C $ 2,65:¢
Cumulative effect adjustment, net of 1 $ - $ 6,131 $ -



(See Note 1 for detail of income taxes and intgoagt and Note 2 for supplemental information regay detail of cash paid in acquisitions.)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.

EQUITY

Accumulated

Additional Other
Preferred Common Paid-in Retained Treasury Comprehensive
(Dollars in Thousands) Stock Stock Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Income Total
Balance January 1, 20( $ - 11,49¢ % 108,82 $ 117,67C  $ (13,61) $ (7,289 $ 217,09¢
Comprehensive los
Net income $ - -0 % - % 1,95« $ - % - % 1,95¢
Other comprehensive loss — see note 17 - - - - - (45,23¢) (45,23¢)
Comprehensive loss - - - 1,95¢ - (45,23¢) (43,28()
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ (81%) (813)
Preferred stock issuance, | 40,39t - (92) - - - 40,30
Common stock warrant issuar - - 1,10¢ - - - 1,10¢
Preferred dividend, nt 24 - (255) - - (231)
Common dividends declare— $1.12 per shar - - - (12,457) - - (12,457)
Purchase of 132,100 treasury shares at $31.96pez - - - - (4,227) - (4,227)
Acquisition of Coddle Cree— 552,216 share - 552 18,58¢ - - - 19,14¢(
Acquisition of GreenPoint Insurance Grc— 7,728 share - - 22 - 24¢ - 267
Acquisition of Investment Planning Consultants 363,
shares - (26) - 26€ - 24C
Contribution of treasury stock to 401(k) plan —B75
shares - - 8 - 1,20 - 1,20¢
Equity-based compensatic - - 244 - 16 - 26(
Tax benefit from exercise of stock optic - - 127 - - - 127
Common stock options exercised — 22,323 shares - - (27€) - 74C - 464
Balance December 31, 2008 $ 40,41¢ 12,05. $ 128,52t $ 106,10 $ (15,369 $ (52,51) $ 219,21}
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ $ - - 8 - $ 6,131 $ - $ 6,13) $ =
Comprehensive incom
Net loss - - - (38,69¢) - - (38,69¢)
Other comprehensive income — see note 17 - - - - - 44,99¢ 44,99¢
Comprehensive income - - - (32,56) - 38,86 6,30(
Preferred dividend, nt 1,081 - 37) (2,160 - - (1,116
Common dividends declare— $0.30 per shar - - - (4,619 - - (4,619
Redemption of preferred sto (41,500 - - - - - (41,500
Purchase of 13,500 treasury shares at $12.29 pez - - - - (167) - (167)
Acquisition of GreenPoint Insurance Group — 22,008
shares - - (404) - 68t - 281
Acquisition of Investment Planning Consultants —0%83}
shares - - (851) - 1,341 - 49C
Acquisition of TriStone Community Bank — 741,588
shares - 74z 9,38¢ - - - 10,127
Equity-based compensatic - - fiMis - 38 - 15¢
Common stock issuance, — 5,290,000 share - 5,29( 56,37¢ - - - 61,66¢
Contribution of treasury stock to 401(k) plan — 1365
shares - - (2,109 - 3,517 - 1,41
Common stock options exercised — 2,000 shares - - (42) - 63 - 21
Balance December 31, 2009 $ - 18,08: $ 190,960 $ 66,76( $ (9,89) $ (13,65 $ 252,26
Comprehensive incom
Net income - - - 21,847 - - 21,84°
Other comprehensive income — see note 17 - - - - - 1,46 1,46
Comprehensive income - - - 21,847 - 1,467 23,30¢
Common dividends declare— $0.40 per shar - - - (7,12 - - (7,12))
Acquisition of GreenPoint Insurance Group — 22,814
shares - - (419) - 711 - 29z
Equity-based compensatic - - 33 - 25 - 58
Contribution of treasury stock to 401(k) plan —926
shares - - (1,289 - 2,33: - 1,04
Common stock options exercised — 2,631 shares - - (53) - 82 - 28
Balance December 31, 2010 $ - 18,080 $ 189,23¢ $ 81,48t $ (6,740 $ (12,190 $ 269,87¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of First Camity Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries (“First @amity” or the “Company”xonform tc
accounting principles generally accepted in thetéshiStates (“U.S. GAAP”and to predominant practices within the bankingustd,. Ir
preparing financial statements, management is reduo make estimates and assumptions that affiecrdported amounts of assets
liabilities as of the date of the balance sheetravénues and expenses for the period. Actualteesauld differ from those estimates. As
held in an agency or fiduciary capacity are noetssef the Company and are not included in therapamying consolidated balance sheets.

Accounting Standards Codification

The Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASBgcounting Standards Codification (“ASClecame effective on July 1, 2009. At-
date, the ASC became FASB's officially recognizemrse of authoritative U.S. GAAP applicable to aliblic and non-public non-
governmental entities, superseding existing FASBieAcan Institute of Certified Public Accountantsyd Emerging Issues Task Fc
guidance and related literature. Rules and intéxeraeleases of the SEC under the authority oéfaldsecurities laws are also source
authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. All othecaunting literature is considered nauthoritative. The switch to the ASC affects they
companies refer to U.S. GAAP in financial stateraesrtd accounting policies. Citing particular cohtienthe ASC involves specifying t
unigue numeric path to the content through the @, dpubtopic, Section and Paragraph structure.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of First Camity include the accounts of all wholiywned subsidiaries. All significant intercomp.
balances and transactions have been eliminatedrnsotidation. Effective January 1, 2008, the Conypaperates within two busine
segments, community banking and insurance services.

Use of Estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statementsdnfaermity with generally accepted accounting phiabes, management is required to n
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartezlints of assets and liabilities as of the dathefbalance sheet and reported amour
revenues and expenses during the reporting pefiodncial statement items requiring the significase of estimates and assumptions inc
but are not limited to, fair values of investmeaturities, fair value adjustment of acquired busses and the establishment of the allow
for loan losses. Actual results could differ frdnose estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and duelfamks, time deposits with other banks, federatiéusold, and interest bearing balance

deposit with the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLBRat are available for immediate withdrawal. les#rand income taxes paid wert
follows:

2010 2009 2008
(Amounts in Thousand
Interest $ 30,60¢ $ 39,871 $ 46,381
Income Taxe! 5,30( 9,31¢ 8,771

Pursuant to agreements with the Federal Reservie &aRichmond, the Company maintains a cash balah250 thousand in lieu of chari
for check clearing and other services. The Compaaintained a cash deposit of $1.07 million at Dedoen81, 2010, with a counterparty
collateralize an interest rate swap.

Investment Securities

Securities to be held for indefinite periods ofédinncluding securities that management intendsstoas part of its asset/liability manager
strategy and that may be sold in response to clsaimgymterest rates, changes in prepayment riskatloer similar factors, are classified
available-forsale and are recorded at estimated fair value.dlinegl appreciation or depreciation in fair valb®wee or below amortized cos
included in stockholders’ equity, net of incomedsxand is entitled “Other Comprehensive Incomesg).d Premiums and discounts
amortized or accreted to income over the life efskcurity. Gain or loss on sale is based on theifspidentification method.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Investments in debt securities that managementié@smined it does not intend to sell and has ts$dhnat it is not more likely than not the
will have to sell are carried at amortized coserRfiums and discounts are amortized to expenseecreéted to income over the lives of
securities. Gain or loss on the call or maturityimfestment securities, if any, is recorded basedtte specific identification methc
Investments that management has determined it idtesd to sell and has asserted that it is momyikhan not that it will have to sell :
carried at the lower of amortized cost or markdt@a

The Company performs an extensive review of thestment securities portfolio quarterly to determime cause of declines in the fair valu
each security within each segment of the portfdlite Company uses inputs provided by an indeperttgdtparty to determine the fair val
of its investment securities portfolio. Inputs pided by the third party are reviewed by managentevdluations of the causes of the unrea
losses are performed to determine whether the imeait is temporary or other-tha@mporary in nature. Considerations such as whette
Company determines it has the intent to sell tloeirdty or whether it is more likely than not it Wide required to sell the security, recoverak
of the invested amounts over the Compariptended holding period, severity in pricing deeland receipt of amounts contractually due
example, are applied in determining whether a $grcisr other-than-temporarily impaired. If a dedim value is determined to be other-than-
temporary, the value of the security is reduced @aedrresponding charge to earnings is recogniretihe instance of a debt security whic
determined to be other-thaemporarily impaired, the Company determines thewrh of the impairment due to credit and the amalura tc
other factors. The amount of impairment relatecredit is recognized in the Consolidat8thtements of Income and the remainder o
impairment is recognized in other comprehensiverine.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale primarily consist of oneféar family residential loans originated for satethe secondary market and are carried ¢
lower of cost or estimated fair value determinedanraggregate basis. The lomgm, fixed rate loans are sold to investors oest bfforts bas
such that the Company does not absorb the intesstrisk involved in the loans. The fair valuelo&ns held for sale is determined
reference to quoted prices for loans with similauon rates and terms.

The Company enters into rdteck commitments it makes to customers with theritibn to sell the loan in the secondary markete
derivatives arising from the rateek commitments are recorded at fair value in ptEsets and liabilities and changes in that faluer ar
included in other income. The fair value of thesdaick commitment derivatives are determined by igfee to quoted prices for loans v
similar coupon rates and terms. Gains and losséisensale of those loans are included in othernreo

Loans Held for Investment

Loans held for investment are carried at the ppalcamount outstanding less any writewns which may be necessary to reduce indiv
loans to net realizable value. Individually sigeaint loans are evaluated for impairment when ewgdeof impairment exists. Impairm:
allowances are recorded through specific additionthe allowance for loan losses. Loans are consitipast due when principal or inte
becomes contractually delinquent by 30 days or mBmnsumer loans are charged off against the aflowdor loan losses when the |
becomes 120 days past due (180 days if secureésimjential real estate). All other loans are chaugfé against the allowance for loan los
after collection attempts have been exhausted,iwggmerally is within 120 days. Recoveries of loanarged off are credited to the allows
for loan losses in the period received.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained atval lmanagement deems sufficient to absorb prodabkes inherent in the portfolio, ant
based on managemesntevaluation of the risks in the loan portfolio artthnges in the nature and volume of loan activitye Compan
consistently applies a review process to periofica¥aluate loans for changes in credit risk. Tiecess serves as the primary mear
which the Company evaluates the adequacy of tbevatice for loan losses.

The Company determines the allowance for loan ®bgemaking specific allocations to impaired loéimst exhibit inherent weaknesses
various credit risk factors, and general allocaiom commercial loans, consumer residential retesand consumer loans are devel
giving weight to risk ratings, historical loss tomnand management’s judgment concerning thosegrand other relevant factorBhe gener:
allocations are determined through a methodology tilizes a rolling five year average loss higttirat is adjusted for current qualitative
environmental factors that management deem likelgause estimated credit losses as of the evatudtte to differ from the historical Ic
experience.These factors may include, but are not limited &ctual versus estimated losses, regional and rtieconomic condition
including unemployment trends, business segmentpantiolio concentrations, industry competitionteirest rate trends, and the impac
government regulations. The foregoing analysisefggmed by management to evaluate the portfolid emculate an estimated valua
allowance through a quantitative and qualitativelygsis that applies risk factors to those identifissk areas.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

This risk management evaluation is applied at bt portfolio level for norimpaired loans and the individual loan level forparec
commercial loans while the level of consumer arsidential mortgage loan allowance is determinetharily on a total portfolio level based
a review of historical loss percentages and otliatitgtive factors including concentrations, ingystpecific factors and economic conditic
The commercial portfolio requires more specific lgsia of individually significant loans and the bower’'s underlying cash flow, busine
conditions, capacity for debt repayment and theiatidn of secondary sources of payment, such dateal. This analysis may result
specifically identified weaknesses and correspandipecific impairment allowances. While allocatioase made to specific loans i
classifications within the various categories @frls, the allowance for loan losses is availablalldoan losses.

The use of various estimates and judgments in tmeganys ongoing evaluation of the required level of abbowe can significantly impact 1
Companys results of operations and financial condition eray result in either greater provisions againstiegs to increase the allowance
reduced provisions based upon managemeanttrent view of portfolio and economic conditicarsd the application of revised estimates
assumptions. Differences between actual loan lggereence and estimates are reflected through tadgugs either increasing or decreasing
allowance based upon current measurement criteria.

Long-term Investments

Certain longterm equity investments representing less than @@8tership are accounted for under the cost meth@dcarried at cost, and
included in other assets. At December 31, 201Gsethexjuity investments totaled $1.86 million. Thasestments in operating compar
represent required longrm investments in insurance, investment and cersdmpany affiliates or consortiums which serveetscles for th
delivery of various support services. In accor@awith the cost method, dividends received arerdembas current period revenues and the
no recognition of the Comparsyproportionate share of net operating income ss.l@he Company has determined that fair value uneasn
is not practical, and further, nothing has comthtoattention of the Company that would indicatpamment of any of these investments.

As a condition to membership in the FHLB systene, @ompany is required to subscribe to a minimurelle¥ stock in the FHLB of Atlan
(“FHLBA"). The Company feels this ownership position providesess to relatively inexpensive wholesale and rogkt funding. Th
Company accounts for FHLBA and Federal Reserve Bamtk as a longerm investment in other assets. At December 310 2td 2009, tt
Company owned $12.24 million and $13.70 milliorFIHLBA stock, respectively, which is classified dher assets. The Compasyjolicy i
to review for impairment at each reporting peribdiring the year ended December 31, 2010, FHLBA nedmased excess activibased stoc
from the Company and paid quarterly dividends. AgcBmber 31, 2010, FHLBA was in compliance with @lits regulatory capit
requirements. Based on the Company’s review, ielses that as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, itsBAHstock was not impaired.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost lessnatated depreciation. Depreciation and amortizaioe computed on the straigite
method over estimated useful lives. Useful livesgefrom 5 to 10 years for furniture, fixtures, aglipment; three to five years for softw
hardware, and data handling equipment; and 10 tged®s for buildings and building improvements.ntlamprovements are amortized ov
period of 20 years, and leasehold improvementsaarertized over the lesser of the useful life or tdwen of the lease plus the first optic
renewal period, when renewal is reasonably assiiathtenance and repairs are charged to curremtibprs while improvements that ext
the economic useful life of the underlying assetcapitalized. Disposition gains and losses ateatefd in current operations.

The Company leases various properties within ibin network. Leases generally have initial terfngpoto 20 years and most contain opt
to renew with reasonable increases in rent. ABésaare accounted for as operating leases.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned and acquired through fosect is stated at the lower of cost or fair vdkss estimated costs to sell. Loan lo
arising from the acquisition of such properties @rarged against the allowance for loan losseselsgs incurred in connection with opers
the properties, subsequent write-downs and gaifssees upon sale are included in other nonintesgstnse.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The excess of the cost of an acquired company ttweefair value of the net assets and identifiedrigibles acquired is recorded as good
The net carrying amount of goodwill was $84.91 imilland $84.65 million at December 31, 2010 and9208spectively. A portion of tl
purchase price in certain transactions has beenaa#id to values associated with the future easniegential of acquired deposits and is b
amortized over the estimated lives of the depositsging from one to eight years while the weight®@rage remaining life of these c
deposits is 6.44 years. As of December 31, 20102009, the balance of core deposit intangibles $&85 million and $3.50 millio
respectively, net of corresponding accumulated &iration was $5.09 million and $4.44 million, respeely. The acquisition of GreenPoi
and its continued acquisitions, added $1.31 milbdgoodwill for the period ended December 31, 200 annual amortization expense o
intangible assets for 2011 and the succeedingyears are $1.05 million, $855 thousand, $811 thodis&758 thousand, and $758 thous
respectively.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The Company reviews and tests goodwill for poténtigpairment on an annual basis in October. Goddisiltested for impairment |
comparing the fair value of each segment to itskbadue (step 1), including goodwill. If the fainle of the segment is greater than its |
value, no goodwill impairment exists. However,hetbook value of the segment is greater than israéned fair value, goodwill impairme
may exist and further testing is required to deteenthe amount, if any, of the actual impairmerdsidstep 2). The step 1 test utilize
combination of two methods to determine the falugaf the reporting units. For both segments saalinted cash flow model uses estimat
the form of growth and attrition rates of returrdatiscount rates to project cash flows from operetiof the business segment, the resu
which are weighted 70%. For the banking segmentagket multiple model utilizes price to net incoaral price to tangible book value ing
for closed transactions and for certain commondsinstitutions and the results are weighted 30%. the insurance segment, the ma
multiple model primarily utilizes price to sales fdosed transactions and certain similar induptriglic companies and the results are weic
30%. The end results for both segments are therpawd to the respective book values to considenpiirment is evident. To determine
overall reasonableness of the segment computatioessombined computed fair value is then compéoetie overall market capitalization
the consolidated Company to determine the levahgflied control premium. The analysis performed 2010 indicated an impairment
goodwill at the insurance agency subsidiary of $Ixlillion.

The progression of the Compasyjoodwill and intangible assets for continuing ratiens for the three years ended December 31,,2€
detailed in the following table:

Other
Intangible

(Amounts in Thousands) Goodwill Assets
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 66,31( $ 3,74¢
Acquisitions 15,99( 3,36¢
Other Adjustment 89z -
Amortization - (689)
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 83,19: $ 6,41¢
Acquisitions and dispositions, n 1,45¢ 1,022
Amortization - (1,02¢)
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 84,64¢ $ 6,41%
Acquisitions and dispositions, n 1,30¢ 344
Amortization - (1,032
Impairment (1,039 -
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 8491: $ 5,72¢
Other Assets

In addition to deferred tax assets, other assetaded $42.24 million and $40.97 million in the leasirrender value of life insurance poli
owned by the Company of December 31, 2010 and 2@8¢¢ctively, and $12.24 million and $13.70 millio FHLBA stock at December
2010 and 2009, respectively.

In connection with the banéwned life insurance, the Company has also enterted Life Insurance Endorsement Method Split D¢
Agreements with certain of the individuals whosed are insured. Under these agreements, the Cgnspanes 80% of death benefits (e
recovery of cash surrender value) with the desegh&teneficiaries of the plan participants unde iifsurance contracts. The Company
owner of the policies, retains a 20% interest fa [iroceeds and a 100% interest in the cash swereralue of the policies. Split Dol
Agreements totaled $1.19 million and $763 thousahdecember 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Exgzenssociated with split dol
agreements were $72 thousand and $89 thousand &z@ 2009, respectively.
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Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchasgearerally accounted for as collateralized finandiragsactions. Securities, generally |
government and federal agency securities, pledgembiateral under these arrangements cannot beosokpledged by the secured party.
fair value of the collateral provided to a thirdyas continually monitored, and additional colled! is provided as appropriate.

Loan Interest Income Recognition

Accrual of interest on loans is based generallyhendaily amount of principal outstanding. Loans eonsidered past due when either prin
or interest payments are delinquent by 30 or mases dit is the Compang’policy to discontinue the accrual of interesti@ems based on t
payment status and evaluation of the related esfidtand the financial strength of the borrowere Hetcrual of interest income is norm
discontinued when a loan becomes 90 days pastsite @incipal or interest. Management may eleatdntinue the accrual of interest w|
the loan is well secured and in process of cobbectiVhen interest accruals are discontinued, isteaecrued and not collected in the cui
year is reversed from income and interest accraedhat collected from prior years is charged toghewance for loan losses. Interest inci
realized on impaired loans is recognized upon ptékthe impaired loan is on a non-accrual ba&exrual of interest on noaecrual loans m:
be resumed if the loan is brought current and ¥adl@ period of substantial performance, includilxgnsonths of regular principal and intet
payments. Accrual of interest on impaired loargeiserally continued unless the loan becomes dedim@0 days or more.

Loan Fee Income

Loan origination and underwriting fees are reduogdiirect costs associated with loan processirguding salaries, review of legal docume
and obtainment of appraisals. Net origination feed costs are deferred and amortized over thefifee related loan. Loan commitment 1
are deferred and amortized over the related comenitrperiod. Net deferred loan fees were $1.15 aniliknd $632 thousand at Decembe
2010 and 2009, respectively

Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are generally expensed as induikenounts recognized for the three years endecdmber 31, 2010, are detailed in Note
— Other Operating Expenses of the Notes to Congelidginancial Statements included in Item 8 hereof.

Equity-Based Compensation

The cost of employee services received in exchémequity instruments including options and res&il stock awards generally are meas
at fair value at the grant date. The effect of@pthares on earnings per share relates to thtévdikffect of the underlying options outstand
To the extent the granted exercise share pricess than the current market price, or “in the mghthere is an economic incentive for
options to be exercised and an increase in théwdleffect on earnings per share.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is comprised of federal ané statrent and deferred income taxes ontpreearnings of the Company. Income taxes
percentage of preax income may vary significantly from statutoryemdue to items of income and expense which arkeided, by law, fror
the calculation of taxable income. These itemscaramonly referred to as permanent differences. mbst significant permanent differen
for the Company include income on state and mualic§ecurities which are exempt from federal incdiare income on bankwned life
insurance, and tax credits generated by investnietsv income housing and rehabilitation of histastructures.

The Company includes interest and penalties relededcome tax liabilities in income tax expenséeTCompany and its subsidiarigak
filings for the years ended December 31, 2007 tinoR009 are currently open to audit under statafdsnitation by the Internal Reven
Service and various state tax departments.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfpedhe estimated future tax consequences attfiibeitiv differences between the tax base
assets and liabilities and their carrying amouatdihancial reporting purposes.
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are determined by dividatgncome available to common shareholders bywbighted average number of shi
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share are deteunby dividing net income available to common shalders by the weighted average st
outstanding, which includes the dilutive effectstdck options, warrants and contingently issuabdres. The dilutive effects of stock optic
warrants, and contingently issuable shares areoridered for the year ended December 31, 20@@uise of the reported net loss availab
common shareholders. Basic and diluted net incaene@mmon share calculations follow:

For the Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Share and Per Shaiag)

Net income (loss) available to common sharehol $ 21,847 $ (40,85¢) $ 1,69¢
Weighted average shares outstanc 17,802,00 14,868,54 11,058,07
Dilutive shares for stock optiol 12,46: - 53,68(
Contingently issuable shar 8,47 - 22,26¢
Weighted average dilutive shares outstanding 17,822,94 14,868,54 11,134,02
Basic earnings (loss) per shi $ 12 $ (2.7%) $ 0.1t
Diluted earnings (loss) per sh $ 12 % (2.75) $ 0.1t

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 arf] 8pfions and warrants to purchase 483,558, 488&&]1 206,996 shares, respectivel
common stock were outstanding but were not includatie computation of diluted earnings per comrabare because the exercise price
greater than the market price of the Company’s comstock or the Company incurred losses; accorgirigey would have an antifutive
effect.

Variable Interest Entities

The Company maintains ownership positions in varientities which it deems variable interest ergif/IE’s”). These VIES include certal
tax credit limited partnerships and other limitéabllity companies which provide aviation servicesurance brokerage, title insurance
other financial and related services. Based orCitiapany’s analysis, it is a n@rimary beneficiary; accordingly, these entitiesnidd meet th
criteria for consolidation. The carrying value ofeV/s was $1.86 million and $1.81 million at Decembgr 3010 and 2009, respectively.
Companys maximum possible loss exposure was $1.86 mibioth $1.62 million at December 31, 2010 and 200&peetively. Manageme
does not believe net losses, if any, resulting fitsnmvolvement with the entities discussed abwilebe material.

Derivative Instruments

The Company enters into derivative transactionscpally to protect against the risk of adverse@ir interest rate movements on the vali
certain assets and liabilities and on future cémhd. In addition, certain contracts and commitrseare defined as derivatives under gene
accepted accounting principles.

All derivative instruments are carried at fair valan the balance sheet. Special hedge accountowsjans are provided, which permit
change in the fair value of the hedged item relatethe risk being hedged to be recognized in egmin the same period and in the s
income statement line as the change in the fairevaf the derivative.

Derivative instruments designated in a hedge matiip to mitigate exposure to changes in the Value of an asset, liability, or fit
commitment attributable to a particular risk, s@ashinterest rate risk, are considered fair valugghs. Derivative instruments designated
hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to varighith expected future cash flows, or other typéfocecasted transactions, are considered
flow hedges. The Company formally documents alittehships between hedging instruments and hedgpetj as well as its risk managen
objective and strategy for undertaking each hedgetsaction.
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Accounting Standards Updates

Financial Accounting Standards BoartFASB”) Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC”) dpic 310, ReceivableNew authoritativ
accounting guidance under ASC Topic 310 amends giddance to provide financial statement userd witeater transparency aboul
entity’s allowance for credit losses and the credit qualftits financing receivables by providing additéd information to assist financ
statement users in assessing an estityedit risk exposures and evaluating the adeqakity allowance for credit losses. The new althtive
guidance is effective for interim and annual reipgrperiods ending on or after December 15, 20d0ptiblic entities. The Company adoy.
the provisions of the new authoritative accountjuidance under ASC Topic 310 during the fourth teranf 2010. Other than the additic
disclosures, the adoption of the new guidance leesignificant impact on the Company’s financiakstaents.

FASB ASC Topic 805, Business CombinatiOn January 1, 2009, new accounting guidance un& Aopic 805, “Business Combinations,”
became applicable to the Compaygccounting for business combinations closing oafter January 1, 2009. ASC Topic 805 require
acquirer, upon initially obtaining control of anethentity, to recognize the assets, liabilities angt noneontrolling interest in the acquiree
fair value as of the acquisition date. Any contimgeonsideration is also required to be recogniemed measured at fair value on the da
acquisition. Acquisitiorrelated costs are to be expensed as incurred. Aasqtired and liabilities assumed in a businesthatation that aris
from contingencies are to be recognized at fainedf fair value can be reasonably estimated. AB@id 805 also expands required disclos
regarding the nature and financial effect of buséneombinations. In 2009, the Company recordecdc¢heisition of TriStone Community Ba

in accordance with the new accounting guidance.

FASB ASC Topic 810, Consolidatic New accounting guidance amended prior guidanestablish accounting and reporting standardshi
non-controlling interest in a subsidiary and for thecalesolidation of a subsidiary. This guidance becafiective for the Company
January 1, 2009 and did not have a significant ohpa the Company’s financial statements.

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements andi@¥ares New authoritative guidance under ASC Topic 8Zxgif Value Measuremet
and Disclosures,"amends prior guidance that requires entities telabge additional information regarding assets aadilities that ar
transferred between levels of the fair value higrgr Entities are also required to disclose infdiamin the Level 3 roll forward abc
purchases, sales, issuances and settlements ossalgrsis. In addition to these new disclosureirepents, existing guidance pertaining to
level of disaggregation at which fair value disdies should be made and the requirements to désétdsrmation about the valuati
techniques and inputs used in estimating Level @ laevel 3 fair value measurements is further dledif The Company adopted the 1
authoritative accounting guidance under ASC Togi@ 8 the first quarter of 2010 and new disclosaespresented in Note 1Zair Value o
the Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementselOtian the additional disclosures, the adoptiothef new guidance had no signific
impact on the Company'’s financial statements.

FASB ASC Topic 860, Transfers and ServicNew authoritative accounting guidance under ASCid &0, “Transfers and Servicing,”
amends prior accounting guidance to enhance regoatbout transfers of financial assets, includiecusitizations, and where companies t
continuing exposure to the risks related to tramete financial assets. The authoritative accounguidance eliminates the concept «
“qualifying special purpose entityind changes the requirements for derecognizingdinhassets. The authoritative accounting guidahse
requires additional disclosures about all contiguimvolvements with transferred financial assetduding information about gains and los
resulting from transfers during the period. The @any adopted the new authoritative accounting guidaunder ASC Topic 860 effect
January 1, 2010, and it had no significant impacth® Company’s financial statements.

Note 2. Merger, Acquisitions and Branching Activiy

In July 2009, the Company acquired TriStone ComiyuBank (“TriStone”), based in WinstoBalem, North Carolina. TriStone had two
service locations in WinstoSalem, North Carolina. At acquisition, TriStone Hathl assets of $166.82 million, total loans 08323 millior
and total deposits of $142.27 million. Shares aBiime were exchanged for .5262 shares of the Coy®aommon stock and the ove
acquisition cost was $10.78 million. The acquisitaf TriStone significantly augmented the Companylarket presence and human resoi
in the Winston-Salem, North Carolina region. Than®any recorded a $4.49 million gain on the actjaisiof TriStone.

In November 2008, the Company acquired Coddle Crarkncial Corp. (“Coddle Creek™headquartered in Mooresville, North Carol
Coddle Creek had three full service branch officested in Mooresville, Cornelius, and HuntersyilNorth Carolina. At acquisition, Codt
Creek had total assets of $158.66 million, totahl of $136.99 million and total deposits of $187mlillion. Under the terms of the mer
agreement, shares of Coddle Creek common stock exefeanged for .9046 shares of the Compagmmon stock and $19.60 in cash.
total deal value, including the cashit of outstanding stock options, was $32.29 milli€oncurrent with the Coddle Creek acquisi
Mooresville Savings Bank, Inc., SSB, the whadyned subsidiary of Coddle Creek, was merged iritst Eommunity Bank, N. A. (t
“Bank”), the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. As a result ofabguisition and preliminary purchase price allmegt$14.41 milliol
in goodwill was recorded which represents the exagghe purchase price over the fair market valuthe net assets acquired and ident
intangibles.

In September 2007, the Company acquired GreenRusnrance Group (“GreenPoint"n insurance agency located in High Point, N
Carolina. In connection with the acquisition, then@pany has issued an aggregate of 101,638 shaties former shareholders of GreenPu
Under the terms of the stock purchase agreemembefoshareholders of GreenPoint are entitled tatiaddl consideration aggregating uf
$615 thousand in the form of cash or the Compamgmmon stock, valued at the time of issuanceeiifain future operating performa
targets are met. It those operating targets are timetvalue of the consideration ultimately paidl Wwe added to the cost of the acquisit



which will increase the amount of goodwill relatedthe acquisition. The acquisition of GreenPoias added $13.15 million of goodwill &
intangibles to the Company’s balance sheet, natrairtization of $12.14 million.
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GreenPoint has acquired seven insurance agencées@d one since its acquisition by the CompanyeeBPoint issued aggregate ¢
consideration of $190 thousand and $803 thousa2810 and 2009, respectively, in connection withsthacquisitions. Terms for acquisiti
prior to 2010 call for issuing further cash cons&d®n of $2.86 million if certain operating targetre met. If those targets are met, the val
the consideration ultimately paid will be addedte costs of the acquisitions. Acquisitions prim2010 added $692 thousand, $803 thou:
and $2.04 million of goodwill and intangibles toetiCompanys balance sheet in 2010, 2009, and 2008, resphctive2010, GreenPoi
acquired one insurance agency. Cash considerafti$h9® thousand was provided at the closing dathefransaction. Acquisition terms «
for further cash consideration of $760 thousantkitain operating targets are met. The fair valuthese payments was booked at acquis
and added $477 thousand of goodwill and intangitdeke Company’s balance sheet during 2010.

The following table summarizes the net cash pravide or used in acquisitions and divestitures dutime three years ended Decembe
2010. Net cash paid (received) for acquisitionudels transactions that occurred during the cueredtprior years,

(Amounts in Thousand

Fair value of investments acquir

Fair value of loans acquire

Fair value of premises and equipment acqu

Fair value of other asse

Fair value of deposits assum
Fair value of other liabilities assum
Purchase price in excess of (less than) net azsgtsred

Total purchase pric

Less no-cash purchase pric
Less cash acquire

Net cash paid (received) for acquisiti

Book value of assets sc
Book value of liabilities sol:

Sales price in excess of net liabilities assul

Total sales pric

Add cash on hand so

Less amount due remaining on boi
Net cash paid received for divestitt

2010 2009 2008

$ - $ 7831 $ 1,26¢
- 129,93° 136,03!

- 1,791 4,50¢

- 26,74¢ 23,87

- (142,69) (137,601)

- (9,00€) (4,967)

1,65( (3,037) 15,99:

1,65( 11,578 39,00¢

76€ 11,57¢ 19,64"

- 21,29t 14,79:

$ 88z $ (21,299 $ 4,66(
$ - % (110 $ -
- (340) -

- (450) -

$ - $ (450) $ -
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Note 3. Investment Securities
The amortized cost and estimated fair value of sées, with gross unrealized gains and lossessdiad as available-for-sale are as follows:

December 31, 201I

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair OTTlin
Cost Gains Losses Value AOCI (1)
(Amounts in Thousand
U.S. Government agency securit $ 10,00 $ - $ (16¢) $ 983: $ =
States and political subdivisio 178,14¢ 2,64¢ (4,660 176,13¢ -
Trust preferred securitie
Single Issu¢ 55,59« - (14,350 41,24« -
Pooled 23 241 - 264 -
Total trust preferred securiti 55,61% 241 (14,350 41,50¢ -
Corporate FDIC insure 25,28: 37¢ - 25,66( -
Mortgage-backed securitie:
Agency 209,28: 7,03¢ (1,307%) 215,01: -
Non-Agency Al-A residential 19,18 - (7,909 11,27% (7,909
Total mortgag-backed securitie 228,46. 7,03¢ (9,217 226,29( (7,909
Equity securitie: 49t 20€ (65) 63€ -
Total $ 498,00 $ 10,51 $ (28,459 $ 480,06: $ (7,904

(1) Other-than-temporary impairment in accumulaiteer comprehensive income

December 31, 200!

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair OTTlin
Cost Gains Losses Value AOCI (1)
(Amounts in Thousand
U.S. Government agency securit $ 25,42. $ 10 $ (A58 $ 25,27¢  $ -
States and political subdivisio 133,18! 3,30¢ (893) 135,60: -
Trust preferred securitie
Single Issu 55,62« - (14,51 41,11( -
Pooled 1,64¢ - - 1,64¢ -
Total trust preferred securiti 57,27: - (14,519 42,75¢ -
Mortgage-backed securitie:
Agency 260,22 5,39¢ (1,407 264,21 -
Non-Agency prime residenti: 5,74: - (57%) 5,17( -
Non-Agency Al-A residential 20,96¢ - (9,667) 11,30: (9,667)
Total mortgag-backed securitie 286,93: 5,39¢ (11,64 280,68¢ (9,667)
Equity securitie: 1,715 207 (197) 1,73¢ -
Total $ 504,52¢ $ 8,92t $ (27,399 $ 486,05 $ (9,667)
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value oflabbs-forsale securities by contractual maturity, at Deceandde 2010, are shown belc
Expected maturities may differ from contractual uniies because issuers may have the right toocglrepay obligations with or without ¢
or prepayment penalties.

U.S. States Tax
Government and Equivalent
Agencies & Political Corporate Purchase
(Dollars in Thousands) Corporations  Subdivisions Notes Total Yield
Available-for-Sale
Amortized cost maturity
Within one yea $ - $ 185 $ - $ 18t 7.3%%
After one year through five yea - 17,77¢ 25,28: 43,06: 3.28%
After five years through ten yee - 52,34( - 52,34( 6.16%
After ten year: 10,00( 107,84! 55,611 173,46. 4.1%
Amortized cost $ 10,00 $  178,14¢ $ 80,89¢ 269,04
Mortgage-backed securitie 228,46 4.2(%
Equity securitie: 49t 1.4(%
Total amortized cos $ 498,00
Tax equivalent purchase vyie 3.6&% 5.75% 1.41% 4.31%
Average contractual maturity (in yea 12.3¢ 10.61 12.2¢ 11.1¢
Fair value maturity
Within one yeal $ - $ 187 $ - $ 187
After one year through five yea - 18,45t 25,66( 44,11t
After five years through ten yee - 54,027 - 54,02}
After ten years 9,83 103,46¢ 41,50¢ 154,80¢
Fair value $ 9832 $ 176,13¢( $ 67,16¢ 253,13t
Mortgage-backed securitie 226,29(
Equity securities 63€
Total fair value $ 480,06«

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of $es, with gross unrealized gains and lossessdiad as held-to-maturity are as follows:

December 31, 201i

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Amounts in Thousand
States and political subdivisio $ 4,637 $ 67 $ - $ 4,70/
Total $ 4637 $ 67 $ - $ 4,70¢

December 31, 200!

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Amounts in Thousand
States and political subdivisio $ 7,45¢  $ 125 $ - $ 7,57¢
Total $ 7,45¢  $ 128 $ - $ 7,57¢
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of sies by contractual maturity, at December 31,@0dre shown below. Expected matur
may differ from contractual maturities because éssumay have the right to call or prepay obligaiavith or without call or prepayme
penalties.

States Tax
and Equivalent
Political Purchase
(Dollars in Thousands) Subdivisions Yield
Held-to-Maturity
Amortized cost maturity
Within one yeal $ 1,06¢ 8.44%
After one year through five yea 2,782 8.31%
After five years through ten yee 78€ 8.32%
After ten year: -
Total amortized cost $ 4,637
Tax equivalent purchase yie 8.34%
Average contractual maturity (in yea 2.72
Fair value maturity
Within one yeal $ 1,081
After one year through five yea 2,82¢
After five years through ten yee 79¢
After ten years -
Total fair value $ 4,704

The carrying value of securities pledged to sequiglic deposits and for other purposes requiredalywere $302.67 million and $354
million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively

In 2010, gross gains on the sale of securities 887 million while gross losses were $695 thodsan 2009, gross gains on the sal

securities were $11.67 million while gross lossesen$4.11 million. In 2008, gross gains on the sdlsecurities were $2.84 million wh
gross losses were $411 thousand.
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The following tables reflect those investmentshbmtailable-for-sale and held-toaturity, in a continuous unrealized loss posifianless tha
12 months and for 12 months or longer at DecembeP@10 and 2009. There were 14 securities in @ragous unrealized loss position for
or more months for which the Company does not mhtensell any and has determined that it is mdeyithan not going to be required to
at December 31, 2010, until the security maturegoovers in value.

December 31, 201!

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(Amounts in Thousand
U.S. Government agency securit $ 9,83 $ (168 $ - $ - $ 9832 $ (16€)
States and political subdivisio 80,42( (4,660 - - 80,42( (4,660
Trust preferred securitie
Single issut 3,39( (1,517 37,85¢ (12,839 41,24+ (14,35()
Mortgage-backed securitie:
Agency 71,618 (1,30%) 18 - 71,63 (1,30%)
Alt-A residential - - 11,27" (7,904 11,27" (7,904
Total mortgag-backed securitie 71,61% (1,30%) 11,29t (7,909 82,90¢ (9,217
Equity securitie: 15E (55) 93 (10 24¢ (65)
Total $ 165410 $ (7.70) $  4924; $  (20,74) $ 21465. $ (28,459

December 31, 200!

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(Amounts in Thousand
U.S. Government agency securit $ 23,27 $ (155 $ - $ - $ 23,27 $ (155)
States and political subdivisio 13,86¢ (270 16,28t (623) 30,14¢ (893)
Trust preferred securitie
Single issut - - 41,11 (14,51 41,11 (14,51
Mortgage-backed securitie:
Agency 83,49 (1,400 34 (@)} 83,52t (1,407
Prime residentie - - 5,16¢ (57%) 5,16¢ (57%)
Alt-A residential 11,30: (9,667) - - 11,30: (9,667)
Total mortgag-backed securitie 94,79: (11,067 5,20: (574 99,99¢ (11,64
Equity securities 86 (60) 731 (131 817 (197
Total $ 132,010 $ (11,55) $ 63,33( $ (15,847 $ 195,34: $ (27,399

At December 31, 2010, the combined depreciatiomailne of the 214 individual securities in an unicsad loss position was 5.93% of
combined reported value of the aggregate secuptiesolio. At December 31, 2009, the combined éejation in value of the 89 individt
securities in an unrealized loss position was 5.64%he combined reported value of the aggregatergees portfolio.

The Company reviews its investment portfolio onuarterly basis for indications of other-than-tengygrimpairment (“OTTI").The analysi
differs depending upon the type of investment dgcbeing analyzed. For debt securities the Comgeas/determined that, except for a po
trust preferred security, it does not intend td seturities that are impaired and has assertedttisanot more likely than not that it will have
sell impaired securities before recovery of the aimpent occurs. The Compasyassertion is based upon its investment strategyhk
particular type of security and the Company’s déslt needs, liquidity position, capital adequacylanterest rate risk position.

For nonbeneficial interest debt securities, the Comparalyaes several qualitative factors such as therggwnd duration of the impairme
adverse conditions within the issuing industry,gpects for the issuer, performance of the secwhgnges in rating by rating agencies
other qualitative factors to determine if the impe@nt will be recovered. Ndpeneficial interest debt securities consist of y&vernmer
agency securities, states and political subdivisi@ngle issue trust preferred securities, andCHEcked securities. If it is determined -
there is evidence that the impairment will not beavered, the Company performs a present valuelatiin to determine the amount of cr:
related impairment and records any credit relatéd|@hrough earnings and the noredit related OTTI through other comprehensiveime
(“OCI"). During the years ended December 31, 2040 2009, no OTTI charges were incurred relatedotolreneficial interest debt securiti
The temporary impairment on these securities imguily related to changes in interest rates, aedéruptions in the credit markets, and ¢
current economic factors.
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For beneficial interest debt securities, the Corgpgawiews cash flow analyses on each applicablerggdo determine if an adverse chang
cash flows expected to be collected has occurreteficial interest debt securities consist of maggpacked securities and pooled t
preferred securities. An adverse change in cashsflexpected to be collected has occurred if thegmtevalue of cash flows previou
projected is greater than the present value of flagls projected at the current reporting date lasd than the current book value. If an ad\
change in cash flows is deemed to have occurred,ah OTTI has occurred. The Company then complaegsresent value of cash flows us
the current yield for the current reporting pertodthe reference amount, or current net book vatueletermine the creditlated OTTI. Th
credit-related OTTI is then recorded through eaysiand the non-credit related OTTI is accountednf@cCl.

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 206@9Company incurred crediélated OTTI charges related to beneficial intedkdt
securities of $134 thousand and $77.59 millionpeetively. For the beneficial interest debt seasinot deemed to have incurred an OTTI
Company has concluded that the primary differencdé fair value of the securities and credit imp&int evident in their cash flow model
the significantly higher rate of return demandednbgrket participants in an illiquid and inactive nket as compared to the rate of re
received when the Company purchased the securiteesiormally functioning market.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company determinet itheannot assert its intent to hold its remainapled trust preferred security
recovery or maturity, that it is more likely thaatrit will need to sell the security in order tanang other reasons, convert deferred tax ass
current tax receivables. Accordingly, the Compaayries this security at the lower of its adjustedtcbasis or market value. The seci
continues to remain categorized as available fier sa

For the non-Agency AlA residential MBS, the Company models cash flowisgishe following assumptions: voluntary constarggaymer
speed of 5, a customized constant default rateasicethat assumes 20% of the remaining underlyiogtgages will default within the nex
years, and a loss severity of

The table below provides a cumulative roll forwafccredit losses recognized in earnings for debtisges for which a portion of an OTTI
recognized in OCI:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 201 December 31, 20C

(In Thousands
Estimated credit losses,beginning balan $ 4,251 % 4,25]
Additions for credit losses on securities not poegly recognize: -
Additions for credit losses on securities previgusicognizec - -
Reduction for increases in cash flo - -
Reduction for securities management no longer @gea hold to recover - -
Reduction for securities sold/realized losses -
Estimated credit losses, ending bala $ 4,251 $ 4,251

* The beginning balance includes credit relates$és included in OTTI charges recognized on deduiréies in prior periods.
For equity securities, the Company reviews for Obdsed upon the prospects of the underlying corepaanalystséxpectations, and certi

other qualitative factors to determine if impairrhenrecoverable over a foreseeable period of tineing the year ended December 31, -
and 2009, the Company recognized OTTI charges bfti$&usand and $1.27 million, respectively, onaarof its equity positions.
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Note 4. Loans

Loans, net of unearned income, consist of the\iolig at December 31:

2010 2009
(Amounts in Thousand
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 42,69 $ 47,46¢
Land developmer 16,65( 22,83:
Other land loan 24,46¢ 32,56¢
Commercial and industri; 94,12: 95,11¢
Multi-family residentia 67,82¢ 65,60
Non-farm, nor-residential 351,90: 343,97!
Agricultural 1,34 1,257
Farmland 36,95¢ 41,03
Total commercial loan 635,95¢ 649,84!
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line! 111,62( 111,59°
Single family residential mortga¢ 549,15 545,77(
Owner-occupied construction 18,34¢ 22,02¢
Total consumer real estate lo¢ 679,12¢ 679,39!
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 63,47¢ 60,09(
Other 7,64¢ 4,601
Total consumer and other los 71,12 64,69
Total loans $ 1,386,200 $ 1,393,93
Loans Held for Sal $ 469 $ 11,57¢

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The Company is a party to financial instrumentshvatf-balance sheet risk in the normal course of busitesseet the financing needs of
customers. These financial instruments include ciimemts to extend credit, standby letters of creatid financial guarantees. Th
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elemerftsredit and interest rate risk beyond the amowabgnized on the balance sheet.
contractual amounts of those instruments reflegtetktent of involvement the Company has in particalasses of financial instruments.
Company’s exposure to credit loss in the eventafqperformance by the other party to the financiatrimeent for commitments to exte
credit and standby letters of credit and finangizhrantees written is represented by the contrbatoaunt of those instruments. The Comg
uses the same credit policies in making commitmantsconditional obligations as it does for on-ha&sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totleadcustomer as long as there is not a violaifamy condition established in the contr
Commitments generally have fixed expiration datesother termination clauses and may require paynoéra fee. Since many of t
commitments are expected to expire without beingwdr upon, the total commitment amounts do not reecdyg represent future ce
requirements. The Company evaluates each custogredigworthiness on a case-bgse basis. The amount of collateral obtainedeéae:
necessary by the Company upon extension of clisdigsed on managementredit evaluation of the counterparties. Colkdteeld varies bl
may include accounts receivable, inventory, propetant and equipment, and income producing coroiakproperties.

Standby letters of credit and written financial gardees are conditional commitments issued by thragany to guarantee the performance
customer to a third party. The credit risk invohiedssuing letters of credit is essentially thensaas that involved in extending loan facilitie
customers. To the extent deemed necessary, callatErarying types and amounts is held to secustoaner performance under certail
those letters of credit outstanding.

Financial instruments whose contract amounts reptesedit risk are commitments to extend creditl(iding availability of lines of credit)
$209.98 million and standby letters of credit amaucial guarantees written of $4.04 million at Beaber 31, 2010. Additionally, the Comp:
had gross notional amounts of outstanding commitmenlend related to secondary market mortgagesi@d $7.57 million at December :
2010.
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Related Party Loan

In the normal course of business, the Compasyibsidiary bank has made loans to directors aaduéve officers of the Company and
subsidiaries and their affiliates (collectivelyeatd to as “related parties’All loans and commitments made to such officers dinglctors an
to companies in which they are officers, or hawgnidicant ownership interest, have been made orstanbally the same terms, includ
interest rates and collateral, as those prevadinthe time for comparable transactions with othersons not related to the Company.
aggregate dollar amount of such loans was $12.4®mand $11.37 million at December 31, 2010 af82, respectively. During 2010, $4
million in new loans and increases were made apayments on such loans to officers and directotalegd $3.52 million. Changes
composition of the Company’s subsidiary board memsbad executive officers resulted in increased2athousand.

Overdrafts
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, customer overdtatfiting $1.46 million and $1.56 million, respeetly, were reclassified as loans.
Note 5. Allowance for Loan Losses and Credit Qual

The allowance for loan losses is maintained atvallsufficient to absorb probable loan losses iehein the loan portfolio. The allowance
increased by charges to earnings in the form ofipian for loan losses and recoveries of prior lohargeeffs, and decreased by loans cha
off. The provision is calculated to bring the allwee to a level which, according to a systematicgss of measurement, reflects the an
management estimates is needed to absorb prolmdsies! within the portfolio. While management utgizts best judgment and informai
available, the ultimate adequacy of the allowascgeipendent upon a variety of factors beyond thagamy’s control, including, among ott
things, the performance of the Companigan portfolio, the economy, changes in interatgs and the view of the regulatory authoritiegaia
loan classifications.

Management performs quarterly assessments to detetime appropriate level of allowance. Differenbesween actual loan loss experie
and estimates are reflected through adjustmentsatkanade by either increasing or decreasingltbe@nce based upon current measure!
criteria. Commercial, consumer real estate, andreahestate consumer loan portfolios are evalusgpdrately for purposes of determining
allowance. The specific components of the allowanckide allocations to individual commercial ctsdind allocations to the remaining non-
homogeneous and homogeneous pools of loans that been deemed impaired. Managensemféneral reserve allocations are base
judgment of qualitative and quantitative factorsatboth macro and micro economic conditions réfiéavithin the portfolio of loans and 1
economy as a whole. Factors considered in thikiattan include, but are not necessarily limitedgmbable losses from loan and other ¢
arrangements, general economic conditions, chainga®dit concentrations or pledged collateralfdrisal loan loss experience, and trenc
portfolio volume, maturities, composition, delinagueges, and nomccruals. While management has allocated the afiogvéor loan losses
various portfolio segments, the entire allowancavigilable for use against any type of loan lossted appropriate by management.

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was dofes:

2010 2009 2008

(Amounts in Thousand
Balance at January $ 24270 $ 17,78: $ 12,83:
Provision for loan losse 14,75 15,80: 9,22¢
Acquisition balanct - - 1,16¢
Loans charged o (13,602 (10,35% (7,379
Recoveries credited to allowance 1,05( 1,04¢ 1,92t

Net charge-offs (12,557) (9,306 (5,446
Balance at December : $ 26,48. $ 2427 $ 17,78:
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The following table details the allocation of tHeyaance for loan losses by segment as of Dece@be2010.

2010
(Dollars in Thousands
Commercial loan 12,51¢
Consumer real estate log 12,20(
Consumer and other loa 1,76¢
Total $ 26,48:

The Company identifies loans for potential impaintngrough a variety of means including, but notifed to, ongoing loan review, rene
processes, delinquency data, market communicatants public information. If it is determined thats probable that the Company will

collect all principal and interest amounts conwally due, the loan is generally deemed to be inepai The following table presents

Companys recorded investment in loans considered to beiimg and related information on those impairechdoéor the period end
December 31, 2010. The table does not include esdjimpaired loans.

Recorded Recorded
Investment Investment Total Unpaid Average Interest
With With No Recorded Related Principal Recorded Income
Allowance Allowance Investment Allowance Balance Investment Recognized
(Amounts ir
Thousands
Constructior--
commercial $ - $ 28t % 28t % - $ 73z 3% 73C 3% 3
Land developmer - 50 50 5 144 142 2
Other land loan 113 322 43€ - 85E 26€ 20
Commercial and
industrial - 3,51¢ 3,51¢ - 5,38¢ 6,23 1C
Multi-family
residential 728 2,52¢ 3,24¢ 257 3,43 3,44¢ 12¢€
Non-farm, nor-
residential 1,07(C 3,824 4,894 15¢ 6,12¢ 5,80¢ 79
Home equity line: 95 1,30z 1,397 34 1,69: 1,70z 40
Single family
residential mortgag 8,801 7,992 16,79 1,87(C 18,43( 18,00¢ 64C
Owner-occupied
constructior - 6 6 - 6 6 -
Consumer loans - 98 98 - 10z 111 5
$ 10,80: $ 19,92¢ $ 30,72t $ 2,32¢  $ 36,90! $ 36,45¢ $ 92t

The following table presents the Companyivestment in loans considered to be impairedraleded information on those impaired loans
the periods ended December 31, 2009:

2009

(Amounts in Thousand
Recorded investment in loans considered to be gz

Recorded investment in impaired loans with a relatiéwance $ 13,24

Recorded investment in impaired loans with no eslatllowance 13,37
Total recorded investment in loans considered tompaired 26,61.
Loans considered to be impaired that were on i-accrual basi 17,01«
Allowance for loan losses related to loans considéo be impaire 2,932
Average recorded investment in impaired lo 15,92¢
Total interest income recognized on impaired Ic 1,33¢

As part of the ongoing monitoring of the credit bijyaof the Companys loan portfolio, management tracks certain crqddlity indicator
including trends related to the risk rating of eoercial loans, the level of classified commerciris, net charge-offs, ngerforming loan
and general economic conditions. The Compaigan review function generally reviews all comai@rloan relationships greater than $:
million on an annual basis and at various timesugh the year. Smaller commercial and retail loamessampled for review throughout
year by our internal loan review department. Thifothe loan review process, loans are identifiedufograde or downgrade in risk rating
changed to reflect current information as parthef process.
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The Company utilizes a risk grading matrix to assigrisk grade to each of its loans. A descriptibthe general characteristics of the
grades is as follows:

Pass— This grade includes loans to borrowers of acceptat#dit quality and risk. The Company further eliéintiates within this gra
based upon borrower characteristics which incladeital strength, earnings stability, leverage, imddistry.

Special Mention Fhis grade includes loans that require more thaorenal degree of supervision and attention. Theses have &
the characteristics of an adequate asset, but @ueeing adversely affected by economic or financaditions have a potent
weakness that deserves managersaridse attention. If left uncorrected, these pidemweaknesses may result in deterioration o
repayment prospects for the loan or in the instit’' s credit position at some future de

Substandar— This grade includes loans that have well definedkmesses which make payment default or principabsure possibl
but not yet certain. Such loans are apt to be digerupon collateral liquidation, a secondary sewitcrepayment or an event out:
of the normal course of business to meet the repayterms

Doubtful — This grade includes loans that are placed on-accrual status. These loans have all the weaknéskesent in
“substandardloan with the added factor that the weaknesses@evere that collection or liquidation in fulh the basis of curre
existing facts, conditions and values, is extremallikely, but because of certain specific pendiactors, the amount of loss can
yet be determinec

Loss — This grade includes loans that are to begeldaoff or chargedlown when payment is acknowledged to be uncertainher
the timing or value of payments cannot be deterthifleoss” is not intended to imply that the asset has nowagoor salvage valu
but simply that it is not practical or desirabled®fer writing off all or some portion of the loagyen though partial recovery may
affected in the future
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The following tables present the Company'’s invesinie loans by credit quality indicator at DecemB&r 2010 and 2009.

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Loss Total
(Amounts in Thousand
2010
Constructior— commercial $ 40,497 $ 66 $ 153. % - $ - $ 42,69
Land developmer 14,45¢ 1,22¢ 96€ - - 16,65(
Other land loan 16,72 6,13¢ 1,607 - - 24,46¢
Commercial and industrii 87,15¢ 1,75¢ 5,211 654 - 94,77
Multi-family residentia 61,05¢ 2,55: 4,21 - - 67,82¢
Non-farm, nor-residential 316,02¢ 18,94: 16,93¢ - - 351,90:
Agricultural 1,31¢ - 24 - - 1,34
Farmland 33,04: 2,56¢ 1,34: - - 36,95¢
Home equity line! 106,80: 1,92 2,89¢ - - 111,62(
Single family residential mortgac 498,83( 15,22« 34,44¢ - - 548,50:
Owner-occupied constructio 17,38¢ 78¢ 171 - - 18,34¢
Consumer loan 62,67¢ 30¢ 495 - - 63,47¢
Other 7,63 11 - - - 7,64¢
Total loans $ 1,263,61. $ 52,10 $ 69,84( $ 654 $ - $ 1,386,200
Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Loss Total
(Amounts in Thousand
2009
Constructior— commercial $ 4397 $ 91¢ $ 257¢ $ - $ - $ 47,46¢
Land developmer 17,22¢ 1,38: 4,22( - - 22,83:
Other land loan 22,87 5,50¢ 4,18: - - 32,56¢
Commercial and industri; 79,73¢ 4,60( 10,77¢ - - 95,11°¢
Multi-family residentia 60,23( 3,71¢ 1,654 - - 65,60
Non-farm, nor-residential 300,357 24,48( 19,13¢ - - 343,97!
Agricultural 1,002 4 24E - - 1,257
Farmland 39,38¢ 567 1,081 - - 41,03«
Home equity line! 106,47" 1,90¢ 3,21« - - 111,59°
Single family residential mortga¢ 498,79¢ 18,82¢ 27,68: 46( - 545,77(
Ownel-occupied constructio 21,37¢ 45C 19¢ - - 22,02¢
Consumer loan 59,20 398 49C - - 60,09(
Other 4,601 - - - - 4,601
Total loans $ 1,255,225 % 62,757 $ 75,46( $ 46C $ - $ 1,393,93
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The following table details the Compasyfecorded investment in loans related to eachnbelén the allowance for possible loan losse
portfolio segment and disaggregated on the badiseo€ompany’s impairment methodology.

2010
Acquired, Allowance
Loans Allowance Loans Allowance Impaired for Acquired,
Individually for Collectively for Loans
Evaluated Loans Evaluated Loans Evaluated Impaired
for Individually for Collectively for Loans
Impairment Evaluated Impairment Evaluated Impairment Evaluated
(Amounts in Thousand
Commercial loan
Constructior-- commercia $ 28t % - 8 42,40¢ $ 147 $ - $ -
Land developmer 50 5 16,60( 1,761 - -
Other land loan 43€ - 23,52( 747 512 -
Commercial and industrii 3,51¢ - 90,08 4,511 521 -
Multi-family residentia 3,24¢ 257 64,57¢ 824 - -
Non-farm, nor-residential 4,89¢ 15¢ 346,58t 2,68¢ 424 -
Agricultural - - 1,342 19 - -
Farmland - - 36,95« 70 - -
Total commercial loan 12,43: 42C 622,07( 12,09¢ 1,457 -
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line: 1,397 34 110,22: 2,104 - -
Single family residential mortga¢ 16,79: 1,87( 530,60( 7,99¢ 1,76¢ -
Owner-occupied construction 6 - 18,34: 19z - -
Total consumer real estate lo¢ 18,19¢ 1,90¢ 659,16t 10,29¢ 1,76¢ -
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 98 - 63,37: 1,76¢ - -
Other - - 7,64¢€ - - -
Total consumer and other log 98 - 71,02! 1,764 - -
Total loans $ 30,72¢ $ 2,32¢ $ 1,352,25 $ 24,15¢  $ 3,221 $ -

Acquired, Impaired Loan

Loans acquired in a business combination clositgy danuary 1, 2009, are recorded at estimated/diie on their purchase date and pro
the carryover of the related allowance for loarséss which include loans purchased in the TriSewwpiisition. Purchased impaired loans
accounted for under the Loans and Debt Securiteepihed with Deteriorated Credit Quality Topic 330-of FASB ASC when the loans hi
evidence of credit deterioration since originatéord it is probable at the date of acquisition that Company will not collect all contractue
required principal and interest payments. Evideofceredit quality deterioration as of the purchds¢ée may include measures such as ¢
scores, decline in collateral value, past due andhocrual status. The difference between contaigttequired payments at acquisition anc
cash flows expected to be collected at acquisisaeferred to as the nonaccretable difference lwtddncluded in the carrying amount of
loans. Subsequent decreases to the expectedloashviill generally result in a provision for lodmsses. Subsequent increases in cash
result in a reversal of the provision for loan ksdo the extent of prior charges, or a reversahefnonaccretable difference with a pos
impact on interest income prospectively. Furtlagry excess of cash flows expected at acquisitian the estimated fair value is referred t
the accretable yield and is recognized in inteestme over the remaining life of the loan whenr¢his a reasonable expectation abou
amount and timing of such cash flows. Purchasetbpeing loans are recorded at fair value, inclgdan credit component. The fair va
adjustment is accreted as an adjustment to yiedd the estimated lives of the loans. There isllowance for loan losses established a
acquisition date for acquired performing loanspravision for loan losses is recorded for any drdeéierioration in these loans subseque
the acquisition.

The carrying amount of acquired loans at July 809 consisted of loans with credit deteriorationimpaired loans, and loans with no cr
deterioration, or performing loans. The followitaple presents the acquired performing loans rabévat the acquisition date of July
2009. The amounts include principal only and dorefiect accrued interest as of the date of tlgsdion or beyond.

(In thousands

Contractually required principal payments to baéaskeet receive $ 125,36t
Fair value of adjustment for credit, interest rated liquidity (472)
Fair value of loans receivable, with no credit detation $ 124,89
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The following table presents the required detajbreing acquired impaired loans for the periode Tompany has estimated the cash flo
be collected on the loans and discounted thoseftash at a market rate of interest. The excessash flows expected at acquisition ovel
estimated fair value is referred to as the accletgkeld and is recognized into interest incomerotree remaining life of the loan. T
difference between contractually required paymeantacquisition and the cash flows expected to Bkeated at acquisition, considering
impact of prepayments, is referred to as the nawéalole difference. The nonaccretable differemmudes estimated future credit los
expected to be incurred over the life of the lodhe Company has not noted any further deteriaratiaghe acquired impaired loans.

TriStone Other Total
(In thousands
Balance, January 1, 20! $ - $ - $ -
Contractually required principal payments to baéaskeet receivab 6,86: 8,79( 15,65:
Nonaccretable differenc (1,670) (2,48¢) (4,15¢)
Present value of cash flows expected to be cotle 5,192 6,30z 11,49¢
Accretable differenc (14€) (897) (1,040
Fair value of acquired impaired loa 5,04 5,411 10,45«
Principal payments receive (1,240 (1,215 (2,45%)
Accretion 35 - 35
Balance, December 31, 2009 $ 3,83 $ 4,19¢ $ 8,03¢
Balance, January 1, 20. $ 3,83 $ 419 $ 8,03¢
Principal payments receive (1,039 (2,900 (3,939
Accretion 61 - 61
Other 44¢ - 44¢
Charge-offs (499) (88€) (1,38¢)
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 281, $ 407 $ 3,221
The remaining balance of the accretable differeid@ecember 31, 2010 and 2009, was $1.01 milli@h$244 thousand, respectively.
Nor-accrual and Past Due Loans
Non-accrual loans consisted of the following at Decenti.:
2010 2009
(Amounts in Thousand
Constructior-- commercia $ 28t % 1,421
Land developmer 50 1,40:
Other land loan 321 65¢
Commercial and industrii 3,51¢ 1,331
Multi-family residentia 2,46: 97¢
Non-farm, nor-residential 4,67( 4,53:
Agricultural - 18¢
Farmland - 1C
Home equity line: 86¢ 582
Single family residential mortga¢ 6,36¢ 6,32%
Owner-occupied constructio 6 37
Consumer loan 99 63
Total 18,64« 17,527
Acquired, impaired loan 77C -
Total non-accrual loans $ 19,41« $ 17,527
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The following table presents the aging of the rdedrinvestment in past due loans as of Decembe2@®1). There were no loans past du
days and still accruing interest at December 3102@Gnd 2009. Non-accural loans are included iraffpropriate delinquency category.

Total Current Total
30- 59 Days 6C-89 Days 90+ Days Past Due Loans Loans
(Amounts in Thousand
Constructior-- commercia $ 531 $ - $ 122 % 65z $ 42,04 $ 42,69
Land developmer - - 5C 5C 16,60( 16,65(
Other land loan - - 684 684 23,78¢ 24,46¢
Commercial and industrii 3,64¢ 121 35€ 4,12¢ 89,99¢ 94,12:
Multi-family residentia 95€ - 1,79: 2,74¢ 65,07" 67,82¢
Non-farm, nor-residential 3,251 2,05¢ 3,24¢ 8,55¢ 343,34t 351,90«
Agricultural 19 - - 19 1,32: 1,34
Farmland 11C - - 11C 36,84« 36,95/
Home equity line: 682 25C 60¢ 1,54( 110,08( 111,62
Single family residential mortga¢ 10,287 1,741 4,217 16,24 532,91¢ 549,15
Ownel-occupied constructio 85E 32¢ 6 1,18 17,16: 18,34¢
Consumer loan 43¢ 47 31 511 62,96« 63,47"
Other - - - - 7,64¢ 7,64¢
Total loans $ 20,77: $ 4541 $ 11,11 $ 36,42 $ 1,349,78 $ 1,386,20
Note 6. Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment are comprised of the faligues of December 31.:
2010 2009
(Amounts in Thousand
Land $ 19,11 $ 19,15¢
Bank premise 51,52¢ 50,84¢
Equipment 33,05( 32,54:
103,68¢ 102,54!
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 47,44* 45,59¢
Total $ 56,24 $ 56,94¢

Total depreciation and amortization expense forthinee years ended December 31, 2010, was $4.08rm$4.03 million, and $3.88 millio
respectively.

The Company enters into land and building leasegtfe operation of banking and loan productioncaffi operations centers and for
operation of automated teller machines. All sudsés qualify as operating leases. Following istedule by year of future minimum le
payments required under operating leases that imétied or remaining norcancelable lease terms in excess of one year Becgmber 3:
2010:

(Amounts in Thousands) Amount
Year ended December 31
2011 $ 964
2012 802
2013 72C
2014 392
2015 324
Later years 1,57¢
Total $ 4,78(

73




FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Total lease expense for the three years ended DOesedl, 2010, was $1.20 million, $1.03 million, atl01 million, respectively. Cert:
portions of the above listed leases have been tstibthird parties for properties not currently figeiused by the Company. The impact of
future lease payments to be received and the nocetable subleases are as follows:

(Amounts in Thousands) Amount
Year ended December 31
2011 $ 297
2012 21¢
2013 20C
2014 21
2015 21
Later years 233
Total $ 991

Related Party Least

Included in total lease expense are leases wititelparties totaling $160 thousand and $120 thmoliséa December 31, 2010 and 2(
respectively

Note 7. Deposits

The following is a summary of interest bearing ddtsoby type as of December 31:

2010 2009
(Amounts in Thousand
Interest bearing demand depo: $ 262,42(  $ 231,90°
Money market accoun 217,36: 199,22¢
Savings deposil 209,18! 182,15:
Certificates of depos 619,77t 718,55:
Individual Retirement Accoun 107,06: 105,87¢
Total $ 141580 $ 1,437,71
At December 31, 2010, the scheduled maturitiesdfficates of deposit were as follows:
Amount
(Amounts in Thousand
2011 $ 463,53:
2012 73,58¢
2013 55,25¢
2014 34,081
2015 and thereafter 100,37:
$ 726,83

Time deposits of $100 thousand or more were $3320n and $372.56 million at December 31, 20H@l 2009, respectively. At Decem
31, 2010, the scheduled maturities of certificatiedeposit of $100 thousand or more were as follows

Amount
(Amounts in Thousand
Three months or les $ 62,28t
Over three to six montt 85,35¢
Over six to twelve month 67,31
Over twelve month 117,13¢
Total $ 332,09:
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Related Party Deposi
Included in total deposits are deposits by reladies totaling $15.28 million and $18.13 milliahDecember 31, 2010 and 2009, respecti
Note 8. Borrowings

The following table details borrowings as of DecemB1:

2010 2009
(Amounts in Thousand
Securities sold under agreements to repurc $ 140,89: $ 153,63¢
FHLB borrowings 175,00( 183,17°
Subordinated det 15,46« 15,46
Other deb 72¢ 28<
Total $ 332,08 $ 352,55¢

Securities sold under agreements to repurchaséston$90.89 million and $103.63 million of retaVernight and term repurchase agreen
at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, add®5million of wholesale repurchase agreemenbo#t December 31, 2010 and 2009.
wholesale repurchase agreements had a weightedgavenaturity of 5.9 years at December 31, 2010, aedcollateralized with ager
mortgage-backed securities.

The Company’s banking subsidiary, First CommunianB (the “Bank”), is a member of the FHLB which pides credit in the form of short-
term and longerm advances collateralized by various mortgagetas At December 31, 2010, credit availabilityhwihe FHLB totale
$202.28 million. Advances from the FHLB are seduog qualifying loans of $324.35 million. The FHI#Blvances are subject to restriction
penalties in the event of prepayment.

FHLB borrowings included $175.00 million in convbté and callable advances at December 31, 20102808, and an additional $8
million of fixed term borrowings at December 31,020 The callable advances may be called, or redéeatequarterly intervals after varic
lockout periods. These call options may substliythorten the lives of these instruments. If thagvances are called, the debt may be p
full or converted to another FHLB credit producheTweighted average contractual rate of all FHLBaades was 2.39% and 2.41%
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

At December 31, 2010, the FHLB advances have appeig contractual final maturities between six aieven years. The schedi
maturities of the advances are as follows:

Amount

(Amounts in Thousand
2011 $ >
2012 -
2013 -
2014 -
2015 -
2016 and thereafte 175,00(

$_175,00(

In January 2006, the Company entered into a fiw gerivative swap instrument where it receivesQHBbased variable interest payments
pays fixed interest payments. The notional amounthe derivative swap is $50.00 million and effeety fixes a portion of the FHL
borrowings at 4.34%. After considering the effecth® interest rate swap, the effective weighteerage interest rate of the FHLB borrowi
was 3.63% and 3.59% at December 31, 2010 and 28§%ectively.

Also included in borrowings is $15.46 million ofnjor subordinated debentures (the “Debenturissied by the Company in October 200
an unconsolidated trust subsidiary, FCBI CapitaisTthe “Trust”), with an interest rate of thre@nth LIBOR plus 2.95%. The Trust was ¢
to purchase the Debentures through the issuanteusif preferred securities which had substantimntical terms as the Debentures.
Debentures mature on October 8, 2033, and arertlyrieallable. The net proceeds from the offeringr@vcontributed as capital to the Ban
support further growth.
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Despite the fact that the accounts of the Trushaténcluded in the Comparg/consolidated financial statements, the trustepredl securitie
issued by the Trust are included in the Tier 1 tehmf the Company for regulatory capital purposEsderal Reserve Board rules limit
aggregate amount of restricted core capital elesn@vitich includes trust preferred securities, amotiigr things) that may be included in
Tier 1 capital of most bank holding companies t&625 all core capital elements, including restrict®re capital elements, net of goodwill
any associated deferred tax liability. The currgmantitative limits do not preclude the Compargnfrincluding the $15.46 million in trt
preferred securities outstanding in Tier 1 ca@sgabf December 31, 2010.

The Company has committed to irrevocably and unitiomally guarantee the following payments or dimitions with respect to the tr
preferred securities to the holders thereof toeaktent that the Trust has not made such paymentistibutions: (i) accrued and unp
distributions, (ii) the redemption price, and (iiipon a dissolution or termination of the Trusk {bsser of the liquidation amount anc
accrued and unpaid distributions and the amoumatseéts of the Trust remaining available for distitm, in each case to the extent the 1
has funds available.

Note 9. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense (benefit) frominuing operations consist of the following:

Years Ended December 31

(Amounts in Thousands) 2010 2009 2008
Current tax expense (benel
Federal $ (5,26¢) $ (9,539 $ 8,57
State 78 24¢ 1,26(
(5,190 (9,28%) 9,831
Deferred tax expense (bene
Federal 12,39° (17,609 (11,98
State 611 (1,25%) (1,349
13,00¢ (18,86¢) (13,329
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 7,81t $ (28,15¢9) $ (3,487)

Deferred income taxes related to continuing openatireflect the net effects of temporary differenbetween the carrying amounts of as
and liabilities for financial reporting versus tpurposes. The tax effects of significant items cosipy the Company net deferred tax ass
as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

2010 2009
(Amounts in Thousand
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losse $ 9,931 $ 8,427
Unrealized losses on AFS securit 6,72¢ 6,92¢
Unrealized loss on derivative secut 58¢ 794
Securities impairment 5,15( 23,91%
Deferred compensatic 4,57( 4,17¢
State net operating loss carryforwi 1,69¢ 90z
Alternative minimum tax cred 2,78 -
Other 3,09¢ 2,34
Total deferred tax asse $ 34,54 % 47,47¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assel $ 6,25¢ $ 6,29t
Odd days interest defert 1,72: 1,35¢
Fixed asset 2,56¢ 2,44¢
Other 1,22 1,56¢
Total deferred tax liabilities 11,76: 11,66:
Net deferred tax asse $ 22,78: $ 35,81t
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Income taxes as a percentage of taseincome may vary significantly from statutoryte® due to items of income and expense whic
excluded, by law, from the calculation of taxalledme, as well as the utilization of available ta@dits. State and municipal bond ince
represent the most significant permanent tax diffee.

The reconciliation of the statutory federal taverand the effective tax rates from continuing opena for the three years ended Decembe
2010, is as follows:

For Years Ended

2010 2009 2008
Tax at statutory rat 35.0(% 35.0(% 35.0(%
Increase resulting fron
Tax-exempt interest income, net of nondeductible exp (6.79) 2.8¢ 154.3(
State income taxes, net of federal ber 2.32 0.6% 2.21
Gain on acquisition, net of acquisition relatedts: 0.0C 2.2¢ 0.0C
Other, ne (4.18) 1.2¢ 34.42
Effective tax rate 26.3% 42.06% 225.9%

Note 10. Employee Benefits
Employee Stock Ownership and Savings Plan

The Company maintains an Employee Stock Ownership $avings Plan (*“KSOP”)Coverage under the plan is provided to all emple
meeting minimum eligibility requirements.

Employer Stock FuncAnnual contributions to the stock portion of tharplwere made through 2006 at the discretion oBtberd of Director:
and allocated to plan participants on the basigetdtive compensation. The plan was frozen to &toontributions for periods af
2006. Substantially all plan assets are investedommon stock of the Company. The Company regbrescontributions to the plan a
component of salaries and benefits. All contribusionade after 2006 have been made to the emplayéeys feature of the plan. According
there were no contributions to the Employer Stookd=in 2010, 2009, or 2008. The Employer Stock Hueld 583,256 and 504,801 share
the Company’s common stock at December 31, 20126a606, respectively.

Employee Savings Ple: The Company provides a 401(k) savings featurdiwithe KSOP that is available to substantially eafiployee
meeting minimum eligibility requirements. Under #@l (k) feature, the Company makes matching cartidhs to employee deferrals at ley
determined by the board on an annual basis. Theoédhe Company 100% matching contributions to qualified defeyrahder the 401(
savings component of the KSOP were $1.12 millidn3% million, and $1.23 million in 2010, 2009 an@08, respectively. In 2010, 2009,
2008, the Company made its matching contributioB@mpany common stock.

Employee Welfare Plan

The Company provides various medical, dental, wisiide, accidental death and dismemberment ang-term disability insurance benefits
all full-time employees who elect coverage under this progfidhe health plan is managed by a third party agmator. Monthly employ:
and employee contributions are made to aeteempt employer benefits trust against which thed tharty administrator processes and |
claims. Stop-loss insurance coverage limits the @amy’s risk of loss to $85 thousand and $4.30 millionifaividual and aggregate clair
respectively. Total Company expenses under the plare $2.98 million, $1.59 million, and $2.32 moli in 2010, 2009, and 20!
respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan
The Company has deferred compensation agreemetitsceitain current and former officers providing feenefit payments over varic
periods commencing at retirement or death. Théliaat December 31, 2010 and 2009, was $467 thodsand $474 thousand, respectiy

The annual expenses associated with these agreemerg $60 thousand for 2010, 2009 and 2008. Thgatien is based upon the pres
value of the expected payments and estimatedXjfe@ancies of the individuals.
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The Company maintains a life insurance contracthenlife of one of the participants covered undesse agreements. Proceeds derived
death benefits are intended to provide reimbursémieplan benefits paid over the post employmergdiof the participants. Premiums on
insurance contract are currently paid through pdiiwidends on the cash surrender values of $1.@%®m $1.20 million, and $1.12 million
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

Executive Retention Plan

The Company maintains an Executive Retention Réarkéy members of senior management. The Execi®atention Plan provides fo
defined benefit at normal retirement targeted & 28 projected final base salary. Benefits underBkecutive Retention Plan become pay
at age 60. The associated benefit accrued as ofeyeh2010 and 2009 was $4.07 million and $3.41 omillrespectively, while the associe
expense incurred in connection with the ExecutieteRtion Plan was $424 thousand, $402 thousand$42@ thousand for 2010, 2009,

2008, respectively.

Projected benefit payments are expected to begzaidllows:

Amount

(Amounts in Thousand

2011 $ 59
2012 17¢
2013 22t
2014 22t
2015 22t
2016 through 202 1,41:

The following sets forth the components of the periodic benefit cost of the Company’s domestic-oontributory defined benefit plan for
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 201 December 31, 20C

(In Thousands

Service cos $ 21 $ 21z
Interest cost 211 18¢
Net periodic cos $ 424 $ 402

The discount rates assumed as of December 31, 2@¥6,lowered from 6.00% to 5.50%. The ExecutivéeRion Plan is an unfunded pl
and as such there are no plan assets. At Decerhp20380, the actuarial benefit plan obligation 407 million.

Directors Supplemental Retirement Plan

The Company maintains a Directors Supplementalr@&@etnt Plan (the “Directors Plan”) for its nemployee directors. The Directors F
provides for a benefit upon retirement from sendoethe Board at specified ages depending uportesfgservice or death. Benefits under
Directors Plan become payable at age 70, 75, amtF8nding upon the individual directogige and original date of election to the Boatd
associated benefit accrued as of yead- 2010 and 2009 was $1.60 million and $1.45 omllirespectively, while the associated exp
incurred in connection with the Directors Plan 859 thousand, $158 thousand and $161 thousar@®1dr, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

Note 11. Equity-Based Compensation
Stock Options

The Company maintains share-based compensatios fgromote the longerm success of the Company by encouraging offieenployee:
directors and individuals performing services fog Company to focus on critical long-range objexgiv

At the 2004 Annual Meeting, the Company’s sharetiddatified approval of the 2004 Omnibus Stocki@pPlan (“2004 Plan"hich mad
available up to 200,000 shares for potential grahtacentive stock options, najualified stock options, restricted stock awardpenformanc
awards. Nomgualified and incentive stock options, as well @stnicted and unrestricted stock may continue tavearded under the 2004 P!
Vesting under the 2004 Plan is generally over edtyear period.
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In 2001, the Company instituted a plan to grantlstoptions to non-employee directors (the “Direst@ption Plan”).The options grante
pursuant to the Directors Option Plan expire ateheier of ten years from the date of grant or jiears after the optionee ceases to serv
director of the Company. Options not exercised withe appropriate time shall expire and be deeocatelled. Options under the Direc
Option Plan were granted in the form of mematutory stock options with the aggregate numlbeshares of common stock available for g
under the Directors Option Plan set at 108,900esh@djusted for the 10% stock dividends paid i@22énd 2003).

In 1999, the Company instituted the 1999 Stock @pRlan (the “1999 Plan”). Options under the 18% were granted in the form of non-
statutory stock options with the aggregate numbshares of common stock available for grant uniderPlan set at 332,750 (adjusted for .
stock dividends paid in 2002 and 2003). The optigrasited under the 1999 Plan represent the righd€quire the option shares with dee
grant dates of Januarystfor each year beginning with the initial year geathand the following four anniversaries. All stamitions grante
pursuant to the 1999 Plan vest ratably on the tfirstugh the seventh anniversary dates of the dégramnt date. The option price of each s
option is equal to the fair market value (as defibg the 1999 Plan) of the Compasyommon stock on the date of each deemed graimg
the fiveyear grant period. Vested stock options grantedyant to the 1999 Plan are exercisable during gmpdat and for a period of fi
years after the date of the grar's retirement, provided retirement occurs at orradtge 62. If employment is terminated other tharehsfy
retirement, disability, or death, vested optionstrhe exercised within 90 days after the effectiste of termination. Any option not exerci
within such period will be deemed cancelled.

The Company also has options from various opti@anglother than described above (the Prior Plamsyeter, no common shares of
Company are available for grants under the Prian$|Awards outstanding under the Prior Plansreifiain in effect in accordance with tt
respective terms.

The cash flows from the tax benefits resulting frtar deductions in excess of the compensation esepescognized for those options
restricted stock (“excess tax benefitsife classified as financing cash flows. Excessbenefits totaling $9 thousand, $2 thousand, anc
thousand are classified as financing cash inflaw6010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

During the three years ended December 31, 2010, Cimapany recognized pre-tax compensation expenagedeto total equitypase:
compensation of $58 thousand, $153 thousand, affl $®usand, respectively. The Company recognigestyebased compensation ol
straight line promata basis, so that the percentage of the totaresgrecognized for an award is never less thapetentage of the award t
has vested.

As of December 31, 2010, there was $44 thousandriecognized compensation cost related to unvessteit options. That cost is expecte
be recognized over a weighted average period ofyéals. The actual compensation cost recognizelddiffiér from this estimate due tc
number of items, including new awards granted drahges in estimated forfeitures.

A summary of the Company’s stock option activitydaelated information for the year ended Decen3lie010, is as follows:

Weighted  Weighted Average

Average Remaining Aggregate
Option Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term (Years) Value
(Dollars in Thousands
Outstanding at January 1, 20 413,48( $ 22.7]
Exercisec 2,631 7.61
Forfeited 7,631 24.4(
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 403,21¢ $ 22.81 71 % -
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 393,21¢ $ 23.0( 71 $ -

The fair value of options was estimated at the adtgrant using the Black-Schol&erton option pricing model and certain assumpt
Expected volatility is based on the weekly histakigolatility of the Companyg stock price over the expected term of the optiexpecte
dividend yield is based on the ratio of the moserg dividend rate paid per share of the Compangmmon stock to recent trading price of
Company’s common stock. The expected term is géypeaculated using the “shortcut method.” Thekffeee interest rate is based on the
Treasury yield curve at the time of grant for tlegipd equal to the expected term of the option.
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The fair values of grants made during the threersyemded December 31, 2010, were estimated usidoffowing weighted avera
assumptions:

2010 2009 2008
Volatility - 44.8%% 29.11%
Expected dividend yiel - 2.71% 3.64%
Expected term (in year - 6.2C 10.0¢
Risk-free rate - 2.81% 2.9¢%

There were no grants made during the year endedrdieer 31, 2010. The weighted average gdaté-fair value of options granted during
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, were $633%7.74, respectively. The aggregate intrinsicer of options exercised during
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, were #5g&hd and $310 thousand, respectiv

Stock Awards

The 2004 Plan permits the granting of restricted anrestricted shares of the Compangbmmon stock either alone, in addition to, ¢
tandem with other awards made by the Company. Sjcahkts are generally measured at fair value om#te of grant based on the numbe
shares granted and the quoted price of the Compargyrhmon stock. Such value is recognized as erpewsr the corresponding sen
period. Compensation costs related to these typawsards are consistently reported for all peripassented.

The following table summarizes the changes in tbm@any’s nonvested shares of the Compsiegmmon stock for the year ended Decel
31, 2010.

Weighted Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at January 1, 20 1,80C $ 22.61
Granted 3,00( 15.8¢
Vested 80C 36.4:
Forfeited 30C 11.67
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 3,70 $ 15.0¢

As of December 31, 2010, there was $44 thousandriecognized compensation cost related to unvestett awards. That cost is expecte
be recognized over a weighted average period ofyéas. The actual compensation cost recognizelddiffiér from this estimate due tc
number of items, including new awards granted drahges in estimated forfeitures.

Note 12. Litigation, Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

In the normal course of business, the Company defandant in various legal actions and asserteichglamost of which involve lendin
collection and employment matters. While the Conypand legal counsel are unable to assess the tdtimacome of each of these mal
with certainty, they are of the belief that thealesion of these actions, singly or in the aggregahould not have a material adverse affe
the financial condition, results of operations aslt flows of the Company.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to financial instrumentsvatf-balance sheet risk in the normal course of busitesseet the financing needs of
customers. These financial instruments include cimemts to extend credit, standby letters of crexid financial guarantees. Th
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elemetftsredit and interest rate risk beyond the amowebgnized on the balance sheet.
contractual amounts of those instruments reflegtetktent of involvement the Company has in pamicalasses of financial instruments.
Company’s exposure to credit loss in the eventaf{merformance by the other party to the financiatrimeent for commitments to exte
credit and standby letters of credit and finangizrantees written is represented by the contraatnaunt of those instruments. The Comg
uses the same credit policies in making commitmantsconditional obligations as it does for on-ba&asheet instruments.
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Commitments to extend credit are agreements toteadcustomer as long as there is not a violaifaany condition established in the contr
Commitments generally have fixed expiration datesoter termination clauses and may require paynoéraa fee. Since many of t
commitments are expected to expire without beingwdr upon, the total commitment amounts do not rescdyg represent future ce
requirements. The Company evaluates each custorredstworthiness on a case-bgse basis. The amount of collateral obtainedeénae:
necessary by the Company upon extension of clisdigsed on managementredit evaluation of the counterparties. Colkdteeld varies bl
may include accounts receivable, inventory, propetant and equipment, and income-producing cororakproperties.

Standby letters of credit and written financial gardees are conditional commitments issued by thragany to guarantee the performance
customer to a third party. The credit risk invohindssuing letters of credit is essentially thensaas that involved in extending loan facilitie
customers. To the extent deemed necessary, callaterarying types and amounts is held to secustammer performance under certai
those letters of credit outstanding.

Financial instruments, whose contract amounts sgmtecredit risk at December 31, 2010 and 2009,caremitments to extend cre
(including availability of lines of credit) of $2088 million and $233.72 million, respectively, asthndby letters of credit and finan
guarantees of $4.04 million and $9.80 million, exdfjvely. The Company maintains a liability of $3ff@usand, which represents its res
for unfunded commitments.

The Company has issued, through the Trust, $15i0@mof trust preferred securities in a privategement. In connection with the issue
of the trust preferred securities, the Company basmitted to irrevocably and unconditionally gudesn the following payments
distributions with respect to the trust preferredigities to the holders thereof to the extent that Trust has not made such paymen
distributions and has the funds therefore: (i) aedrand unpaid distributions, (ii) the redemptiaicgy and (iii) upon a dissolution
termination of the Trust, the lesser of the ligtiola amount and all accrued and unpaid distribwiand the amount of assets of the 1
remaining available for distribution.

Note 13. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activies

The Company uses derivative instruments primagalgrotect against the risk of adverse price or@gerate movements on the value of ce
assets and liabilities and on future cash flowsesehderivatives may consist of interest rate swhlpsts, caps, collars, futures, forw.
contracts, and written and purchased options. @#vie instruments represent contracts betweeneggattiat usually require little or no initial
investment and result in one party delivering casshnother type of asset to the other party baseal motional amount and an underlying ¢
as specified in the contract.

The primary derivatives that the Company uses aterdst rate swaps and interest rate lock commisnétRLCs"). Generally, thes
instruments help the Company manage exposure tketndask and meet customer financing needs. Manik&trepresents the possibility t
economic value or net interest income will be adebr affected by fluctuations in external fact@sch as interest rates, markieiven loai
rates and prices or other economic factors.

The Company entered into an interest rate swawatere accounted for as a cash flow hedge in Jgn2@®6. The $50.00 million notior
amount pay fixed, receive variable interest ratapswas a liability with an estimated fair value$8fl thousand and $2.12 million at Decen
31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Company pdiyed rate of 4.34% and receives a LIB@Rsed floating rate from the counterparty.
gains and losses associated with the market vhloi&tions of the interest rate swap are includedCl.

The following table presents the aggregate contedcor notional, amounts of derivative financiadtruments as of the dates indicated:

December 31, 201 December 31, 20C

(In Thousands
Interest rate swa $ 50,00( $ 50,00(
IRLC's 7,56¢ 4,63¢€
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As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the fair valdesedCompany’s derivatives were as follows:

Asset Derivatives

December 31, 201i

December 31, 200!

Balance Shee Fair Balance Shee Fair
(In Thousands) Location Value Location Value
Derivatives not designated as hed
IRLC's Other assets $ 28 Other assets  $ 2
Total $ 28 $ 2

Liability Derivatives

December 31, 201I

December 31, 200!

Balance Shee Fair Balance Shee Fair
(In Thousands) Location Value Location Value
Derivatives designated as hed;

Interest rate swap Other liabilities $ 31  Other liabilities $ 2,117
Total $ 31 $ 2,117
Derivatives not designated as hed

IRLC's Other liabilities $ 59  Other liabilites $ 74
Total $ 59 $ 74
Total derivatives $ 90 $ 2,191

Interest Rate SwapThe Company uses interest rate swap contracts tiifyrits exposure to interest rate risk. The Compeamrrently employ
a cash flow hedging strategy to effectively conwenttain floatingrate liabilities into fixed rate instruments. Theeirest rate swap is accour
for under the “short-cutinethod. Changes in fair value of the interest satap are reported as a component of OCI. The Coyngaes nc
currently employ fair value hedging strategies.

Interest Rate Lock Commitmenin the normal course of business, the Company seiignated mortgage loans into the secondary rage
loan market. During the period of loan originatiand prior to the sale of the loans in the secondaayket, the Company has exposur
movements in interest rates associated with moetdagns that are in the “mortgage pipelin&.pipeline loan is one on which the poter
borrower has set the interest rate for the loaertgring into an IRLC. Once a mortgage loan isedioand funded, it is included within loi
held for sale and awaits sale and delivery intostheondary market. During the term of an IRLC, @m@npany has the risk that interest r
will change from the rate quoted to the borrower.

The Companys balance of mortgage loans held for sale is stibjechanges in fair value, due to fluctuationsrterest rates from the lo
closing date through the date of sale of the loao the secondary market. Typically, the fair vabighe warehouse declines in value w
interest rates increase and rises in value whenast rates decrease.

Effect of Derivatives and Hedging Activities on theome StatemenFor the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009Cdhgany he
determined there was no amount of ineffectivene@ssash flow hedges. The following table detailsgaand losses recognized in incom
non-designated hedging instruments for the perodied December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Amount of Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in Income on Derivativ
Year Ended December 31

Derivatives Not
Designated as Hedgin

Location of Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in Income ot

Instruments Derivative 2010 2009

(In Thousands

IRLC's Other income $ 41 $ (94)
Total $ 41 % (94)

Counterparty Credit Risk.Like other financial instruments, derivatives tan an element of “credit riskCredit risk is the possibility that t
Company will incur a loss because a counterparhichivmay be a bank, a brokdealer or a customer, fails to meet its contracbbéibations
This risk is measured as the expected positiveacephent value of contracts. All derivative contsatiay be executed only with exchange
counterparties approved by the CompaniSset/Liability Management Committee. The Compeawiews its counterparty risk regularly i
has determined that as of December 31, 2010 an@l, 20€re was no significant counterparty credk.ris
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Note 14. Regulatory Capital Requirements and Redtitions

The primary source of funds for dividends paid gy Company is dividends received from the Bankidginds paid by the Bank are subjec
restrictions by banking regulations. Approval bgukatory authorities is required if the effect éfidends declared would cause the regule
capital of the Bank to fall below specified minimdavels. As described below, the Bank is requitechaintain heightened regulatory cayg
ratios. Approval is also required if dividends ldeed exceed the net profits for that year combindith the retained net profits for t
preceding two years.

The Company and the Bank are subject to variouslaegmy capital requirements administered by triefal banking agencies. Failure to n
minimum capital requirements can initiate certaiangiatory and possibly additional discretionary agi by regulators that, if undertak
could have a direct material effect on the Compafiyiancial statements. Under the capital adeqgadjelines and the regulatory framew
for prompt corrective actiorwhich applies only to the Bank, the Bank must nepetcific capital guidelines that involve quantitatimeasure
of the entity’s assets, liabilities, and certairfi-tidlance sheet items as calculated under regylaocounting practices. The Basktapite
amounts and classifications are also subject tditgtiee judgments by the regulators about compéserisk weightings, and other factc
Quantitative measures established by regulaticensure capital adequacy require the Company an8dh& to maintain minimum amou
and ratios for total and Tier 1 capital (as defimedhe regulations) to risweighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 cafataldefined) 1
average assets (as defined).

To be categorized as well capitalized, the Banktrmgintain minimum total capital to risk-weightedsats, Tier 1 capital to riskeightec
assets, and Tier 1 capital to average assets digepratios established by banking regulators2dh0, the Office of the Comptroller of 1
Currency (the “OCC"jssued an Individual Minimum Capital Ratio diretito the Bank which requires the Bank to maintaiatal capital t
risk-weighted assets ratio of 11.50%, a Tier 1 tedpo riskweighted assets ratio of 10.00% and a Tier 1 dafuitaverage assets (levere
ratio of 7.50%. Failure of the Bank to maintaiesh minimum capital ratios will be deemed by theQQ@ constitute an unsafe and unsc
banking practice and could subject the Bank to taadil regulatory action. As of December 31, 20t Company and the Bank met
capital adequacy requirements to which they argestibAs of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the ma=tntenotifications from regulatc
categorized the Bank as well capitalized underrégilatory framework for prompt corrective actidiere are no conditions or events s
those notifications that management believes hhgaged the institution’s category.

The Company’s and the Bank’s capital ratios asedddnber 31, 2010 and 2009, are presented in toevfoy tables.

December 31, 2010

To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under Individual Minimum
Adequacy Prompt Corrective Capital Ratio
Actual Purposes Action Provisions Directive
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars in Thousands
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir $ 224,93 15.3% $ 117,34¢ 8.0(% N/A N/A N/A N/A
First Community Bank, N. A 207,14: 14.1&% 116,89: 8.00% $ 146,11 10.0(% $ 168,03: 11.5(%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir 206,42¢ 14.0% 58,67¢ 4.0(% N/A N/A N/A N/A
First Community Bank, N. A 188,77: 12.92% 58,44¢ 4.0(% 87,66¢ 6.0(% 146,11! 10.0(%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets (Leverage
First Community Bancshares, Ir 206,42¢ 9.44% 87,46¢ 4.0(% N/A N/A N/A N/A
First Community Bank, N. A 188,77: 8.6€% 87,15¢ 4.0(% 108,94« 5.0(% 163,41¢ 7.5(%
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December 31, 200!

To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars in Thousands
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted
Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir $ 208,83° 13.81% $ 120,96¢ 8.0(% N/A N/A
First Community Bank, N. A 176,30: 11.7¢% 119,72t 8.0(% $ 149,65 10.0(%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted
Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir 189,85¢ 12.56% 60,48 4.0(% N/A N/A
First Community Bank, N. A 157,15: 10.5(% 59,86: 4.0(% 89,79t 6.0(%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Asset:
(Leverage)
First Community Bancshares, Ir 189,85¢ 8.51% 89,29( 4.0(% N/A N/A
First Community Bank, N. A 157,15: 7.0% 88,70¢ 4.0(% 110,88 5.0(%

Note 15. Other Operating Income and Expense

Other operating income and expense include cectasis, the total of which exceeds one percent ofbdeed interest income and noninte
income, that are presented in the following tabletlfie years indicated:

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
(Amounts in Thousand
Income
Credited dividends on life insuran $ 867 $ 81¢ $ 74€
Expense:
Service fee! 3,31t 3,767 3,551
Professional fee 1,99¢ 1,75¢ 1,87¢
Advertising and public relatior 1,58¢ 1,63: 2,16¢
Telephone and data communicati 1,46¢ 1,39¢ 1,50¢
Office supplies 1,36¢ 1,32: 1,42¢
ATM processing expenst 1,24¢ 97t 98¢
Non-employee production commissio 52¢ 64¢ 31C

Related Party Fee

Included in other operating expense are legal paés to related parties totaling $208 thousand, th86sand, and $147 thousand in 2010, 2
and 2008, respectively.

Note 16. Fair Value
Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price that would leeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitgbn an orderly transaction between ma
participants. A fair value measurement assumesthieatransaction to sell the asset or transfetidéibdity occurs in the principal market for 1
asset or liability or, in the absence of a printimarket, the most advantageous market for thet asdebility. The price in the principal,
most advantageous, market used to measure the/dimie of the asset or liability shall not be adgstfor transaction costs. An orde
transaction is a transaction that assumes expésuhe market for a period prior to the measurendate to allow for marketing activities t
are usual and customary for transactions involgugh assets and liabilities; it is not a forceahdection. Market participants are buyers
sellers in the principal market that are (i) indegient, (i) knowledgeable, (iii) able to transatd (iv) willing to transact.

The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 Inputs —Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for tidah assets or liabilities that the reporting gntias the ability t
access at the measurement d
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Level 2 Inpute Inputs other than quoted prices included in Levethat are observable for the asset or liabilitthesi directly o
indirectly. These might include quoted prices fionikar assets or liabilities in active markets, tpdprices for identic
or similar assets or liabilities in markets that aot active, inputs other than quoted pricesdhabbservable for the as
or liability, such as interest rates, volatilitiggepayment speeds, and credit risks, or inputsateaderived principal
from or corroborated by market data by correlabowther means

Level 3 Input— Unobservable inputs for determining the fair valoésssets or liabilities that reflect an er's own assumptions ab
the assumptions that market participants wouldimgeicing the assets or liabilitie

A description of the valuation methodologies used ihstruments measured at fair value, as wellhes general classification of st
instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarcheisforth below. These valuation methodologiesevapplied to all of the Comparsyasse
and liabilities carried at fair value. In geneffaliy value is based upon quoted market prices, &berilable. If such quoted market prices
not available, fair value is based upon third pargdels that primarily use, as inputs, observablrketbased parameters. Valuat
adjustments may be made to ensure that financsluiments are recorded at fair value. These adgrgBnmay include amounts to ref
counterparty credit quality, the Compasycreditworthiness, among other things, as wellasbservable parameters. Any such valui
adjustments are applied consistently over time. Chmpanys$ valuation methodologies may produce a fair vaklleulation that may not
indicative of net realizable value or reflective fafure fair values. While management believes @Goenpany$ valuation methodologies
appropriate and consistent with other market pagits, the use of different methodologies or aggions to determine the fair value of cer
financial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair value at the reporting date.

Securities Available-for-SaleSecurities classified as available-fale are reported at fair value utilizing LevelL&yel 2, and Level 3 inpu
Securities are classified as Level 1 within theuaéibn hierarchy when quoted prices are availableni active market. This includes secur
whose value is based on quoted market prices ineactarkets for identical assets. The Company at&s Level 1 inputs for the valuatior
equity securities traded in active markets.

Securities are classified as Level 2 within theuaibn hierarchy when the Company obtains fair @alweasurements from an indepen
pricing service. The fair value measurements camsidbservable data that may include dealer quotesket spreads, cash flows, the |
Treasury yield curve, live trading levels, trade@xtion data, market consensus prepayment speedst information, and the borslterm:
and conditions, among other things. Level 2 in@uts used to value U.S. Agency securities, mortdegpded securities, municipal securit
FDIC-backed securities, singiesue trust preferred securities, pooled trustgpretl securities, and certain equity securities aha not activel
traded.

Securities are classified as Level 3 within theua#ibn hierarchy in certain cases when there igtdignactivity or less transparency to
valuation inputs. In the absence of observablearoborated market data, internally developedmests that incorporate markedse:
assumptions are used when such information isahlail

Fair value models may be required when tradingsitgthas declined significantly or does not exjstices are not current or pricing variati
are significant. The Comparg/fair value from third party models utilizes mddglsoftware that uses market participant datakamviedge c
the structures of each individual security to depatash flows specific to each security. The falues of the securities are determined by t
the cash flows developed by the fair value moddlapplying appropriate market observable discoat@s: The discount rates are develope
determining credit spreads above a benchmark satéh as LIBOR, and adding premiums for illiquiditgveloped based on a compariso
initial issuance spread to LIBOR versus a finansittor curve for recently issued debt to LIBORe@jic securities that have increa
uncertainty regarding the receipt of cash flows diseounted at higher rates due to the additioa dial specific credit premium. Fina
internal fair value model pricing and external pric observations are combined by assigning weighisach pricing observation. Pricing
reviewed for reasonableness based on the direatitire specific markets and the general econondicators.

Other Assets and Associated Liabiliti€ecurities held for trading purposes are recordefdiavalue and included in “other assetsi the
consolidated balance sheets. Securities held &dlirtg purposes include assets related to emplogésrdd compensation plans. The as
associated with these plans are generally investeduities and classified as Level 1. Deferred gensation liabilities, also classified as L
1, are carried at the fair value of the obligationhe employee, which corresponds to the fairealithe invested assets.

Derivatives:Derivatives are reported at fair value utilizingveé 2 inputs. The Company obtains dealer quotatiased on observable dati
value its derivatives.
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Impaired Loans:Certain impaired loans are reported at the fain@adf the underlying collateral if repayment is esied solely from tt
collateral. Collateral values are estimated usiagdl 3 inputs based on appraisals adjusted foomised discounting criteria.

The Company maintains an active and robust proldesdit identification system. When a credit is itlféed as exhibiting characteristics
weakening, the Company will assess the credit &emtial impairment. Examples of weakening inclulddinquency and deterioration of
borrower’s capacity to repay as determined by tbenfanys regular credit review function. As part of thepmrment review, the Compa
will evaluate the current collateral value. It FetCompanys standard practice to obtain updated third paofiateral valuations to ass
management in measuring potential impairment ekditand the amount of the impairment to be reedrd

Internal collateral valuations are generally perfed within two to four weeks of the original iddittation of potential impairment and rece
of the third party valuation. The internal valuatis performed by comparing the original appraieaturrent local real estate market condit
and experience and considers liquidation costs. rEiselt of the internal valuation is compared te thutstanding loan balance, anc
warranted, a specific impairment reserve will bealelished at the completion of the internal evaarat

A third party evaluation is typically received wiittthirty to fortyfive days of the completion of the internal evaioiat Once received, the th
party evaluation is reviewed by Special Assetsfsafl/or Credit Appraisal staff for reasonablené3ace the evaluation is reviewed

accepted, discounts to fair market value are agfizesed upon such factors as the bahistorical liquidation experience of like colledk ant
an estimated net realizable value is establishkdt @stimated net realizable value is then comp@arélte outstanding loan balance to deter:
the amount of specific impairment reserve. The iigeimpairment reserve, if necessary, is adjustedeflect the results of the upda
evaluation. A specific impairment reserve is galigmaintained on impaired loans during the tinegigd while awaiting receipt of the th
party evaluation as well as on impaired loans tioatinue to make some form of payment and liquagtets not imminent. Impaired loans
meeting the aforementioned criteria and that dohaote a specific impairment reserve have usualgnb@eviously written down througt
partial charge-off, to their net realizable value.

The Companys Special Assets staff assumes the management andormg of all loans determined to be impairedhil® awaiting th
completion of the third party appraisal, the Compaenerally begins to complete the tasks necedsagain control of the collateral a
prepare for liquidation, including, but not limitéd engagement of counsel, inspection of collateaatl continued communication with
borrower, if appropriate. Special Assets staff aksgularly reviews the relationship to identify apgtential adverse developments during
time.

Generally, the only difference between current ajged value, adjusted for liquidation costs, aral ¢arrying amount of the loan less
specific reserve is any downward adjustment toappraised value that the CompasBpecial Assets staff determine appropriate. 7
differences are generally made up of costs tothellproperty, as well as a deflator for the dewidumaof property seen when banks are
sellers, and the Company deemed these adjustneefas &alue adjustments.

Other Real Estate Owned he fair value of the Compars/bther real estate owned is determined using ruared prior appraisals, estimate
costs to sell, and proprietary qualitative adjusttaeAccordingly, other real estate owned is statea Level 3 fair value.
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The following tables summarize financial assets famghcial liabilities measured at fair value oneaurring basis as of December 31, 201C
2009, segregated by the level of the valuationt®puithin the fair value hierarchy utilized to meesfair value:
December 31, 201

Fair Value Measurements Using Total
(In Thousands Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Available-for-sale securities
Agency securitie $ - $ 983 % - $ 9,83
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 215,01: - 215,01«
Non-Agency Ali-A residential MBS - 11,27% - 11,27%
Municipal securitie! - 176,13¢ - 176,13¢
FDIC-backed securitie - 25,66( - 25,66(
Single issue trust preferred securit - 41,24« - 41,24
Pooled trust preferred securiti - 264 - 264
Equity securities 61€ 20 - 63€
Total available-for-sale securities $ 61€ $ 479,44t $ - $ 480,06¢
Deferred compensation assets $ 3,19: $ - $ - $ 3,19:
Derivative asset
Interest rate lock commitmer $ - $ 28 $ - $ 28
Total derivative assets $ - $ 28 $ - $ 28
Deferred compensation liabilitie $ 3192 $ - $ - $ 3,19:
Derivative liabilities
Interest rate swa $ - $ 31 % - $ 31
Interest rate lock commitments - 59 - 59
Total derivative liabilities $ - $ 9 $ - $ 9C
December 31, 200!
Fair Value Measurements Usinc Total
(In Thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Available-for-sale securities
Agency securitie $ - $ 25,27¢  $ - $ 25,27¢
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 264,21¢ - 264,21¢
Non-Agency prime residential MB - 5,17( - 5,17(
Non-Agency Ali-A residential MBS - 11,30: - 11,30:
Municipal securitie: - 135,60: - 135,60:
Single issue trust preferred securit - 41,11( - 41,11(
Pooled trust preferred securiti - - 1,64¢ 1,64¢
Equity securitie: 1,713 20 - 1,73:
Total available-for-sale securities $ 1,71:  $ 482,69t $ 1,64¢ $ 486,05"
Deferred compensation ass $ 287: $ - $ - $ 2,87:
Derivative asset
Interest rate lock commitments $ - $ 2 $ - $ 2
Total derivative asse $ - $ 2 % - $ 2
Deferred compensation liabilitie $ 287: $ - $ - $ 2,87:
Derivative liabilities
Interest rate swa $ - $ 2117 $ - $ 2,115
Interest rate lock commitmer - 74 - 74
Total derivative liabilities $ - $ 2,191 $ - $ 2,191
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The following table presents additional informatiahout financial assets and liabilities measuredaimtvalue on a recurring basis as

December 31, 2010 and 2009 for which Level 3 inpmsutilized to determine fair value:

(In Thousands)
Beginning balanc
Transfers into Level
Transfers out of Level
Total gains or losse
Included in earnings (or changes in net ast
Included in other comprehensive inco
Purchases, issuances, sales, and settlel
Purchase
Issuance:
Sales
Settlement:

Ending balance

Fair Value Measurements
Using Significant

Unobservable Inputs
Available-for-Sale Securities
Pooled Trust Preferred Securities
December 31

2010 2009

$ 1,646 $ 28,06’
(3,574 -

- (26,419)

1,92¢ -

$ -3 1,64¢

During the first quarter of 2010, the Company clehthe fair value of pooled trust preferred semsifrom Level 3 to Level 2 pricing resulti
in a transfer of $3.57 million out of Level 3. TB®mMpany was successful in obtaining a quote fraoaified market participant, and althot

the market for these securities is increasingdilitremains inactive.

Certain financial and nofinancial assets are measured at fair value onnaecarring basis; that is, the instruments aremeasured at fe
value on an ongoing basis but are subject to faitesradjustments in certain circumstances, for @@mvhen there is evidence of impairm
Items subjected to nonrecurring fair value adjustimat December 31, 2010, and December 31, 208&sdfollows:

(In Thousands
Impaired loan:
Restructured loar
Other real estate ownt

(In Thousands
Impaired loan:
Other real estate ownt
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December 31, 201i

Fair Value Measurements Usinc Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
- $ 10,90¢ $ 10,90¢
- 5,771 5,771
- 4,91( 4,91(
December 31, 200!
Fair Value Measurements Usinc Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
- $ 11,70: $ 11,70:
- 457¢ 457¢
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value information about financial instrumemsether or not recognized in the balance sheetylfich it is practical to estimate the ve
is based upon the characteristics of the instrusnend relevant market information. Financial instemts include cash, evidence of owner
in an entity, or contracts that convey or imposeaanentity that contractual right or obligationédither receive or deliver cash for ano
financial instrument. Fair value is the amount dtich a financial instrument could be exchanged iouerent transaction between willi
parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidatamd is best evidenced by a quoted market prioréfexists.

December 31, 201! December 31, 200!

Carrying Carrying

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
(Amounts in Thousand
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 112,18¢ $ 112,18¢ $ 101,34 $ 101,34:
Investment securitie 484,70 484,76¢ 493,51 493,63t
Loans held for sal 4,69 4,70( 11,57¢ 11,58(
Loans held for investment less allowal 1,359,72. 1,370,17. 1,369,65: 1,362,81.
Accrued interest receivab 7,67°¢ 7,67¢ 8,61( 8,61(
Bank owned life insuranc 42,24 42,24 40,97: 40,97:
Derivative financial asse 28 28 2 2
Deferred compensation ass 3,192 3,192 2,87 2,87
Liabilities
Demand deposil $ 205,15 $ 205,15 $ 208,24: % 208,24
Interes-bearing demand depos 262,42( 262,42( 231,90° 231,90°
Savings deposil 426,54 426,54 381,38: 381,38:
Time deposit: 726,83 735,33: 824,42¢ 834,54t
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 140,89: 161,10( 153,63: 156,65:
Accrued interest payab 3,26¢ 3,26¢ 4,13( 4,13(
FHLB and other indebtedne 191,19 203,53¢ 198,92 208,33
Derivative financial liabilities 9C 9C 2,191 2,191
Deferred compensation liabilitie 3,192 3,19: 2,872 2,872

The following summary presents the methodologied @ssumptions used to estimate the fair value @fGbmpanys financial instrumen
presented below. The information used to deterrfairevalue is highly subjective and judgmental ature and, therefore, the results may
be precise. Subjective factors include, among dtfiegs, estimates of cash flows, risk charactesstcredit quality, and interest rates, a
which are subject to change. Since the fair vaduestimated as of the balance sheet date, the asnthiam will actually be realized or paid uj
settlement or maturity on these various instrumeatgd be significantly different.

Cash and Cash Equivalentshe book values of cash and due from banks anddkfimds sold and purchased are considered tojbal ¢o fai
value as a result of the short-term nature of thieses.

Investment Securities and Deferred Compensatioatéssid LiabilitiesFair values are determined in the same mannersasibled above.
Loans:The estimated fair value of loans held for invesitrie measured based upon discounted future casis fising current rates for sim
loans. No estimate for market illiquidity has beeade. Loans held for sale are recorded at lowepsf or estimated fair value. The fair ve

of loans held for sale is determined based upomiduket sales price of similar loans.

Accrued Interest Receivable and PayatThe book value is considered to be equal to thevaiue due to the shomrm nature of tr
instrument.

Bank-owned Life Insurancethe fair value is determined by stated contractesl
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Derivative Financial Instrument<sThe estimated fair value of derivative financiatiuments is based upon the current market pricsifioilas
instruments.

Deposits and Securities Sold Under Agreements pauiRkase:Deposits without a stated maturity, including dethanterest bearing demal
and savings accounts, are reported at their carmyatue. No value has been assigned to the framefaisie of these deposits. For other typ:
deposits and repurchase agreements with fixed itiasuand rates, fair value has been estimatedisgodnting future cash flows based
interest rates currently being offered on instruteevith similar characteristics and maturities.

FHLB and Other IndebtednesFair value has been estimated based on interest catrently available to the Company for borrowimgth
similar characteristics and maturities. The faitueafor trust preferred obligations has been edtohdased on credit spreads seen i
marketplace for like issues.

Commitments to Extend Credit, Standby Letters eflitrand Financial Guarantee§he amount of ofbalance sheet commitments to ex
credit, standby letters of credit, and financiahgntees is considered equal to fair value. Becafifige uncertainty involved in attempting
assess the likelihood and timing of commitmentsigpeirawn upon, coupled with the lack of an establismarket and the wide diversity of
structures, the Company does not believe it is mngéul to provide an estimate of fair value thaffelis from the given value of t
commitment.

Note 17. Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The components of the Compasycomprehensive income (loss), net of income taasspf December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, we
follows:

December 31
2010 2009 2008

(In Thousands
Net income (loss $ 21,847 $ (38,69¢) $ 1,95¢
Other comprehensive income (lo:

Unrealized gain (loss) on securities avail-for-sale

with othe-thar-temporary impairmer 194 (28 -
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities avail-for-sale
without othe-thar-temporary impairmer 8,41¢ (9,35)) -

Unrealized loss on securities availe-for-sale

prior to adoption of ASC Topic 32 -
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) los

realized in net incom (8,277) 11,67: 30,10(
Reclassification adjustment for credit rela

othe-thar-temporary impairments recogniz

(102,305

in earnings 18t 78,86: -
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ - (9,777) -
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative securi 2,07¢ 1,07: (2,007)
Change related to employee benefit pl (273) (752) (1,180
Income tax effect (86€) (26,71)) 30,15¢
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 1,462 44,99¢ (45,234
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 23,30¢ $ 6,30 $ (43,280()
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The components of the Compasyaccumulated other comprehensive loss, net ofviectaxes, as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, w
follows:

Unrealized Unrealized Loss Benefit Accumulated
Loss on Cash Flow Plan Comprehensive
on Securities Hedge Derivative  Liability Loss
(Amounts in Thousand
December 31, 2010 $ (11,219 $ (20) $ (957) $ (12,190
December 31, 200 $ (1154) % (1,327 $ (786€) $ (13,657)
December 31, 200 $ (4981) % (1,996) $ (708) $ (52,517

Note 18. Parent Company Financial Information

Condensed financial information related to Firstr@aunity Bancshares, Inc. as of December 31, 20802899, and for each of the ye
ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, is assill

December 31

Condensed Balance Shee 2010 2009

(Amounts in Thousand

Assets

Cash $ 11,70¢ $ 17,42¢

Securities available for sa 9,66° 10,14:

Investment in subsidiai 266,67: 233,07

Other assets 4,32 4.56°
Total asset $ 29236 $ 265,20

Liabilities

Other liabilities $ 7,028 $ 31C

Long-term debi 15,46¢ 15,46¢
Total liabilities 22,48¢ 15,77

Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stoc - -
Common stocl 18,08: 18,08:

Additional paic-in capital 189,23¢ 190,96°
Retained earning 79,84« 63,92:
Treasury stocl (6,740 (9,897
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (10,549 (13,657)
Total stockholders' equi 269,87¢ 249,42¢
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 292,360 $ 265,20:

Years Ended December 31

Condensed Statements of Incom 2010 2009 2008
(Amounts in Thousand
Cash dividends received from subsidiary b $ - $ 4,027 $ 22,38
Other income 2,13¢ 3,77¢ 2,10¢
Operating expens (1,55¢€) (3,030 (2,200
Income tax (expense) bene (223) (2,69)) 24
Equity in undistributed earnings (loss) of subgiglia 21,49; (40,776 (20,35)
Net income (loss 21,847 (38,69¢) 1,95¢
Dividends on preferred stock - 2,16( 25k
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders $ 21,847 $ (40,856 $ 1,69¢
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Years Ended December 31

Condensed Statements of Cash Flov 2010 2009 2008
(Amounts in Thousand
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss $ 21,847 $ (38,69¢ $ 1,95¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashidea by
operating activities
Equity in undistributed (earnings) loss of subgigli (21,497 40,77¢ 20,35’
Loss on sale of securiti 1 6C 62t
Decrease (increase) in other as: 23€ 661 (2,059
Increase (decrease) in other liabilit 6,71¢t 881 @)
Other, net (82) 1,081 2,471
Net cash provided by operating activit 7,22 4,76: 23,34:
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of securities available for ¢ - (931 (13,119
Proceeds from sale of securities available for 53¢ 4,40; 3,324
Investment in subsidiat (7,500 (10,000 (40,000
Other, ne - 1,00( (1,042)
Net cash used in investing activiti (6,965) (5,529) (50,83
Cash flows from financing activities
Issuance of preferred sto - - 41,50(
Redemption of preferred sto - (41,500 -
Issuance of common sto 29 61,68¢ 60¢€
Acquisition of treasury stoc - (167) (4,222)
Common dividends pai (7,12)) (4,620 (12,457
Preferred dividends pa - (1,11¢ -
Other, ne 1,11( 1,86¢ 1,22(
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (5,987) 16,15« 26,65
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (5,720 15,38¢ (842
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 17,42¢ 2,03¢ 2,88(
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 11,70¢ $ 17,42¢ $ 2,03¢

Note 19. Segment Information

The Company operates within two business segmeatsmunity banking and insurance services. The Camitsnianking segment includ
both commercial and consumer lending and deposiicgs. This segment provides customers with sucddycts as commercial loans, |
estate loans, business financing and consumer.|d#&is segment also provides customers with sevdraices of deposit products includ
demand deposit accounts, savings accounts andicaes of deposit. In addition, the Community Biagk segment provides wea
management services to a broad range of custories.Insurance Services segment is adalvice insurance agency providing comme

and personal lines of insurance.
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The following table sets forth information aboue treportable operating segments and reconciliaifothis information to the consolidat
financial statements at and for the years ende@mber 31, 2010 and 2009.

December 31, 201i

Community Insurance Parent/
Banking Services Elimination Total

(In Thousands

Net interest income (los $ 74,07: $ (12 $ 90) $ 73,85:
Provision for loan losse 14,75 - - 14,75
Noninterest incom 34,13: 6,81¢ (440 40,50¢
Noninterest expens 63,98: 6,85¢ (896€) 69,94
Income (loss) before income tax 29,46¢ (165) 36€ 29,66"
Provision for income tax expense 7,30¢ 34E 165 7,81¢
Net income (loss $ 22,15t $ (510 $ 201 $ 21,84°
End of period goodwill and other intangibles $ 78,69t $ 11,94: $ - $ 90,63¢
End of period assets $ 2,227,761 $ 12,44 $ 4,03: $ 2,244,223

December 31, 200!
Community Insurance Parent/
Banking Services Elimination Total

(In Thousands

Net interest income (los $ 69,36: $ (73) $ (39 $ 69,25
Provision for loan losse 15,80: - - 15,80:
Noninterest incom (60,839 7,42 (265) (53,67
Noninterest expens 61,52! 6,13¢ (1,03 66,62+
Income (loss) before income tax (68,799 1,21¢ 734 (66,85()
Provision for income tax (benefit) expense (30,56¢) 50€ 1,90¢ (28,154
Net income (loss $ (38,23) $ 70¢ $ (1,174 $ (38,69¢)
End of period goodwill and other intangibles $ 79,41¢ $ 1164: $ - $ 91,06:
End of period assets $ 2,247,399 $ 12,23( $ 13,657 $ 2,273,28
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Note 20. Supplemental Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarterly earnings for the years ended Decembe2(®l0Q and 2009, are as follows:

Quarter Ended

2010 March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share C
Interest incomi $ 26,61: $ 26,15 % 25,84( % 24,97t
Interest expense 7,99: 7,611 7,24 6,87¢
Net interest incom 18,61¢ 18,54: 18,59" 18,09¢
Provision for loan losses 3,66¢ 3,59¢ 3,81( 3,68¢
Net interest income after provision for loan los 14,95¢ 14,94¢ 14,78 14,41
Other income 8,32¢ 7,70% 8,36¢ 7,84(
Net securities gain 25C 1,201 2,57¢ 4,24¢
Other expenses 16,07: 16,59¢ 17,42¢ 19,84
Income before income tax 7,46( 7,252 8,29¢ 6,65
Income tax 2,182 2,121 1,742 1,772
Net income available to common shareholc $ 527¢ $ 5131 $ 6,55¢ $ 4,88t
Per share

Basic earning $ 03C $ 02¢ $ 037 $ 0.27

Diluted earning: $ 03C $ 02¢ $ 037 $ 0.2i

Dividends $ 01C $ 0.1C $ 01C $ 0.1C
Weighted average basic shares outstan 17,76¢ 17,78 17,80¢ 17,84¢
Weighted average diluted shares outstan 17,78¢ 17,80¢ 17,83: 17,89:.

Quarter Ended

2009 March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share C
Interest incom: $ 26,86: $ 26,18¢ $ 27,13( $ 27,75
Interest expens 10,43( 9,86¢ 9,594 8,79(
Net interest incom 16,43: 16,32: 17,53¢ 18,96:
Provision for loan losse 2,14¢ 2,552 3,81¢ 7,28
Net interest income after provision for loan los 14,28t 13,76¢ 13,717 11,68(
Other income 8,00¢ 3,86’ (18,150 (35,739
Net securities gains (losse 411 1,65: 86¢€ (14,609
Other expenses 15,18" 16,04’ 17,76¢ 17,62:
Income (loss) before income tax 7,51¢ 3,24¢ (21,33Y) (56,279
Income tax (benefit 2,32% 843 (9,787 (21,537
Net income (loss 5,192 2,408 (11,557 (34,74
Preferred dividend 571 57¢ 1,017 -
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol $ 4,621 $ 1827 $ (12,569 $ (34,747)
Per share

Basic earnings (los: $ 04C $ 014 % 0.72) $ (1.9¢)

Diluted earnings (loss $ 04C $ 014 $ 0.72) $ (1.96)

Dividends $ - $ 020 $ 01C $ -
Weighted average basic shares outstanding 11,56¢ 12,69¢ 17,42° 17,68’
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 11,61% 12,74. 17,42° 17,68’
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- Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm -

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorsldhe Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaineets of First Community Bancshares, Inc. sn8ubsidiaries (the “Companyéds o
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related cdaseti statements of operations, changes in staddtskquity and cash flows for each
the years in the three-year period ended DecembeP(@®L0. These consolidated financial statemerggter responsibility of the Compary’
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBlaUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obta@asonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managementethas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaereferred to above present fairly, in all mater&spects, the financial position of F
Community Bancshares, Inc. and its Subsidiariesf &e=cember 31, 2010 and 2009, and the resultsedf bperations and their cash flows
each of the years in the thrgear period ended December 31, 2010 in conformitl accounting principles generally accepted in hétec
States of America.

The Company adopted, in 2009, new business coniinand investment impairment accounting standards.
We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), the Compary’
internal control over financial reporting as of [@etber 31, 2010, based on criteria established terral Control-ntegrated Framewo

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regateéd March 11, 2011, expresse:
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the @amy’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dixern Kiighes PLLC

Asheville, North Carolina
March 11, 2011
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-Managements Assessment of Internal Control Over Financial Regrting -

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Companig’)responsible for the preparation, integrity, dad presentation of the consolida
financial statements included in this Annual ReprtForm 10K. The consolidated financial statements and notelsided in this Annui
Report on Form 16 have been prepared in conformity with U.S. geleraccepted accounting principles and necessanmi¢jude som
amounts that are based on management’s best esgianrad judgments.

We, as management of the Company, are responsibksfablishing and maintaining effective interoahtrol over financial reporting that
designed to produce reliable financial statememtsanformity with U.S. generally accepted accouptprinciples. The system of inter
control over financial reporting as it relates be financial statements is evaluated for effectgsnby management and tested for reliak
Any system of internal control, no matter how wdksigned, has inherent limitations, including tresgibility that a control can
circumvented or overridden and misstatements dugrrar or fraud may occur and not be detected. Atszause of changes in conditic
internal control effectiveness may vary over timecordingly, even an effective system of internahtrol will provide only reasonat
assurance with respect to financial statement pa¢ipa.

Management conducted an assessment of the effieetivof the Comparg/internal control over financial reporting basedtioe framework i
Internal Contro-Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatmhthe Treadway Commission. Based on
assessment, management concluded that its systieeifal control over financial reporting was etige as of December 31, 2010.

Dixon Hughes PLLC, independent registered publicoanting firm, has issued an attestation reportheneffectiveness of the Compasy’
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2010. The Report of Independent RegtBrugblic Accounting Firm, whic
expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectisenaf the Compang’ internal control over financial reporting as oéd@mber 31, 201
appears hereafter in Item 8 of this Annual ReporForm 10-K.

Dated this 1I"day of March, 2011.

/s/ John M. Mende /s/ David D. Browr
John M. Mende: David D. Brown
President and Chief Executive Offic Chief Financial Office
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- Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm -

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorsldhe Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited First Community Bancshares, Ind.sabsidiaries’ (the “Companyfjiternal control over financial reporting as of Bethe
31, 2010, based on criteria established in Inte@uaitrol—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee oihSpng Organizations of t
Treadway Commission. The Compasyhanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and fts
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting, included in the accomyag Managemeng Assessment of Intert
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibilg to express an opinion on the Company's interoatrol over financial reporting based
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with thedgtads of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtasonable assurance about whether effectiven@iteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corar@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aatl&ing the design and operating effectivenedsatefnal control based on the assessed
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestaée believe that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsdor external purposes in accordance with gelyeesdcepted accounting principles
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftapeto the maintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdimpany; (2) provide reasonable assu
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoazations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalskurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the Company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

In our opinion, First Community Bancshares, Inc.intained, in all material respects, effective inedrcontrol over financial reporting as
December 31, 2010, based on criteria establishethternal Control-ntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of nSpong
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), the consolida

financial statements of First Community Bancshalres,as of and for the year ended December 310,28d our report, dated March 11, 2!
expressed an unqualified opinion on those congelilfinancial statements. The Company adopted00®2new business combination

investment impairment accounting standards.
-
Dixeen Kuighs PLLC

Asheville, North Carolina
March 11, 2011
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures

Restatement and Remediation of Material Weak

As a result of a routine internal audit during #eezond quarter of 2010, the Company determine@ thvas a computational error in the mc
that it uses to calculate the quantitative basisit® allowance for loan losses. Based on the Cayiisamodeling using the correc
computations, the Company, in consultation with felit Committee of its Board of Directors, filedittv the Securities and Exchat
Commission amendments to its Form 10-Ks for eacthefyears ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 arebits 10Qs for each of tt
guarters ended March 31, 2009, June 30, 2009, ®epte30, 2009, and March 31, 2010, for the purpdgestating the financial stateme
and other financial information in those reportsefiect the correction of the computational eirothe model (the “Restatement”).

We believe that we have fully remediated the mataveakness in our internal control over financ&dorting with respect to the calculatior
the allowance for loan losses as of December 310.Z0he remedial actions undertaken by the Compastyded:

« implementing additional management and oversightrots to review documentation related to the dakion of the allowanc
for loan losses

« discontinuing practices and processes where sa$iaircontrols did not exist and automating othdéicat functions within th
process; an

« retesting our internal controls with respect to theficiencies related to the material weaknessrsue they are operati
effectively.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedu

In connection with the Restatement, under the toecof the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (“CBOCand Chief Financial Offici
(“CFO"), we reevaluated our disclosure controls and proesdufhe Company identified a material weaknessuiniaternal control ove
financial reporting with respect to ensuring thepraypriate calculation of its allowance for loan des. Specifically, during a proc
enhancement to the model that calculates the afiogvéor loan losses, the quarterly average logswas not annualized. Control procedure
place during the periods covered by the Restatefoenmeviewing the quantitative model for calcutatithe allowance for loan losses did
timely identify this error and, as such, the Compdit not have adequately designed procedureslySagea result of this material weakn
we concluded that our disclosure controls and mhoes were not effective as of December 31, 2008¢ch 31, 2009, June 30, 20
September 30, 2009, December 31, 2009, March 310, 2hd June 30, 2010.

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 10«fder the direction of the CompasyCEO and CFO, the Company has evaluate
disclosure controls and procedures currently iratffincluding the remedial actions discussed abBased upon that evaluation, the CEO
CFO concluded that, as of December 31, 2010, thepgaay’s disclosure controls and procedures weeztie.

Disclosure controls and procedures are Companyrasenand other procedures that are designed torerbat information required to
disclosed by the Company in the reports thatésfibr submits under the Exchange Act is recordedtessed, summarized and reported w
the time periods specified in the SBCQules and forms. Disclosure controls and proaslurclude, without limitation, controls and prouest
designed to ensure that information required taliselosed by the Company in the reports that ésfibr submits under the Exchange A
accumulated and communicated to the Compamganagement, including the CEO and CFO, as apgpteprto allow timely decisiol
regarding required disclosure.

The Company’s management, including the CEO and,Qe8s not expect that the Compangisclosure controls and internal controls
prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, matter how well conceived and operated, cawigeoonly reasonable, not absol
assurance that the objectives of the control systenmet. Because of the inherent limitations Ircahtrol systems, no evaluation of cont
can provide absolute assurance that all controkessnd instances of fraud, if any, within the Canyphave been detected. These inhi
limitations include the realities that judgmentsdacision making can be faulty, and that breakdowars occur because of simple erro
mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvehtey the individual acts of some persons, by c@lusof two or more people, or
management override of the controls.
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The Company assesses the adequacy of its inteonélot over financial reporting quarterly and entes its controls in response to inte
control assessments and internal and external anditregulatory recommendations. Except as destebeve, there were no changes ir
Companys internal control over financial reporting duritige quarter ended December 31, 2010, that has ialbtaffected, or is reasonal
likely to materially affect, the Company’s interrantrol over financial reporting.

The Company’s Managemest’Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repagrtiand the Report of Independent Registered F
Accounting Firm on ManagemestAssessment of Internal Control Over Financial dképg are each hereby incorporated by referenme
Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9B. Other Information.
None.

PART Il
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace.

The required information concerning directors anecative officers has been omitted in accordanceh v@eneral Instruction G. Su
information regarding directors and executive @fgwill be set forth under the headings of “Electof Directors,” “Continuing Directors,”
and “Executive Officers who are not Directors” bétProxy Statement relating to the 2011 Annual Megedf Stockholders (the2011 Annue
Meeting”) to be held on April 26, 2011, and is ingorated herein by reference.

Information relating to compliance with Section 466f the Exchange Act has been omitted in accamlavith General Instruction G. St
information will be set forth under the heading‘S&ction 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coiapte” of the Proxy Statement relati
to the 2011 Annual Meeting and is incorporated ineog reference.

The Company has adopted Standards of Conduct ftipdy #o its principal executive officer, principéihancial officer, principal accountil
officer or controller or persons performing simifanctions, as well as all employees and directdrthe Company. A copy of the Compasy’
Standards of Conduct is available on the Compmamyebsite at www.fcbinc.com. There have been nivexs of the standards of cond
related to any of the above officers.

Information relating to the Audit Committee and thadit Committee Financial Expert has been omittedccordance with General Instruct
G. Such information regarding the Audit Committeel ¢he Audit Committee Financial Expert will be f&th under the headindReport of th
Audit Committee” of the Proxy Statement relatingtie 2011 Annual Meeting and is incorporated hebbgineference.

Since the last report on Form KQ-filed on March 4, 2010, the Company has not madg material changes to the procedures by v
stockholders may recommend nominees to the Compdiogrd of directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC .

Franklin P. Hall John M. Mendez
Businessman; Senior Partner, Hall & Hall Family LBinm; President and Chief Executive Officer, First Comity
Former Commissioner, Virginia Department of Alcdhc Bancshares, Inc.; Chief Executive Officer, Firsn@ounity
Beverage Control; Former Chairman, The Commonwe Bank, N. A.
Bank; Former Minority Leader, Virginia House of Bghtes

A. A. Modena

Past Executive Vice President and Secretary, Epsimunity
Allen T. Hamner, Ph.D. Bancshares, Inc.; Past President and Chief Exex@xfficer,
Retired Professor of Chemistry, West Virginia Wgale The Flat Top National Bank of Bluefie
College

Robert E. Perkinson, Jr.
Richard S. Johnson Past Vice Preside-Operations, MAPCO Coal, In— Virginia
President, The Wilton Compani Region
I. Norris Kantor William P. Stafford
Of Counsel, Katz, Kantor & Perkins, Attorneys at.d&0oard President, Princeton Machinery Service, |

of Governors, Bluefield State Colle
John M. Mendez William P. Stafford, Il

Attorney at Law, Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Carivthore,
Kersey & Stafford, PLLC
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC .

John M. Mendez
President and Chief Executive Offic

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Office!

Robert L. Schumacher
General Counse

E. Stephen Lilly
Chief Operating Office

Robert L. Buzzo
Vice President and Secrete

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANK, N. A.

W. C. Blankenship, Jr.
Agent, State Farm Insuran

Juanita G. Bryan
Homemake|

Robert L. Buzzo
Vice President and Secretary, First Community Bhaiess,
Inc.; President, First Community Bank, N.

C. William Davis
Attorney at Law, Richardson & Dav

Samuel L. Elmore
Senior Vice Presidei- Commercial Lending for Raleic
County, W.Va. Market, First Community Bank, N.

T. Vernon Foster

President of J. L' Verne Print Communications; Past Direc
TriStone Community Bank; Director of Business Siolns,
University of Louisville, College of Busine:

Franklin P. Hall

Businessman; Senior Partner, Hall & Hall Family L&inm;
Former Commissioner, Virginia Department of Alcdhc
Beverage Control; Former Chairman, The Commonwe
Bank; Former Minority Leader, Virginia House of Bghtes

Allen T. Hamner, Ph.D.
Retired Professor of Chemistry, West Virginia Wgale
College

Richard S. Johnson
President, The Wilton Compani

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

I. Norris Kantor
Of Counsel, Katz, Kantor & Perkins, Attorneys at.&8oard
of Governors, Bluefield State Colle

John M. Mendez

President and Chief Executive Officer, First Comity
Bancshares, Inc.; Chief Executive Officer, Firsn@ounity
Bank, N. A,

A. A. Modena

Past Executive Vice President and Secretary,
Community Bancshares, Inc.; Past President
Chief Executive Officer, The Flat Top National Be
of Bluefield

Robert E. Perkinson, Jr.
Past Vice Preside-Operations, MAPCO Coal, In— Virginia
Region

William P. Stafford
President, Princeton Machinery Service, |

William P. Stafford, Il
Attorney at Law, Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Carivthore,
Kersey & Stafford, PLLC

Frank C. Tinder
President, Tinder Enterprises, Inc. and Tinco Lres
Corporation; Realtor, Premier Rea

Dale F. Woody
President, Woody Lumber Compa

The information called for by Item 11 has been taditin accordance with General Instruction G. Snébrmation will be set forth under t
heading of “Compensation Discussion and Analysisthe Proxy Statement relating to the 2011 Andekting and is incorporated herein

reference.

ITEM 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The required information concerning security owhgrof certain beneficial owners and managementldeen omitted in accordance v
General Instruction G. Such information appearseuitide heading of “Information on Stock Ownershif'the Proxy Statement relating to

2011 Annual Meeting and is incorporated hereindfgnence.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Information regarding compensation plans under ki Company equity securities are authorized for issuanaaf &ecember 31, 2010,
included in the table which follows.

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available
to be issued upor Weighted-average for future issuance
exercise of exercise price of under equity
outstanding outstanding compensation plans
options, warrants  options, warrants  (excluding securities
Plan category and rights and rights reflected in column (a)
(@) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans appro\
by security holder 54,12t $ 25.11 82,34:
Equity compensation plans not appro
by security holder 351,59 ¢ 22.21 71,80:
Total 405,71¢ 154,14«

For additional information regarding equity compaitn plans, see Note 10 Employee Benefits of the Notes to Consolidated hdre
Statements included in Item 8 hereof.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence.

The information called for by Item 13 has been taditin accordance with General Instruction G. Snébrmation will be set forth under t
heading of “Related Party Transactions” of the FrStatement relating to the 2011 Annual Meeting iaridcorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information called for by Iltem 14 has been teditin accordance with General Instruction G. Saétrmation will be set forth under t
heading of “Independent Auditor” of the Proxy Stagmnt relating to the 2011 Annual Meeting and i®iporated herein by reference.

PART IV

ITEM 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(@) Documents Filed as Part of this Report

(1) Financial Statements

Not Applicable

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Not Applicable
(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
No. Exhibit

3() Articles of Incorporation of First Community Baneshs, Inc. (31
3(ii) Bylaws of First Community Bancshares, Inc., as aedn(17)
3.1 Certificate of Designation Series A Preferred St(®X)
4.1 Specimen stock certificate of First Community Bdrasss, Inc. (3
4.2 Indenture Agreement dated September 25, 2003.
4.3 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of FC&pital Trust dated September 25, 2003.
4.4 Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement dateg®épt 25, 2003. (1:
4.5 Reserved
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4.6 Warrant to purchase 88,273 shares of Common Stioeksi Community Bancshares, Inc. (-

4.7 Reservec

4.8 Reservec

10.1** First Community Bancshares, Inc. 1999 Stock Op@ontracts (2) and Plan. (

10.1.1* Amendment to First Community Bancshares, Inc. 19@#k Option Plan, as amended. (

10.2** First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2001 -Qualified Directors Stock Option Plan. (

10.3** Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetwest Community Bancshares, Inc. and John M.déen(6) and Waive
Agreement (27

10.4** First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2000 ExecutiveeRt&tn Plan, as amended. (:

10.5** First Community Bancshares, Inc. Split Dollar Péand Agreement. (&

10.6** First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2001 Directorsgbemental Retirement Plan, as amended.

10.6.1** Reserve(

10.7** First Community Bancshares, Inc. Wrap Plan.

10.8 Reserved

10.9** Form of Indemnification Agreement between First @mmity Bancshares, Inc., its Directors and Ceraiacutive Officers. (9

10.10**  Form of Indemnification Agreement between First @umity Bank, N. A, its Directors and Certain ExéeeatOfficers. (9)

10.11 Reserved

10.12**  First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2004 Omnibus S@gtion Plan (10) and Form of Award Agreement. {

10.13 Reserved

10.14**  First Community Bancshares, Inc. Directors Defe@ednpensation Plan. (

10.15** Reserve(

10.16** Employment Agreement dated November 30, 2006, ketrst Community Bank, N. A. and Ronald L. Canlpl§&9)

10.17** Employment Agreement dated September 28, 2007 deetvreenPoint Insurance Group, Inc. and Shawru@n@ngs. (20

10.18 Securities Purchase Agreement by and between thedJBtates Department of the Treasury and Firsai@onity Bancshares, In
dated November 21, 2008. (2

10.19** Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, lsetWwest Community Bancshares, Inc. and David @vBr. (23)

10.20**  Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetWwest Community Bancshares, Inc. and RobertuzzB. (26)

10.21* Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetWwest Community Bancshares, Inc. and E. Stepiign (26)

10.22**  Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetWwest Community Bank, N. A. and Gary R. Mill26]

10.23**  Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetwest Community Bank, N. A. and Martyn A. P¢H6)

10.24**  Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetWwest Community Bank, N. A. and Robert. L. Sclgirer. (26

10.25**  Employment Agreement dated July 31, 2009, betwéesh Eommunity Bank, N. A. and Simpson O. Browrb)(

10.26** Employment Agreement dated July 31, 2009, betwéesh Eommunity Bank, N. A. and Mark R. Evans. (.

11 Statement regarding computation of earnings paesliss)
12* Computation of Ratios
21 Subsidiaries of Registra— Reference is made “Item 1. Busine¢” for the required informatior

23.1* Consent of Dixon Hughes PLLC, Independent Regidteugblic Accounting Firm for First Community Banesés, Inc

31.1* Rule 13i-14(a)/15¢-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Office

31.2* Rule 13i-14(a)/15+-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Office

32* Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigifnancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section(,3%s adopted pursuant
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

* Furnished herewitt
** Indicates a management contract or compensation

Q) Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly ReparForm 1-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010, filed on Aud6é, 201(
2 Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly ReporEorm 1-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002, filed on Aud4, 2002
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3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)

(10)
(11)

(12)
(13)
(14)

(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)

(19)
(20)

(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)

(25)
(26)
(27)
(28)
(29)
(30)
(31)

Incorporated by reference from the Annual Repn Form 10-K for the period ended December 8022 filed on March 25, 2003, as
amended on March 31, 20(

Incorporated by reference from the Annual Repo Form 10-K for the period ended December 3891 filed on March 30, 2000, as
amended April 13, 200(

The option agreements entered into pursuant t@988 Stock Option Plan and the 2001 -Qualified Directors Stock Option Pl
are incorporated by reference from the QuarterlgdRieon Form 1-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002, filed on Audd4, 2002
Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @rent Report on Formr-K dated and filed December 16, 2008. The Registrat
entered into substantially identical agreementh Ribbert L. Buzzo and E. Stephen Lilly, with théyodifferences being with respect
to title and salary

Incorporated by reference from Item 1.01 of ther@oir Report on Form-K dated August 22, 2006, and filed August 23, 2(
Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5he# Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ehBecember 31, 1999, and filed on
April 4, 2000, and amended on April 13, 20

Form of indemnification agreement entered intolly Company and by First Community Bank, N. A. withir respective directo
and certain officers of each including, for the Regnt and Bank: John M. Mendez, Robert L. SchuragdRobert L. Buzzo, E.
Stephen Lilly, David D. Brown, and Gary R. Millsncorporated by reference from the Annual ReporForm 10-K for the period
ended December 31, 2003, filed on March 15, 2004 zanended on May 19, 20(

Incorporated by reference from the 2004 First ComitguBancshares, Inc. Definitive Proxy filed on Mharl5, 2004

Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly ReparForm 1-Q for the period ended September 30, 2003, filetlovember 10
2003.

Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly ReporForm 1-Q for the period ended March 31, 2004, filed on Mag004.
Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly ReparForm 1-Q for the period ended June 30, 2004, filed on Aty 2004
Incorporated by reference from the Annual&®epn Form 10-K for the period ended December2®D4, and filed on March 16,
2005. Amendments in substantially similar form evexecuted for Directors Clark, Kantor, Hamner, kual Perkinson, Stafford, a
Stafford II.

Incorporated by reference from the Current ReporEorm K dated October 24, 2006, and filed October 2562

Incorporated by reference from Note 1 of the NéteSonsolidated Financial Statements included he

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 of the@nt Report on Form-K dated February 14, 2008, filed on February 208
Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4fthe Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the pgemded March 31, 2004, filed on
May 7, 2004

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 of treerk S-3 registration statement filed May 2, 20

Incorporated by reference from the Exhibitl0of the Annual Report on Form X0for the period ended December 31, 2007, file
March 13, 2008

Reserved

Incorporated by reference from the Current ReporEorm {-K dated November 21, 2008, and filed November 2082

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 of @@rent Report on Forn-K dated and filed December 16, 20

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10f3h@ Current Report on Form 8-K dated Decembe2080, and filed December 17,
2010.

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 of the@nt Report on Form-K dated April 2, 2009 and filed April 3, 200
Incorporated by reference from the Current ReporEorm {-K dated and filed July 6, 200

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 on F&-K dated December 16, 2010, and filed December QX0:

Reserved

Reserved

Reserved

Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3itxtwe Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periladed June 30, 2010, and filed August
16, 2010
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized on the IMday of March, 2011.

By: /s/John M. Mende

First Community Bancshares, Inc.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ David D. Browr

John M. Mende:

President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officet

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Office

(Principal Financial Officer and Accounting Offige

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
Registrant and in the capacities and on the datbsated.

Signature

Title

Date

/s/ John M. Mende

John M. Mende:

/s/ David D. Browr

David D. Brown

/s/ Franklin P. Hal

Franklin P. Hall

/s/ Allen T. Hamne

Allen T. Hamnel

/s/ Richard S. Johnsc

Richard S. Johnsc

/s/ Robert E. Perkinson, .

Robert E. Perkinson, .

/s/ William P. Stafforc

William P. Stafford

/s/ William P. Stafford, |

William P. Stafford, Il

Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Office

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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March 11, 2011

March 11, 201:

March 11, 201:

March 11, 2011

March 11, 201:

March 11, 2011

March 11, 201

March 1012




Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per She

Cash Dividends Per She

Book Value Per Shai

Return on Average Asse
Return on Average Shareholc’ Equity

Efficiency Ratio (GAAP)

Efficiency Ratio (Non-GAAP)

Loans to Deposit

Dividend Payou

Average Shareholde’ Equity to Average Asse
Tier | Capital Ratic

Total Capital Ratic

Tier | Leverage Rati
Net Charg-offs to Average Loan

Non-performing Loans to Total Loat

Non-performing Assets to Total Loans Plus OR

Allowance for Loan Losses to Total Loa
Allowance for Loan Losses to Non-performing Assets

Allowance for Loan Losses to Non-performing Loans

Net Interest Margi

Exhibit 12

Computation of Ratios

Net Income (Loss) Available to Common Shareholdéfsighted Averac
Common Shares Outstandi

Net Income (Loss) Available to Common Shareholdérsighted Averac
Diluted Shares Outstandit

Dividends Paid to Common Shareholders/Average ComnShare
Outstanding

Total Common Sharehold¢ Equity/Common Share
Outstanding

Net Income/Average Asse
Net Income/Average Sharehold Equity

Noninterest Expense/(Net Interest Income |
Noninterest Income

See schedule undem 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operati

Average Net Loans/Average Deposits Outstan

Dividends Declared/Net Income Available to Commda@holder:
Average Shareholde’ Equity/Average Assel

(Shareholder Equity Plus Qualifying Subordinated Delk- Intangible
Assets- Securities Marketo-market Capital Resen

(Tier | Capital)/ Risk Adjusted Asse

Tier | Capital Plus Allowance for Loz
Losses/Risk Adjusted Asse

Tier | Capital/Average Asse

(Gross Charc-offs Less Recoveries)/Average Net Loi

(Nonaccrual Loans, Loans Past Due 90 Day

Greater, Plus Unseasoned Restructured Loans)/Gkossis Net ¢
Unearned Interes

(Nonaccrual Loans, Loans Past Due 90 Day

Greater, Unseasoned Restructured Loans, Plus ORED}/oans plu
OREO

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Gross Loans Net of Unedrinterest

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Nonaccrual Loans, LoBast Due 90 Da
or Greater, Unseasoned Restructured Loans, Plusd)

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Nonaccrual Loans pNen-{performing
Loans)

Tax Equivalent Net Interest Income/Average Earmisgets




Exhibit 23.1

- Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm -

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorsldhe Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by reference inréggstration statements pertaining to the 2010v&hsial Shelf Registration (Form&-No
333-165965); 2004 Omnibus Stock Option Plan (Forfl) Bo. 333-120376); the Commonwealth Bank StockiddpPlan (Form S-8, No. 333-
106338); The Commonwealth Bank Acquisition (Fornd,SNo. 333-104103); the 2001 Directors Stock OptRian (Form S-8, No. 333-
75222); the 1999 Stock Option Plan (Form S-8, 3B33B); the Employee Stock Ownership and Savings farm S-8, No. 3383865); th
Investments Planning Consultants Inc. acquisitfeorh S-3, No. 333-142558); the Stone Capital Mamege acquisition (Form S-3, No. 333-
104384); the Universal Shelf Registration (Form,IN8. 333-153692); the Coddle Creek Financial Caapon Acquisition (Form S, No
333-153281); the Capital Purchase Program WarrasalR (Form S-3, No. 33%6365); the Greenpoint Insurance Group, Inc. aion
(Form S-3, No. 33348279); and the Common Stock Issuable PursuahetdriStone Community Bank Employee Stock OptitemRand th
TriStone Community Bank Director Stock Option P{&orm S-8, No. 333:61473) of First Community Bancshares, Inc. andsilidries (th
“Company”)of our reports dated March 11, 2011, with respe¢hé consolidated financial statements of the Gomggand the effectiveness
internal control over financial reporting, whictpoets appear in the Company’s 2010 Annual Repofam 10-K.

Our audit report on the consolidated financialestants refers to the Company’s change in its mstirodccounting for other-thaemporar
impairment of debt securities and for recordingibess combinations effective January 1, 2009, assalt of adopting new account

Dixern Kighus PLLC

Asheville, North Carolina
March 11, 2011




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, John M. Mendez, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of First Community Bancshares, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omistade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iateitnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15+15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedunregsaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepal

b) Designed such internal control over financial reéipgror caused such internal control over finanoéglorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegatide reliability of financial reporting and thpeeparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtids report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatcoored during the registre's
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected,is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrants internal control o
financial reporting; an

The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxdon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmtver financial reportin
to the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of director:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakness®e the design or operation of internal controkiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid's ability to record, process, summarize and refgmahcial information; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ilwes management or other employees who have disantirole in the registrard’interna
control over financial reporting

Date: March 11, 2011

/s/ John M. Mende

John M. Mende:
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, David D. Brown, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of First Community Bancshares, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omistade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iateitnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15+15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedunregsaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to u:
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepal

b) Designed such internal control over financial reéipgror caused such internal control over finanoéglorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegatide reliability of financial reporting and thpeeparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtids report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatcoored during the registre's
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected,is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrants internal control o
financial reporting; an

The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxdon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmtver financial reportin
to the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of director:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakness®e the design or operation of internal controkiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid's ability to record, process, summarize and refgmahcial information; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ilwes management or other employees who have disantirole in the registrard’interna
control over financial reporting

Date: March 11, 2011

/s/ David D. Browr

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Office!




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of First Commity Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) on FormKLGer the period ende
December 31, 2010, as filed with the Securities Bxchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pdine undersigned hereby certify
the officers’ best knowledge and belief, pursuani8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdtoBe906 of the Sarbané&xley Act of

2002, that:
(a) the Report fully complies with the requiremenit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934, as amended; and

(b) the information contained in the Report faipisesents, in all material respects, the finanaimdition and results of operations
the Company.

Dated this 1I"day of March, 2011.
First Community Bancshares, Ir

/s/ John M. Mende

John M. Mende;
Chief Executive Office

/s/ David D. Browr

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Office




